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Foreword from the Chairman
2015/16 has been a further year of challenge and change for Medway.
We were delighted to welcome Lesley Dwyer as our new chief executive in May
2015. Lesley has brought a new perspective and dynamism to the organisation,
and together with her executive team, she has put in place a number of initiatives
designed to transform the care and service provided by the hospital.
The Care Quality Commission’s inspection of the hospital in August 2015, and the report it
published in January 2016, in which we were again rated as inadequate, were watershed moments
for the Trust. There were already a range of improvement plans in place, however it was clear that
we needed to accelerate our drive to improve the quality and safety of patient care within the
Emergency Department and throughout the hospital. We were given a period of three months from
January to demonstrate sustainable improvement and were subject to a short targeted inspection
in March 2016. The feedback from this inspection acknowledged the improvement in performance
and stated that the Trust will undergo a full inspection later in the year.
Since then, we have made a concerted effort to enhance patients’ experience in our Emergency
Department, reduce waiting times, improve cleanliness, and get patients home quicker. The
accelerated drive is starting to lead to improved performance but there remains a long way to go.
'XULQJWKH\HDUWKHUHKDVEHHQDVLJQL¿FDQWGHWHULRUDWLRQLQWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH
driven by investment in quality initiatives, an increase in the number of patients waiting for
community support and a consequent reduction in elective activity. We are in the process of
GHYHORSLQJD¿QDQFLDOUHFRYHU\SODQWRUXQDORQJVLGHWKHGULYHWRLPSURYHTXDOLW\
There have been changes to our Board and senior leadership with the appointment of three new
non-executive directors in the year.
The Council of Governors have continued to support the Trust’s recovery and provide challenge to
the Board. The Governors have introduced a community engagement group in order to more
actively engage with communities served by the hospital.
2015/16 has also seen an important rebuilding of relationships with our partners and stakeholders
across Kent and Medway. Working in partnership is crucial in our drive to improve our performance
and provide the outstanding care to our local communities, that they expect and deserve. I am
pleased at the support we have received from so many partners in the year just gone, and am
struck by their near universal willingness for us to succeed in turning around the hospital.
We remain indebted to the Medway League of Friends for the contribution which it makes to the
medical equipment and the environment of the Trust as well as the hospital radio service it
provides to our patients.
On behalf of the Board, I would commend all of our staff and volunteers for their hard work and
passionate commitment to the provision of the best care for our patients and their families. I know
they are determined to make the improvements needed to ensure that we consistently deliver the
high quality of care our local communities need and deserve. I look forward to continuing to work
with them on this journey.

Shena Winning
Chairman
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Performance Report

1.1 Overview
Introduction from the Chief Executive
,DPFRPLQJWRWKHHQGRIP\¿UVW\HDUKHUHDW0HGZD\,ZDQWWRWDNHWKLVRSSRUWXQLW\WRUHÀHFWQRW
only on the challenges we have faced in the last 12 months, but also the many achievements and
improvements of the past year.
All of us here at Medway are committed to providing the best of care to our patients and the quality
of the care we provide is our absolutely paramount priority. I am pleased to say that we have seen
VRPHVLJQL¿FDQWLPSURYHPHQWVGXULQJWKHFRXUVHRIWKH\HDUEXWWKHUHLVVWLOODKXJHDPRXQWWRGR
2QHRIP\¿UVWSULRULWLHVDIWHUEHFRPLQJFKLHIH[HFXWLYHZDVWRSXWLQSODFHWKHULJKWOHDGHUVKLSDQG
clinical governance structures. Over the second half of 2015, we introduced a new clinical structure
based on three new directorates with 12 clinical programmes to ensure that decisions are made
closer to where care is provided. To ensure that clinicians sit at the heart of the leadership of the
organisation, we have appointed 12 new excellent clinical directors, most of whom have been
promoted from within, and created a clinical council of our senior doctors and nurses to steer the
FOLQLFDOVWUDWHJ\RIWKHRUJDQLVDWLRQ7KHTXDOLW\RIOHDGHUVKLSKDVXQGHUJRQHDVLJQL¿FDQWVWHS
change as a result of this reorganisation, and we are already seeing the results of this through
improvements in the quality of care across the Trust.
Probably the biggest challenge we face is the pressure on our Emergency Department. The
Department was built to accommodate around 45,000 people each year but now handles over
100,000, with well over 300 people arriving at the Department each day. The result is that it is
impossible for us to avoid patients having to wait in corridors. We are part of the way through a
major refurbishment, which will help to alleviate the pressure we face, and we opened a new minor
injuries area in the autumn. However, the new physical environment has to be accompanied by
changes in the way the Department operates, and I am pleased that we have brought in a new
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management team, a new triage process to ensure that patients are seen within 15 minutes of
arrival, and a number of other changes. We expect to see these generating tangible improvements
early in 2016/17.
The pressure on the Emergency Department and the hospital more widely can only be alleviated
with the help of our healthcare partners in helping to ensure that only patients who really need to
FRPHWRKRVSLWDOGRVRDQGWRIDFLOLWDWHWKHHI¿FLHQWGLVFKDUJHRISDWLHQWVZKRDUHUHDG\WRJR
home. We are also pleased to be one of the 28 trusts across England receiving assistance from
the national Emergency Care Improvement Programme; this has been invaluable in supporting the
improvements we are seeking to make.
The publication of the Care Quality Commission’s report into the Trust in January 2016 was a
GLI¿FXOWWLPHIRUXVEXWLWZDVDOVRFRQVWUXFWLYH,WJDYHXVWKHLPSHWXVWRDFFHOHUDWHDOOWKH
programmes of change we had been putting in place across the hospital and seek to do something
different from the way Medway had operated in the past. The plan we have in place is focused on
improving patient safety and care, recruiting more permanent colleagues to reduce our
dependency on agency staff, reducing waiting times and developing our partnerships.
In the last three months of 2015/16, since the report was published, we have made some real
strides forward. Our new Medical Model, under which patients can expect a more consistent
standard of care, shorter lengths of stay in the Emergency Department and the hospital as a
whole, was launched in March and is bedding in well. Waiting times are improving and we are now
meeting our two week cancer targets, having been some way out in the autumn. Mortality rates,
which were one of the key factors behind our original move into special measures, are also
improving.
I would like to pay tribute to the work of our Women and Children’s directorate for being a beacon
of excellence in the Trust. Our neonatal and children’s department had been well regarded for
many years, but our maternity department was rated as inadequate by the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) in 2013. After an enormous amount of effort and hard work by everyone in the
team to turn the department around, they were rated as “good” when the CQC were here last
summer. They showed that improvement and change is possible. They are an inspiration for the
rest of the Trust to follow.
There is still a huge amount to do and I am very clear that we are not nearly where we need to be.
But I am optimistic that we are moving in the right direction, after many years in which the Trust
has suffered from instability in leadership and governance, and a lack of direction which has
impacted on our ability to attract staff and therefore provide care for patients of a consistently high
VWDQGDUG7KLVLVFKDQJLQJDQG,DPDEVROXWHO\FOHDUWKDWRXUFRPPXQLW\VKRXOGKDYHFRQ¿GHQFHLQ
us.
So, as we enter into 2016/17, I would like to thank all of those who work in the hospital for the
service they provide to our patients and our community, and the dedication and commitment they
have continued to show throughout the challenging year just gone.

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive

9

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Performance Report
About Medway NHS Foundation Trust
Purpose, activities and history
0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWLVDSXEOLFEHQH¿WFRUSRUDWLRQDXWKRULVHGXQGHUWKH1DWLRQDO+HDOWK
Service Act 2006. It is a single site hospital based in Gillingham, Medway Maritime Hospital, which
serves a population of over 400,000 across the areas of Medway and Swale.
We provide clinical services to almost half a million patients a year, including over 105,000
Emergency Department attendances, more than 62,000 admissions, over 315,000 outpatients
attendances and more than 5,100 babies born last year.
As an NHS Foundation Trust, we have a 25-strong Board of Governors and over 11,000 public
members. We employ 4,286 members of staff making us one of Medway’s largest employers. In
addition, the hospital is supported by a thriving group of 430 volunteers across the League of
Friends, Hospital Radio and the Voluntary Services Department, all of which provide valuable
services on an independent, voluntary basis.
The hospital comprises three clinical directorates - Acute & Continuing Care, Co-ordinated Surgical
and Women & Children’s – supported by corporate functions. Each clinical directorate has a
dedicated Director of Clinical Operations, Deputy Medical Director and Deputy Director of Nursing.
The Board of Directors, led by Chairman Shena Winning, comprises of six Executive Directors
including Lesley Dwyer, Chief Executive, and seven Non-Executive Directors including the Chair.
The Trust is buddied with Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust (GSTT). GSTT provides
support for a range of programmes and activities undertaken by Medway NHS Foundation Trust.
7KHKRVSLWDOZDV¿UVWRSHQHGLQDQGWKH7UXVWDWWDLQHG)RXQGDWLRQVWDWXVLQ,WKDV
been in special measures since 2013, and was again rated as “inadequate” by the Care Quality
Commission (CQC), when they inspected the hospital in August 2015.
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Strategic objectives
The Trust Board is currently reviewing its strategy for the years ahead as it seeks to ensure it
meets the health needs of the local population. This exercise is being carried out in parallel to the
development of a Sustainability and Transformation Plan by the Trust, together with all of the local
health partners, under the leadership of the Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), setting out the
IXWXUHRIKHDOWKDQGVRFLDOFDUHLQWKHORFDODUHDIRUWKHQH[W¿YH\HDUV
Pending the completion of these exercises, the Trust’s strategic objectives during 2015/16 have
remained the same as they were last year. These are as follows:
1. We will deliver safe, effective care with an excellent patient experience in the most
appropriate environment.
2. :HZLOODWWUDFWUHWDLQDQGGHYHORSD¿UVWFODVVZRUNIRUFH
3. :HZLOOPDQDJHRXUUHVRXUFHVSUXGHQWO\HI¿FLHQWO\DQGHIIHFWLYHO\
4. In partnership, we will provide integrated care for the community.
5. We will provide high quality information and technology to support the delivery of care.

Key developments during 2015/16
During 2015/16, the Trust put in place a range of initiatives designed to improve patient safety and
enhance the quality of care.

Improvements to the Emergency Department
The Trust is putting in place a number of improvements to the Emergency Department. These are
designed to alleviate the extreme pressures that the Department faces, with twice as many people
visiting it, than it was built to accommodate. These pressures are described in more detail in the
operational performance section of this report.
7KH¿UVWRIWKHVHLPSURYHPHQWVLVDSK\VLFDOUHIXUELVKPHQWRIWKH'HSDUWPHQW7KH¿UVWSKDVHD
new dedicated Emergency Department for children, was opened in December 2014, and work
continued apace during 2015/16. In November 2015 a new separate minor injuries area was
opened, with its own entrance, waiting room and seven treatment rooms. This was followed in
February 2016 by the opening of a new dedicated waiting area for patients visiting our ‘majors’ unit,
where patients can be better monitored by doctors and nurses, should their condition deteriorate.
The refurbishment will continue in 2016/17. This will give the Emergency Department the capacity
DQGOD\RXWWRPDQDJHLWVHPHUJHQF\ÀRZHIIHFWLYHO\
A series of new processes was also introduced in the Department during the year. In February
2016, a new triage process was introduced, whereby all patients now have an assessment carried
out by a senior clinician within 15 minutes of arrival, as well as having a set treatment plan. A new
service to help frail elderly patients was launched in April 2015. Under this service, patients are
seen by a specialist team, including a geriatric consultant and specialist nurse, upon their arrival in
the Emergency Department or Medical Assessment Unit; previously they had to wait much longer
to be seen by specialists. The service became operational seven days a week, from March 2016.
The Trust has also recruited a number of new senior leaders to oversee the changes within the
Department. One of these is a consultant nurse / educationalist whose role is to deliver universityaccredited educational programmes. This, together with the establishment of a Learning and
'HYHORSPHQW%RDUGDUHLPSRUWDQWVWHSVLQUHVSRQGLQJWRD¿QGLQJE\WKH&4&WKDWPRUHWUDLQLQJ
and development is needed within the department.
The pressure on the Emergency Department and the hospital more widely can only be alleviated
with the help of the Trust’s healthcare partners. During the second half of 2015/16, the Trust has
received assistance from the national NHS Emergency Care Improvement Programme, which has
been valuable in hearing about and learning from best practice elsewhere.
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Recruitment
Like many NHS organisations, Medway NHS Foundation Trust has shortage in a number of
GLIIHUHQWVWDI¿QJJURXSVDQGSDUWLFXODUO\SHUPDQHQWQXUVLQJVWDII5HFUXLWLQJSHUPDQHQWQXUVHV
and reducing the Trust’s dependency on agency staff has been an important priority during
2015/16. The following initiatives were put in place:
Ɣ A number of nursing and midwifery open days for potential new recruits, each of which
attracted up to 50 people considering a career at the Trust
Ɣ Various communications campaigns to promote careers at the Trust among people living in
the local area
Ɣ Recruitment drives elsewhere in the EU which resulted in the recruitment of approximately
15 nurses from Spain, Italy and Greece. Some of the Trust’s nursing accommodation was
refurbished to house the new nurses.
Ɣ Work with key stakeholders and local health partners to think of innovative ways to boost
recruitment and retention rates in 2015/16.
As a result of these initiatives, the Trust has seen an improvement in the recruitment of nursing
staff into key areas. Recruitment will remain a key focus during the next year.

Women and children’s health
The Women and Children’s Directorate is one of the best performing areas of the hospital and was
rated as “Good” in the 2016 Care Quality Commission report, with the neonatal intensive care unit
found to be continuing to provide components of outstanding care. For the Trust’s Maternity
GHSDUWPHQWWKLVUHSUHVHQWHGDVLJQL¿FDQWWXUQDURXQGKDYLQJEHHQUDWHGDV³,QDGHTXDWH´WZR
years prior.
Over the year, the directorate has seen a number of achievements:
Ɣ A new Maternity Enhanced Care Unit was opened in August 2015, allowing mothers who
require acute medical attention to stay close to their new born baby, reducing both
psychological and emotional trauma.
Ɣ Pioneering research has been developed to screen babies for Down’s syndrome safely,
through a blood test, preventing the need for invasive needle testing which can lead to
miscarriage.
Ɣ “Baby cooling” research has been undertaken – this is a technique to increase the chances
of survival and reduce the risk of brain damage in babies who have been born with a lack of
blood and oxygen.
Ɣ Work started on a new bereavement suite, to allow parents to spend precious time and
grieve with their babies who are sadly stillborn or die in infancy.
Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16
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Clinical governance

A number of improvements to clinical governance were introduced during 2015/16. These included:
Ɣ 7KHUHSODFHPHQWRIWKHROGIRXUGLYLVLRQVDQGFKLHIRSHUDWLQJRI¿FHUUROHZLWKWKUHHQHZ
directorates, each overseen by a director of clinical operations.
Ɣ The appointment of 12 new clinical directors, mainly promoted from within the organisation,
to take responsibility for the different areas of patient care within the hospital. Each clinical
director is supported by a senior nurse and general manager.
Ɣ The creation of a clinical council, jointly chaired by the Medical Director and the Director of
Nursing, to bring together all of the senior clinicians within the Trust and set the clinical
strategy for the organisation.
Ɣ The streamlining and rationalisation of the clinical committee structure within the Trust.
Ɣ A set of changes to the way in which Serious Incidents are reported, managed and learnt
from.

Recovery plan
In January 2016, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) published a report based on an inspection of the
Trust which it had undertaken in August 2015. The CQC’s conclusion was that Trust should remain in
special measures, and its overall rating for the Trust was “inadequate.”
The Trust already had a range of remedial programmes in train, but in response to the CQC’s report,
it launched a consolidated Recovery Plan, centred around six key commitments:
Ɣ Modernising the Emergency Department, reducing the time it takes for patients to be seen
and assessed.
Ɣ Improving patient safety and care by minimising the number of different doctors that patients
see during their stay in hospital.
Ɣ Accelerating the Trust’s recruitment drive to bring in the right people with the right skills.
This will ensure consistent high quality care by reducing dependency on interims and
agency staff.
Ɣ Continuing to improve corporate and clinical governance, which will support both safe and
high quality patient care and a productive working culture for staff.
13
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Ɣ Improving care for patients with cancer, reducing waiting times, replacing scanners and
providing additional capacity for patients to see specialists.
Ɣ Working closely with healthcare partners to ensure patients receive the right care in the
community, when they are ready to leave hospital. This will free up beds for people coming
into the hospital.
$3URJUDPPH0DQDJHPHQW2I¿FH 302 ZLWKGHGLFDWHGUHVRXUFHODUJHO\FRQVLVWLQJRIH[LVWLQJ
staff and executives from the Trust’s “buddy,” Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, was
set up to coordinate and facilitate the Trust’s Recovery Programme.

New Medical Model
7KHPRVWVLJQL¿FDQWHOHPHQWRIWKHUHFRYHU\SODQLPSOHPHQWHGIROORZLQJWKH&4&UHSRUWZDVWKH
introduction of a new “Medical Model” in March 2016. This consisted of a number of changes to the
working patterns of the clinicians and to some of the operating processes within the hospital, and
EURXJKWWKH7UXVWLQOLQHZLWKWKHPRGHORSHUDWLQJLQPDQ\RWKHUKRVSLWDOV%HQH¿WVLQFOXGH
Ɣ A single, named consultant taking responsibility for a patient’s care, from the time a decision
has been made to admit them until they are discharged or their care is taken over by a
specialist. Ideally, patients should have just those two doctors managing their care during
their time in the hospital; the initial admitting consultant and a subsequent specialist. This
helps to speed up diagnosis and treatment.
Ɣ Quicker initial assessments, ideally within 15 minutes of a patient’s arrival in the Emergency
Department.
Ɣ A single hotline which GPs can use to discuss a patient’s care with a consultant to decide
what treatment they might need and if a visit to the hospital is necessary.
Ɣ Patients being given an expected date of discharge when they are admitted, enabling both
patients and their families to plan better, and allowing patients to get home sooner.
Ɣ Shorter stays for patients, both in the Emergency Department, and in the hospital generally.
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Principal Issues and Risks
The risks to delivering the Trust’s key priorities are detailed in the table below, together with the
actions that the Trust is taking to mitigate these.
Risk Type

Nature of Risk

Potential Mitigation

Quality of
Patient Care

Failure to deliver high
quality patient care leading
to poor patient outcomes, a
higher than expected
Hospital Standardised
Mortality Ratio (“HSMR”),
reputational damage,
increased regulatory
LQYROYHPHQW¿QDQFLDO
penalties and reduced staff
satisfaction

The Trust’s approach to patient safety is focused
RQUHGXFLQJKDUPDQGDYRLGDEOHGHDWKV6SHFL¿F
actions that the Trust is taking are:
Ɣ implementing strengthened quality governance
arrangements at the corporate, clinical and
directorate levels
Ɣ implementing revised risk management
arrangements and a refreshed performance
management framework with the directorates
Ɣ ‘buddying’ with a large NHS organisation to
ensure that good practice is followed across
the Trust
6SHFL¿FDFWLRQVLQUHODWLRQWRDOORIWKHDERYHDUH
contained in detail within the Recovery Plan
which the Trust is in the process of delivering.

Regulatory
Compliance

Operational
Delivery

Following a full hospital
inspection by the Care
Quality Commission
(“CQC”) in August and
September 2015, the Trust
was rated as Inadequate
overall. There is a risk that
the Trust may be found to
be non-compliant with one
or more of the CQC’s
Regulatory Standards in the
future.

The Trust Board of Directors, Monitor and the
Care Quality Commission have approved a Trust
Recovery Plan in response to the concerns raised
following this inspection. This plan is being led by
the Executive and Clinical Operations teams. The
5HFRYHU\3ODQLQFOXGHV¿YHZRUNVWUHDPVDQG
LQFRUSRUDWHVDOOVLJQL¿FDQWDFWLRQVWRUHVWRUHWKH
Trust to a position of stability.

Failure to achieve local and
national quality and
operational targets leading
to poor patient experience
and outcomes, increased
¿QDQFLDOSHQDOWLHVDQG
reduced staff satisfaction.

The introduction of an integrated performance
management framework with the directorates has
been designed and implemented to ensure
Executive and Board oversight.

The introduction of an integrated performance
management framework with the directorates has
been designed and implemented to ensure
Executive and Board oversight.

Aligned to the Trust Recovery Plan, Key
Performance Indicators and trajectories have
been established. Delivery of these is enhanced
through the establishment of a designated
3URJUDPPH0DQDJHPHQW2I¿FHDQGWKHVXSSRUW
from our ‘buddy’ trust,
Guy’s and St Thomas’ and the national
NHS Emergency Care Improvement Programme.
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Financial
Performance

The Trust is working to
deliver an improved
¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHLQWKH
FRPLQJ\HDU7KH¿QDQFLDO
plan for the year assumes
GHOLYHU\RIVLJQL¿FDQWFRVW
savings.
There is a risk that the level
of savings planned is not
delivered. There is a further
risk that the quality of patient
services may be adversely
impacted if the saving plans
are not well-targeted.

Workforce

The introduction of a refreshed accountability and
performance management framework for the
directorates will enable very visible progress
DJDLQVWWKH¿QDQFLDOSODQWKLVZLOOEHPDQDJHGE\
a centralised reporting system linked into the
Carter metrics1 targeting areas of key strategic
IRFXV$VLJQL¿FDQWDPRXQWRIZRUNKDVEHHQ
undertaken with directorate leadership teams to
ensure that they “own” the plans.
All savings schemes have been discussed in
detail by the Executive Team and have been
subject to a Quality Impact Assessment approved
by the Director of Nursing and the Medical
Director.

The Trust continues to rely
on extensive funding from
the Department of Health to
PHHWLWV¿QDQFLDOREOLJDWLRQV
as they fall due. As at
2015/16 year end, funding
IRUWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
has yet to be agreed with the
Department of Health. If the
anticipated funding
requirement is not agreed
the Trust will be unable to
meet its obligations as they
fall due.

The Trust has regular dialogue with Monitor and
has already indicated its potential cash
requirement for 2016/17. The Trust has strong
relationships with the main CCGs and its bankers
who have historically been willing to support the
Trust’s short-term cash needs.

An inability to recruit and
retain staff throughout the
Trust, resulting in a
VLJQL¿FDQWGHSHQGHQF\RQ
agency staff.

7KLVKDVEHHQLGHQWL¿HGDVRQHRIWKHVL[NH\
commitments within the Trust Recovery Plan.
A number of actions have already been taken to
strengthen this including the appointment to a
permanent Board, Executive Team and the
implementation of a new senior management
operational structure; an enhanced rapid
recruitment programme including an electronic
tracking system (TRAC); implementation of a
Clinical Leadership programme and the creation of
DQ³LQKRXVH´VWDIIEDQNZKLFKZLOOVLJQL¿FDQWO\
reduce over-reliance on agency staff.
A number of further initiatives are being
developed to support this.
Compliance with mandatory training has
improved in-year although appraisal rates in
some areas require improvement.

1 Metrics which align to Lord Carter of Coles’ report on productivity in NHS hospitals, see
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/productivity-in-nhs-hospitals
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Going concern
International Accounting Standard 1 (IAS 1) requires the Directors to assess, as part of the
preparation of the annual accounts, the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.
In accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust’s Annual Reporting Manual, the accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis as we do not intend, nor consider that it will be necessary, to
apply to the Secretary of State for the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of the services to
another entity, in the foreseeable future.
+DYLQJFRQVLGHUHGWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOUHFRYHU\SODQVDQGWKHOLNHOLKRRGRIVHFXULQJDGGLWLRQDO
IXQGLQJWRVXSSRUWWKH¿QDQFLDORSHUDWLRQVWKH'LUHFWRUVKDYHGHWHUPLQHGWKDWLWUHPDLQV
appropriate to prepare these accounts on a going concern basis. There are, however, material
XQFHUWDLQWLHVZLWKUHJDUGVWRWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHWKDWPD\FDVWVLJQL¿FDQWGRXEWRYHU
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Trust’s accounting policy regarding going concern (Note 1.1 to the accounts) contains further
detail and should be read in conjunction with the Independent Auditor’s report on page 153.
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Operational performance
Overview of Operational Performance
The Trust’s performance is externally monitored against a range of national standards and targets.
The Trust’s operational performance in 2015/16 has proved to be more problematic than
envisaged. This was a result of challenging peaks and surges in emergency activity for which there
ZDVLQVXI¿FLHQWFDSDFLW\WRDFFRPPRGDWH±WKH(PHUJHQF\'HSDUWPHQWVHHVDURXQG
SUHVHQWDWLRQVD\HDUGHVSLWHEHLQJEXLOWWRDFFRPPRGDWHRQO\±LQDGGLWLRQWRLQHI¿FLHQW
PDQDJHPHQWRIHPHUJHQF\SDWKZD\VDFURVVWKH7UXVW6LJQL¿FDQWZRUNLVWDNLQJSODFHQRZLQWKH
PRGHUQLVDWLRQRIWKH(PHUJHQF\'HSDUWPHQWLPSURYHPHQWRISDWLHQWÀRZVWKURXJKWKHKRVSLWDO

and the introduction of a new Medical Model (see above) that will enable a much more robust
response to the emergency demand and reduce the mismatch between demand and capacity.

A&E 4 Hour Target
During 2015/16, 84.79 % of patients were diagnosed, treated and discharged from A&E within four
hours of arrival. This fell short of the national target of 95%. Performance by quarter can be seen in
the table below.
Table 1.2.1: A&E Performance
Indicator

Target

A&E 4-hour access

95%

Qtr 1
92.73%

Qtr 2
83.81%

Achievement
Qtr 3
Qtr 4
86.40% 76.79%

FY 2015/16
84.79%

As noted above, this has been an extremely challenging year for the Emergency Department. The
challenges reached their peak in September 2015 when the Care Quality Commission (CQC)
implemented a temporary diversion of ambulances for certain patients to other hospitals in Kent
during the mornings of 16 and 17 September.
A range of improvements are under way, including the physical redevelopment of the Department,
the introduction of improved procedures, the recruitment of new staff and work with a range of
partners. This is detailed in the key developments section below. However, pressures on the
Department remained intense up until the end of 2015/16 and seem set to continue into 2016/17.

Referral to Treatment Target
The Trust did not meet the referral to treatment (RTT) target which stipulates that at least 92 per
FHQWRISDWLHQWVVKRXOGZDLWZHHNVRUOHVVIRUWKHLU¿UVWGH¿QLWLYHWUHDWPHQW
6LJQL¿FDQWGDWDTXDOLW\LVVXHVLQUHODWLRQWRWKH7UXVW¶V577UHSRUWLQJZKLFKZHUHLGHQWL¿HGLQ
2014/15 during preparation for the implementation of the new patient administration system,
FRQWLQXHGWREHUHFWL¿HGWRWKHSRLQWZKHUHWKH7UXVW%RDUGDQG0RQLWRUZHUHFRQ¿GHQWLQOLIWLQJWKH
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restrictions of national reporting of the Trust’s RTT performance. Following discussions with Monitor,
it was agreed that national reporting of the Trust RTT position would be suspended for a second time
until the Trust had validated all of the open pathways that had waited longer than 18 weeks, a task
which was achieved in mid-January. The Trust has worked closely with its regulators, external
stakeholders and support teams to ensure that it can reinstate national reporting for the 2016/17
¿QDQFLDO\HDU
*LYHQWKDWWKH7UXVWLVFXUUHQWO\LQDSHULRGRIQRQUHSRUWLQJLWLVQRWDEOHWRSURYLGH¿JXUHVKHUHIRU
2015/16.

Cancer Waiting Times Target
The Trust’s quarterly and annual performance of the national cancer targets is included in the table
below.
Table 1.2.2: Cancer waiting times performance
Indicator
2 week wait - all cancer
2 week wait - symptomatic
breast
GD\ZDLW¿UVWWUHDWPHQW
31-day wait - subsequent
treatment (surgery)
31-day wait - subsequent
treatment (drug treatment)
62-day wait - from urgent
GP referral
62-day wait - from
screening service
62-day wait - from
consultant upgrade

93%

Qtr 1
72.14%

Achievement
Qtr 2
Qtr 3
Qtr 4
90.04% 84.91% 95.37%

93%

74.23%

81.21%

85.51%

87.31%

83.46%

96%

95.06%

93.10%

93.05%

91.08%

92.94%

94%

93.85%

83.58%

89.83%

83.81%

88.80%

98% 100.00%

97.22%

97.06%

96.88%

98.13%

85%

78.95%

82.92%

75.12%

78.98%

90% 100.00% 100.00%

91.14%

84.69%

92.95%

72.73%

75.00%

72.16%

Target

Not set

78.20%

71.43%

69.77%

FY 2015/16
85.53%

Following a number of assessments and reports into the Trust’s cancer services during 2015/16, a
cancer remedial action plan was developed incorporating the recommendations of these reports. As
a result, the Trust developed and implemented a dedicated cancer patient tracker list from the third
quarter to provide Trust Board and management oversight.
Although performance against the cancer waiting time standards outlined by NHS England is
challenging, the Trust is assured of the data quality being reported and the Trust’s cancer services
are working with the clinical and management teams to address performance. The Trust has
addressed two week wait performance in the fourth quarter and is now delivering a performance,
which is consistently compliant with national standards. An independent review from the NHS
,QWHULP0DQDJHPHQWDQG6XSSRUW¶V,QWHQVLYH6XSSRUW7HDPLGHQWL¿HGVLJQL¿FDQWLPSURYHPHQWLQ
the management of the pathways, and the use of data and information to support managers in
ensuring patients are seen in a timely manner.

Trust Recovery Plan Key Performance Indicators
The success of the Trust Recovery Plan is being measured on a weekly basis using Key
Performance Indicators agreed with the CQC. The table below shows performance in the last week
of 2015/16. These KPIs will continue to be monitored in 2016/17.
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Table 1.2.3: Performance against Recovery Plan KPIs
CQC
Grouping

Measure

1. 4 hour access target performance

ED

April Target
(per week
unless stated)

Jan 16
Baseline

85.37%

2. Total time in Emergency Department
(80th percentile)

03:52:45

3. Total time in Emergency Department
(95th percentile)

08:56:56

4. % of ambulance patients seen within 15
minutes

37.20%

5. % of cohorted patients who comply with the
clinical criteria

35%

6. % of discharges from an acute bed pre noon
as % of total daily discharges

14%

Actual/
National
Target for
Benchmark
that week

88%

03:20:00

08:20:00

50%

50%

20%

w/c 28 March

Actual

75.5%

Target

88.6%

Actual

05:01:52

Target

03:39:28

Actual

09:56:00

Target

08:39:22

Actual

46.9%

Target

40.0%

Actual

100%

Target

43.75%

Actual

14.7%

Target

16.5%

Actual

74

Target

82

Actual

56.45

Target

46.0%

Actual

0

Target

2

Actual

0

Target

0

Actual

0

Target

2

Actual

100.0%

Target

93.0%

Actual

95.9%

Target

94.5%

Actual

106.56

Target

108

Actual

2

Target

N/A

Actual

65

Target

N/A

Actual

92.45%

Target

93.0%

Actual

90%

Target

85.0%

95%

03:00:00

04:00:00

70.00%

N/A

40%

Flow
7. Numbers of Medically Fit For Discharge
Length of Stay > 7 days

Frail Elderly

8. % of admitted patients over 80 years of age
put onto frail pathway
9. Number of serious incidents within ED
department including any relating to cohorted
patients

89

42%

3 per month

10. Never Events

0

11. Number of wards <90% NEWS compliance
(excluding ED)

Deteriorating
Patient

12. NEWS compliance for ED => 95%

13. NEWS compliance for all Inpatient Wards
=> 95%

14. HSMR rolling monthly

15. Reduction in In-hospital Cardiac Arrests

6DIH6WDI¿QJ

16. Total number of times nurse:patients ratio on
in-patient wards falls below 1:8

17. % of patients meeting two-week cancer target

4

92%

94%

<70

58%

1 per month

0

0

95%

95%

N/A

N/A

0

0

N/A

95%

N/A

109 (per
quarter)

106 (per
quarter)

100

N/A

N/A

N/A

115

85.23%

105

93%

N/A

93%

RTT-Cancer
18. % of Patient Tracker Lists signed by clinician
by tumour site
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Overview of Financial Performance
7KH\HDUHQGLQJ0DUFKKDVSURYHGH[WUHPHO\FKDOOHQJLQJ¿QDQFLDOO\IRUWKH7UXVWZLWKD
UHSRUWHGGH¿FLWRI PDOPRVW PDGYHUVHWRWKHSODQVHWDWWKHEHJLQQLQJRIWKH\HDU7KH
7UXVWGH¿FLWDIWHUUHYDOXDWLRQLPSDLUPHQWVRI PZDV P
7KH7UXVWUHFHLYHGFDVKVXSSRUWIRUUHYHQXHSXUSRVHVRI PLQ\HDUWRHQVXUHWKDWREOLJDWLRQV
of payments to creditors and salaries to staff could be met.

Income and Expenditure (Financial Performance)
The table below compares the original Trust income and expenditure plan to the outturn position.
Table 1.2.4: Income and Expenditure

Plan Plan
Actual

£000
£000
Income
Income
Expenditure
Expenditure
EBITDA
EBITDA
Depreciation
Depreciation
PDC
PDCDividend
Dividend
Other
OperatingExpenses
Expenses
Other Non
Non Operating
Deficit
post EBITDA
'H¿FLWSRVW(%,7'$
Revaluation Gains/(Losses)
Revaluation Gains/(Losses)
Deficit post Impairments
'H¿FLWSRVW,PSDLUPHQWV

249,961 249,961
255,017
-257,058 -257,058
-293,347
-7,097
-38,330
-7,097
-10,674 -10,674
-10,007
-4,134
-3,125
-4,134
-629
-1,052
-629
-22,534 -22,534
-52,514
0
-11,558
0
-22,534
-64,072
-22,534

Actual
Variance
£000

Variance


255,017
5,056
-293,347
-36,289
-31,233-38,330
667-10,007
1,009 -3,125
-423 -1,052
-29,980-52,514
-11,558
-11,558
-41,538
-64,072

5,056
-36,289
-31,233
-667
-1,009
-423
-29,980
-11,558
-41,538

Income
The majority of the Trust’s income is from Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) or NHS England
(NHSE) which is directly related to patient care. This equates to 91% of the total Trust income and
LQ\HDUH[FHHGHGWKHSODQE\ P7KHPDLQGULYHUVIRUWKLVZHUH
Ɣ

PQRQHOHFWLYHSDWLHQWDFWLYLW\DERYHSODQ

Ɣ

PHOHFWLYHLQSDWLHQWVEHORZSODQ

Ɣ

PSHQDOWLHVLQFOXGLQJ$ (SHUIRUPDQFHFDQFHUZDLWLQJWLPHVDQG577

Ɣ

PKLJKFRVWGUXJVDERYHSODQ WKLVPDLQO\RIIVHWVWKHFRUUHVSRQGLQJDGYHUVHYDULDQFH
for drugs expenditure).

Other operating income equates to 9% of the Trust total income and this includes education and
training, non-patient services to other bodies, research and development, parking and facilities
FKDUJHVWRRWKHU7UXVWV2WKHURSHUDWLQJLQFRPHZDV PORZHUWKDQSODQSULPDULO\HGXFDWLRQ
and training.
Expenditure
7KH7UXVWH[SHULHQFHGDVLJQL¿FDQWLQFUHDVHLQSD\FRVWVRI P,QFOXGHGZLWKLQWKHVHFRVWV
are the premium costs of using agency staff, whereas the plan was to recruit heavily into vacant
SRVLWLRQV)XUWKHUPRUHWKHLQFUHDVHGRYHUDOOVSHQGDOVRUHÀHFWVVLJQL¿FDQWDGGLWLRQDOLQYHVWPHQW
in the non-elective pathway following quality concerns raised by the CQC.
1RQSD\FRVWVDIWHUUHPRYDORISDVVWKURXJKFRVWVZHUH PKLJKHUWKDQSODQQHG.H\
IHDWXUHVZHUHGUXJV P FOLQLFDOVXSSOLHV P FRQVXOWDQF\±H[WHUQDOVXSSRUWSURFXUHGWR
DVVLVWZLWKVSHFL¿FSURMHFWVDQGZRUNVWUHDPVWRVXSSRUWWKH7UXVW5HFRYHU\3ODQ P  
XQGHOLYHUHGQRQSD\FRVWLPSURYHPHQWSURJUDPPHVRI P
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Capital Expenditure Plan
'XULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUWKH7UXVWLQYHVWHGMXVWRYHU PLQEXLOGLQJUHIXUELVKPHQW
replacement medical equipment, information technology and the general improvement of the fabric
RIWKHHVWDWH$URXQGRIWKLVH[SHQGLWXUH P ZDVLQYHVWHGLQWKHFRPSOHWLRQRIWKHODWHVW
VWDJHVRIWKH(PHUJHQF\'HSDUWPHQW (' UHIXUELVKPHQW7RGDWHDURXQG PLQWRWDOKDVEHHQ
spent on stages one to three of this project, which has so far been delivered on time and within
budget, and has already provided new and much improved facilities (see key developments during
2015/16 section above) within the Paediatric, Minors and Medway on Call Care (MedOCC)
sections. The ED refurbishment scheme is a cornerstone project in the transformation of care at
0HGZD\DQGZLOOQRWRQO\LPSURYHHPHUJHQF\IDFLOLWLHVEXWZLOODOVRHQDEOHDEHWWHUÀRZLQWRDQG
through the hospital for all Medway patients. The next stage of the project is to commence
imminently (see above). The overall aim of the project is to provide the best possible and future
proofed emergency facility for Medway patients.
Cash Flow and Balance Sheet
7KH7UXVWKDVUHFHLYHGFDVKVXSSRUWIRUUHYHQXHSXUSRVHVRI PLQ\HDUWRHQVXUHWKDW
obligations of payments to creditors and salaries to staff could be met. The revenue cash support
was in the form of a non-amortising loan.
$IXUWKHU PFDSLWDOVXSSRUWZDVUHFHLYHGIRUWKH(PHUJHQF\'HSDUWPHQWUHIXUELVKPHQW7KLVLV
SDUWRIWKHZLGHUFDSLWDOVFKHPHDSSURYHGE\0RQLWRUDQGWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWKRI P
7KH7UXVWHQGHGWKH\HDUZLWK PFDVKLQWKHEDQNDJDLQVWDSODQRI P7KLVDURVH
primarily due to early receipts from Commissioners following agreement in year on the 2015/16
SRVLWLRQ7KLVHQDEOHGXVWRUHSD\DZRUNLQJFDSLWDOIDFLOLW\RI PDIWHU\HDUHQG

Complaints
Medway NHS Foundation Trust welcomes feedback from patients and the opportunity to
investigate and learn when things have gone wrong or the patient has had a poor experience.
Formal complaints are a vital part of patient feedback and can indicate when a process or pathway
needs further attention or when services need improving. Action and learning from complaints is
essential in gaining the trust and respect of the local community, and ensuring that local people
FDQEHFRQ¿GHQWZKHQXVLQJWKHVHUYLFHVWKH7UXVWSURYLGHV
Complaints received by the Trust are assessed and logged as part of the NHS Complaints
Process. Where possible, complainants are contacted to discuss their concerns and to agree how
they would like their concerns to be managed. Advice is given on what the complainant can expect
from the Trust in terms of investigation and response.
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ITU

Car Parking

Audiology
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Other

Diabetes
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ENT
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ED
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Table 1.2.5: Number of complaints logged and investigated since 2001/02
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Table 1.2.6: Complaints by Speciality 2015/16
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Table 1.2.7: Complaints by speciality, compared with 2014/15

Emergency Department
Neurology
General Medicine
Dermatology
Elderly Care
Cardiology

2014/15
67
15
96
18
19
12

2015/16
76
15
96
23
14
18

Gastroenterology
Rheumatology
Obstetrics
Gynaecology
Paediatrics
Urology
Trauma & Orthopaedics
General Surgery
ENT
Pain/Anaesthetics
Vascular
Breast
Imaging
Pharmacy
Other
Diabetes
Pathology
Audiology
ITU
Orthotics
Car Parking

12
8
24
17
24
29
69
63
13
12
7
6
15
0
1
1
0
4
3
1
0

15
6
20
15
26
23
64
57
15
10
10
3
19
4
3
3
1
1
1
2
1

Increase/
decrease
from
previous
year
Ĺ
ļ
ļ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ļ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ļ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ĺ
Ĺ
Ĺ
Ĺ
Ļ
Ļ
Ĺ
Ĺ

Table 1.2.8: Complaints by theme 2015/16
Clinical Care
Out-patient delays
Communication
Admission & Discharge
Attitude
Other
In-patient delays
Patient’s Property
Consent
Equipment
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Complaints are ‘RAG’ rated according to their severity and risk. These are categorised as follows.
Table 1.2.9: RAG ratings of complaints

Red
Amber
Green

Quarter 1
0
79
47

Quarter 2
1
86
46

Quarter 3
5
86
39

Quarter 4
3
101
50

Handling of Complaints
In July, the Trust made a major change to the way complaints are investigated. Clinical directorates
now take responsibility for the investigation of complaints and drafting of responses, which the
central complaints team quality checks. This new process is still in its infancy and requires a review
to ensure that it provides a robust mechanism for the Trust to learn from complaints raised, and
improve its services. A review will be undertaken in due course.
In summer 2015/16, the Trust welcomed representatives from Hampshire Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust and Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust to share their experience of
complaints management as their processes are similar to the one introduced at Medway.
Themes and trends from complaints are reported to the Quality Assurance Committee, one of the
Board sub-committees, via a quarterly patient experience report. This report provides each
directorate with the opportunity to highlight complaints, where the outcome has led to a positive
change.

Case studies
Below are two examples of complaints raised and how the Trust responded.
Case Study 1
Child X was taken from his ward to have an x-ray only to be returned at the last minute to his ward
because it transpired that he did not require an x-ray. The cause of this error was that the child’s
hospital wristband, which contained his name and which could be cross-checked with his patient
records and treatment requirements, had been removed and put on a locker because he had sore
skin.
To ensure that this error does not happen again, a new checklist form has been implemented in the
paediatric ward, which ensures that at the start of every shift each child’s name band status is
recorded, identifying where it can be located if the child is not able to wear it for clinical or comfort
issues.
Case Study 2
A patient provided a semen sample for analysis after being advised to do so by his GP. This was
not analysed due to incorrect details having been written on the sample container by the patient.
The immediate remedy included an apology to the patient and reimbursement for the parking costs
he had incurred whilst delivering the sample. The investigation into the complaint found that the
patient’s GP surgery had provided out of date literature to him with regard to the provision of
samples and this had led him to incorrectly label the sample pot. As a result, the Trust provided
updated literature to all local GP surgeries to prevent a similar error from occurring again.
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The Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman (PHSO)
7KH3DUOLDPHQWDU\DQG+HDOWK6HUYLFH2PEXGVPDQKDGFDVHVUHIHUUHGWRWKHPLQWKLV¿QDQFLDO
year.
Table 1.2.10: The number of complainants referring their case to the Parliamentary and Health
Service Ombudsman 2012/13 to 2015/16

18
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

During the year, the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman investigated and closed 19
cases, including some raised in 2014/15. Of these, one case was upheld, eight were partly upheld
and 10 were not upheld.
By way of remedy, the Trust has paid compensation to six complainants with amounts ranging from
WR 
Some of the actions taken by the Acute and Continuing Care directorate and Co-ordinated Surgical
Care directorate as a result of these cases include:
Ɣ Additional training for staff with regard to wound care
Ɣ The addition of a chest pain tool in the Emergency Department
Ɣ More cohesive working with Medway Community Healthcare’s dietetic department
Ɣ Training for nurses in the use of ‘bridles’ to assist with the insertion of naso-gastric tubes in
patients requiring them
Ɣ Introduction of an “app” to monitor patients with acute kidney injury
Ɣ Adaptation of food diaries to include a free hand section for clinicians to add more
information
Ɣ Introduction of a discharge care plan
Ɣ /HDÀHWVDGYLVLQJKRZWRFRQWDFWDFRQVXOWDQW

In summary and looking ahead
Work to improve the complaints process will continue in 2016/17, with a focus on ensuring that
thorough investigations are done, that complainants are responded to in a timely way, and that
resolution is reached as soon as possible with a positive outcome for both the complainant and the
Trust.
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Patient Advice & Liaison Service
The Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) logged 4,083 concerns in 2015/16.
Pressure on the service means we no longer log all enquiries for general information,
which average an additional 30 enquiries a month.
Ɣ Admissions
The number of enquires relating to admissions decreased by 3.5% on the previous year.
86.5% of the enquiries are from patients wanting dates for their operations.
Ɣ Cancelled Operations
Concerns relating to cancelled operations were down 48% on the previous year.
Ɣ Clinical Care - Doctors
Concerns relating to the clinical care provided by doctors showed an overall decrease of
20.5% on the previous year.
Concerns relating to clinical care provided by nurses showed a small increase of just over 6%.
Ɣ Contact & Communication
Contact and communication encompasses concerns relating to outpatient appointments,
dates for admissions and requests for results where patients have tried to contact their
doctor/consultants’ secretary and have been unable to get through, or have not had their
calls returned. This is an escalating problem that accounts for upwards of 140 calls a month
inappropriately coming to PALS that should be dealt with by divisional secretaries or
schedulers. This is an increase of almost 73% on the previous year.
Ɣ Discharge Arrangements
PALS dealt with a total of 96 enquiries relating to patient discharge; this represents a
decrease of 13.5% on the previous year.
Ɣ Infection Issues
PALS only took one enquiry during the year relating to infection issues.
Ɣ Lost Property
There were 71 concerns relating to patients’ lost property; similar to the number dealt with in
the previous year.
Ɣ Outpatients
PALS took 1,158 enquiries relating to outpatient appointments. PALS are not able to book/
change appointments and a great deal of time is spent in trying to contact the relevant staff
to obtain a satisfactory outcome for the patient.
Ɣ Results
PALS took 257 enquiries from patients wanting to know test results; this is up 25% on the
previous year.
Ɣ Waiting Times
Concerns about waiting times were up 20% but encompass wait times in the Emergency
Department, Outpatient clinics, Imaging as well as wait for appointments and tests.
Although the majority of concerns PALS handle are dealt with over the phone, there has been an
increase of more than 28% in the number of patients who choose to contact us via email.
The majority of people who use PALS are happy with the service they receive and will often make
3$/6WKHLU¿UVWFKRLFHLIWKH\KDYHIXUWKHUFRQFHUQVHQTXLULHV
PALS work with the directorates to highlight and help resolve patients’ concerns, producing
monthly reports for each directorate to help facilitate change.
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Data and Quality Governance
The Trust put in place a new clinical governance framework on 1 April 2015. A new quality
improvement committee reports on all quality matters to the Board and a quality assurance
committee oversees all quality improvement and performance. The Trust has put in place a new
framework to manage operational performance, which is supported by improved performance
reporting. The corporate governance framework is currently under review with the terms of
reference of all operational committees being revised to align to the clinical governance framework.
In addition, the Trust has a new serious incident investigation framework that ensures that all
LQFLGHQWVDUHLGHQWL¿HGDQGWKDWWKRURXJKDQGUREXVWLQYHVWLJDWLRQVDUHFDUULHGRXW,PSRUWDQWO\DOO
of the frameworks are supported by learning events, communication to keep staff members
informed and monitoring of any relevant action plans.
Data Quality (DQ) was highlighted to the Trust as an area which required attention by the CQC
when they inspected in August 2015. This year has seen the introduction of two DQ Groups, the
DQ Management Group (DQMG) and the DQ User Group (DQUG).
The DQMG is the more strategic group, which looks at the available DQ reports and directs which
projects need to be worked on in more detail through the DQUG. The DQUG is the group that
PDQDJHVSURMHFWVDQGFDUULHVRXWWKHDFWLRQVUHTXLUHGWRLPSURYH'4LQVSHFL¿FDUHDVRIWKH7UXVW
Terms of reference have been set up and agreed for both groups, which report in to the Corporate
Informatics Group.
2015/16 has also seen the introduction of DQ reporting on a daily basis to operational service
teams to highlight issues which need addressing.
7KH7UXVWKDVVHWXSDKHDOWKLQIRUPDWLFVSURJUDPPHPDQDJHPHQWRI¿FHZKLFKKDVD'4SURMHFW
running within its remit. The DQ project is looking at building a data warehouse to create a single
version of the truth, where all data within the Trust can be stored. It will replace the current data
warehouses, which the Trust sources from the Kent and Medway Health Informatics Service, which
disbanded in March 2016.
The new data warehouse will allow a greater depth of intelligence to be added to performance
reporting. In addition, the Trust’s Business Intelligence team has set up a business partner model,
with each directorate having a named contact who is responsible for helping with any training
required on performance reporting and analysis.

Environmental performance
The Trust is committed to reducing its impact on the environment wherever possible, whilst at the
same time improving the quality of care for patients. It recognises that due to both the scale and
GLYHUVLW\RILWVRSHUDWLRQVLWKDVDVLJQL¿FDQWLPSDFWXSRQWKHHQYLURQPHQWDQGLVFRPPLWWHGWR
continually improving its environmental performance.
The Trust’s environmental impact is determined by factors such as its carbon emissions, waste
generation, and energy and water consumption. It has mandatory targets to reduce its carbon
footprint, including a 28% reduction of 2013 levels by 2020 and an 80% reduction of 1990 levels by
2050. The Trust has implemented a number of environmental initiatives in 2015/16; a
consequence of both its determination to improve environmental performance and of new
legislation.
Ɣ Waste disposal: in 2015/16, the Trust began to segregate waste in a more environmentally
friendly and cost-effective manner, ensuring that infectious and clinical waste materials are
sent separately for treatment and disposal. It reduced the frequency of its clinical waste
pickups from three times a week to twice weekly, thereby reducing carbon emissions
resulting from transportation as well as cost. The Trust recycles about 95% of its waste on
site and is planning to implement a waste food recycling system before the end of 2016/17.
Ɣ Energy: energy audits around the Trust highlight good practice and ideas for saving energy
and reducing carbon emissions. To comply with the mandatory Carbon Reduction
Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16
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&RPPLWPHQW(QHUJ\(I¿FLHQF\VFKHPHWKH7UXVWKDVHVWDEOLVKHGD6XVWDLQDELOLW\
Development Management Plan (SDMP) to enable it to analyse consumption around the
site. The SDMP framework has enabled the Trust to identify that there was a slight year-onyear decrease in gas consumption from a total of 47,117 MWh in 2014/15 to 46,210 MWh in
2015/16. Half of the Trust’s gas consumption went towards supplying the on-site combined
heat and power plant. The fact that the Trust uses environmentally-friendly gas and fuel oil
on site means that it is required to pay less in Climate Change Levy than it might otherwise
do if it used other types of fuel. During 2016/17, the Trust will be looking at sub-metering
every aspect of the hospital, so as to monitor accurately energy usage and carbon
emissions in each department.
Ɣ Water: The Trust uses dedicated digital water meters across the site. This allows water
consumption to be reviewed regularly and can highlight problems before they become a
major drain on resource or impact the Trust’s environmental footprint. In 2015/16, an
initiative called “Operation Check and Take Action” was launched, under which checks for
water leaks are made every week and action taken. This initiative has helped to save
money, and prevent environmental pollution.
Ɣ Sustainable Transport: the Trust has launched a cycle to work scheme. This is still in its
early stages but will be promoted more widely among staff during 2016/17. In 2016/17, the
Trust is considering rolling out the use of electric cars to transport patient and medical
equipment, beds and drugs around the site.

Community Relations
Maintaining strong relationships with the local community is an important priority for the Trust.
Regular meetings are held with local MPs and councillors to keep them informed of our progress
and performance. Representatives from the Trust regularly attend meetings of the local Health and
Wellbeing Board and our performance is monitored by the overview and scrutiny committees of
both Medway and Kent County Councils.
Regular communication takes place with the 11,000 Foundation Trust public members, most, but
not all of whom come from the local area. Opportunities are provided for them to hear about the
work the Trust is doing and an event was held in February 2016 to discuss the CQC report and to
receive feedback.
The Trust’s governors are just beginning a programme to engage more actively with the local
community and this will expand during 2016/17.
The Trust attached considerable importance, following the CQC report, to reassuring the local
community that the hospital was committed to improving. Its hospital newsletter, News @ Medway,
is aimed at the general public, as well as patients and staff, and the Trust dedicated a number of
features to elements of the Recovery Plan. News @ Medway has been distributed to a range of
community locations in Medway, and short articles have also been produced for council
publications aimed at residents in both Medway and Swale.
Finally, the Trust continues to engage with local education establishments to recruit healthcare and
RWKHUVWXGHQWVDQGWKLVKDVKHOSHGLWWRLQFUHDVHLWVDSSUHQWLFHVKLSSURJUDPPHVLJQL¿FDQWO\RYHU
2015/16.
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Future Developments
7KHIROORZLQJGHYHORSPHQWVKDYHWDNHQSODFHVLQFHWKHHQGRIWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Ɣ The continuation of the Trust’s Recovery Plan (see key developments during 2015/16
section above) which is designed to improve quality and care in the hospital, together with
ZRUNWRUHPHGLDWHWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ2Q$SULOWKH&4&SXEOLVKHGD
letter from the Chief Inspector of Hospitals, Professor Sir Mike Richards, to the Secretary of
State for Health, Rt Hon Jeremy Hunt MP, setting out his latest assessment of the Trust.
7KLVDVVHVVPHQWZDVEDVHGRQ¿HOGZRUNFDUULHGRXWE\WKH&4&DWWKHHQGRI0DUFK6LU
Mike’s assessment was that the Trust had made a number of improvements since the
CQC’s last inspection in August 2015, in relation to safety, leadership and staff engagement.
Ɣ The launch of a new vision and values for the Trust in April 2016, designed to set out the
Trust’s aspiration for the future, and to motivate staff. The vision is “Best of care: best of
people” and the values are:
Bold
Every person counts
Sharing and open
Together
A set of behaviours associated with these values is being rolled out in the early part of 2016/17.
Ɣ The start of work on the next phase of the refurbishment of the Emergency Department; the
building of a new area for patients requiring urgent care or whose condition is lifethreatening.
Ɣ The continuation of the development of a new strategy for the Trust, based around
partnerships with other stakeholders in the local health economy.

Overseas operations
The Trust does not have any overseas operations.

$V$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU,DPVDWLV¿HGWKDWWKLVSHUIRUPDQFHUHSRUWSURYLGHVDWUXHDQGDFFXUDWH
summary of the performance of the Trust during the year 2015/16.

Signed

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
26 May 2016
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Accountability Report

2.1 Directors’ Report
Board of Directors
Medway NHS Foundation Trust is run by a Board of Directors, comprising of a non-executive
chairman and up to six other non-executive directors and up to six executive directors. The Chief
Executive leads the executive team2 and is accountable to the Board for the operational delivery of
the Trust. The non-executive directors scrutinise the performance of the executive management
team in meeting agreed goals and objectives, receive adequate information and monitor
performance reporting. However, the Board is collectively responsible for the performance of the
Trust.
The Board meets monthly and its role is to determine the overall corporate and strategic direction
of the Trust and ensure the delivery of the Trust’s goals and targets.
The Board of Directors has reserved powers to itself covering:
Ɣ Regulation and control
Ɣ The determination of board committees and their membership
Ɣ Strategy, plans and budgets
Ɣ Policy determination
Ɣ Audit
Ɣ Annual Report and accounts
Ɣ Performance monitoring
2 The Director of Corporate Governance, Risk, Compliance & Legal, the Director of Communications and the Director
of Strategy and Partnerships are full members of the executive team but they are not members of the Board.
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The Board has an approved Scheme of Delegation which includes a schedule of items reserved to
the Board. In turn the Board delegates some of its powers to its committees. The arrangements for
delegation are set out in the Trust’s Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation. The Trust’s
&RQVWLWXWLRQDQGWHUPVRIUHIHUHQFHRIWKHVHFRPPLWWHHVDQGWKHLUVSHFL¿FSRZHUVDUHDSSURYHGE\
the Board of Directors. The Board committees are all assurance committees with the exception of
the Nominations and Remuneration Committee. The Board approves the terms of reference and
the appointments to each of these committees which it has formally constituted. All Board
committees have a non-executive chair.
During the year the Board has undertaken a programme of development to enhance its
effectiveness. At the conclusion of this process a board appraisal will be completed.

Decisions delegated to the Chief Executive
In November 2015 the Chief Executive’s Advisory Group (CEAG) was replaced by the Clinical
Executive Directors’ (CED) meeting. On 6 April 2016, meetings of the Executive Committee
replaced meetings of the CED. The Executive Group consists of clinical directors and executive
directors meeting fortnightly and is chaired by the Chief Executive. Its purpose is to ensure that the
objectives agreed by the Board are delivered and to analyse the activity and performance of the
Trust against the business plan to ensure that duties are appropriately delegated to the senior
management team and actions monitored. It also ensures that the key information from external
ERGLHVLVGLVFXVVHGDFWLRQVLGHQWL¿HGDQGPHVVDJHVGLVVHPLQDWHGDSSURSULDWHO\DFURVVWKH
organisation.

Directors of Medway NHS Foundation Trust 2015/16
Table 2.1.1: Current and past directors
Shena Winning
Dr Andrew Burnett1
Ewan Carmichael2
Stephen Clark3
Martin Jamieson
Jan Stephens
Tony Moore
Joanne Palmer4
Lesley Dwyer5
Dr Phillip Barnes6
Dr Paul Ryan7
Dr Ghada Ramadan8
Dr Kirti Mukherjee8
Dr Diana Hamilton-Fairley9
Dr Patricia Bain
Steve Beaumont10
Karen Rule11
Tim Bolot12
Darren Cattell13
Roberta Barker14
Rebecca Bradd15
Morag Jackson16
1.
2.

Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive
Medical Director and Acting Chief Executive
Acting Medical Director
Acting Medical Director
Acting Medical Director
Interim Medical Director
&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
Chief Nurse
Interim Director of Nursing
Interim Director of Finance
Interim Director of Finance
Director of Workforce
Acting Director of Workforce
&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU

Andrew Burnett, non-executive director, left the Trust on 30 September 2015.
Ewan Carmichael was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 September 2015.

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

32

Directors’ Report
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

Stephen Clark was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 January 2016.
Joanne Palmer was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 September 2015.
Lesley Dwyer was appointed as Chief Executive on 18 May 2015.
Phillip Barnes was acting Chief Executive between 27 June 2014 and 17 May 2015.
Paul Ryan was Acting Medical Director between 15 September 2014 and 29 April 2015.
Ghada Ramadan and Kirti Mukherjee were Acting Medical Directors between 29 April 2015
and 19 October 2015.
Diana Hamilton-Fairley was appointed Interim Medical Director on 19 October 2015
Steve Beaumont, Chief Nurse, left the Trust on 1 November 2015.
Karen Rule was appointed as Interim Director of Nursing on 19 October 2015.
Tim Bolot, Interim Director of Finance, left the Trust on 24 December 2015.
Darren Cattell was appointed as Interim Director of Finance on 25 January 2016.
Roberta Barker, Director of Workforce, left the Trust on 5 February 2016.
Rebecca Bradd was appointed as Acting Director of Workforce on 8 February 2016.
0RUDJ-DFNVRQ&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHUOHIWWKH7UXVWRQ1RYHPEHU

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors are appointed for a period of three years and can be appointed for a
further period of three years.
Arrangements for the appointment and termination of appointment of non-executive directors are
set out in the Trust’s Constitution. The Constitution states that the Council of Governors has the
power to appoint and remove the Chairman of the Trust and other non-executive directors.
Removal can only happen if three quarters of the Council of Governors members approve the
motion.
All non-executive directors are considered to be independent by the Board of Directors as per
Monitor’s3 Code of Governance for NHS Foundation Trusts.
During the year appraisals were carried out for the non-executives. The appraisals were carried out
by the Shena Winning, the Chair. The outcomes of these appraisals were received by the
Governors’ Nominations and Remuneration Committee in 2016.
The Senior Independent Director is responsible for appraising the Chair’s performance and it is for
the Council of Governors to agree the process by which the appraisal is undertaken. Martin
Jamieson, Senior Independent Director, has undertaken an appraisal of Shena Winning during the
¿QDQFLDOSHULRGDQGWKLVKDVEHHQVKDUHGZLWKWKH&RXQFLORI*RYHUQRUV

Executive team
In compliance with Monitor’s Code of Governance, no executive director holds more than one
non-executive directorship of an NHS Foundation Trust or other organisation of comparable size
and complexity.
During the last 12 months there have been considerable changes to the Board of Directors, with
some of these being interim appointments and some permanent directors moving on to pursue
other employment opportunities. The Board has given careful consideration to the range of
experience and the skills required to run an NHS Foundation Trust. Following the recruitment of
Lesley Dwyer as a permanent Chief Executive to the Trust in May 2015, an experienced executive
team was then recruited during Q3/Q4.
Appraisals have not yet been carried out for the current executive team in place as the majority of
the executive directors started in the latter part of 2015/16.
3 As of 1 April 2016, Monitor has been replaced by NHS Improvement
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Board Directors in post on 31 March 2016
Shena Winning

(Trust Chairman and Non-Executive Director)

Shena Winning was appointed to the Board of Medway NHS
Foundation Trust on 1 December 2013 as a non-executive director.
Shena’s role as Trust chair commenced on 8 September 2014.
Shena is a Chartered Accountant with more than 30 years’
commercial experience gained in the retail sector, latterly as CFO for
Carpetright plc.
Over the past 12 years, Shena has been engaged in a portfolio of
consultancy and non-executive positions in listed, mutual, charitable
and public sector organisations.
Notably, she was a non-executive director and chair of the audit
FRPPLWWHHIRU6ZDOORZ¿HOGSOFIURP2FWREHUWR)HEUXDU\
and non-executive chair of the board from March 2005 to April 2011.
+HU¿UVWH[SHULHQFHRIZRUNLQJZLWKWKH1+6ZDVDVDQRQH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUDQGFKDLURIWKHDXGLW
committee for South East Coast Community Health Trust from March 1996 to September 1998.
She was appointed as a non-executive director and chair of audit committee at Queen Victoria
NHS Foundation Trust in October 2003, following grant of foundation trust status, and continued to
sit on the board until March 2014.
Shena was also appointed as a strategic advisor to South London Commissioning Support Unit on
1 January 2014, and served in this position up until November 2015.
Membership of Committees: Nominations & Remuneration Committee (Chair)

Ewan Carmichael (Non-Executive Director)
Major General Ewan Carmichael was appointed as a non-executive
director on 1 September 2015.
Ewan is a dentist and retired senior British ArmyRI¿FHU+HHPEDUNHG
on his military career in 1980 when he was commissioned into
the Royal Army Dental Corps as a second lieutenant.
In what was a distinguished career in the military, Ewan led the Army
Medical Services when they achieved their best operational casualty
survival rate in recorded history - halving the operational death rate.
During his career, he commanded 2 Medical Brigade, directing the
British Army’s Field Hospitals for service simultaneously in Iraq and Afghanistan.
When he led the Army Medical Services Training Centre, it was recognised as ‘the world leader’ of
its kind. He founded the Air Assault Medical Regiment, and presided over seven operational
deployments, including providing medical support to two successful hostage rescues missions.
Ewan was promoted to Commander of the Order of the British Empire (CBE) in the 2014 Birthday
Honours, and also awarded an MBE for Squadron leadership in the First Gulf War.
In addition to his military career, Ewan is a Fellow of the Royal Colleges of Physicians and
Surgeons of Glasgow, former Honorary Dental Surgeon to the Queen and a Commissioner of the
Royal Hospital Chelsea.
Ewan retired from the British Army in January 2015.
Membership of committees: Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Quality Assurance
Committee (Chairman)
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Stephen Clark (Non-Executive Director)
Stephen Clark was appointed as a non-executive director on 1
January 2016.
Stephen has over 40 years’ experience in wealth management,
investment banking, stockbroking and fund management. He has
EHHQ&KLHI([HFXWLYHRIWKUHHVLJQL¿FDQW¿QDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV
Oppenheimer International, Gerrard Investment Management and
Moscow Narodny Bank/VTB Capital, where he became Chairman.
He is a non-executive director of Nutmeg, the on line investment
management business. Stephen is an Honours Graduate in Financial Services from University of
Manchester Institute of Science and Technology (UMIST), a former Visiting Fellow at Manchester
%XVLQHVV6FKRRODVZHOODVDTXDOL¿HGEDQNHUDQG&KDUWHUHG)HOORZRIWKH&KDUWHUHG,QVWLWXWHIRU
Securities and Investment.
His activities include, Pro-Chancellor and Chair of Governors at Canterbury Christ Church
University, Vice Chairman, Marshalls Charity (Church of England), Chairman, 3H Fund, and Senior
Adviser and Chairman of the Disciplinary Panel, Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment.
Stephen is also a member of Henley Business School Strategy Board and acts as a business mentor
under the London First Leadership Exchange scheme.
Membership of committees: Nominations & Remuneration Committee, Integrated Audit
Committee

Martin Jamieson (Non-Executive Director)
Martin Jamieson was appointed as a non-executive director on 22
December 2010.
Starting as a sales and marketing professional, Martin has worked
within the pharmaceutical and medical device industry for the
majority of his career. Over the past 16 years, he held a number of
managing director roles within Smiths Group (an FTSE 100
company), notably as managing director for Portex Limited and
Smiths Medical International Limited, which both have their
headquarters in Kent.
Throughout this period, Martin was responsible for the commercial activity, manufacturing
operations and research and development for the business in over 100 international markets.
These included Europe, USA, Japan and increasingly China and India. As a result, he has
extensive experience of a large number of healthcare systems across the world, not least the NHS.
Outside Martin’s daily working life, he has been deputy and then chairman of the
Confederation of British Industry (CBI) in the South East. For over ten years, Martin was also a
director of the Smiths Industries pension fund. He then joined Country Land and Business
Association as director general.
Martin was then appointed as chief executive at Rayner Intraocular Lenses. Rayner has an
unparalleled history of uninterrupted manufacture of acrylic implants for cataract surgery for over
sixty years. Martin has since left Rayner and is pursuing other professional interests.
Membership of committees: Integrated Audit Committee (Chair), Investment & Contracts
Committee, Charitable Funds Committee and Nominations and Remuneration Committee.

35

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Directors’ Report
Tony Moore (Non-Executive Director)
Tony Moore was appointed a designate non-executive director on 1
December 2013, and formally appointed to the Board on 1 April
2014.
7RQ\LVDTXDOL¿HGFKDUWHUHGDFFRXQWDQW,Q$SULO7RQ\
relinquished his full-time position as vice-president Europe, Middle
East and Africa with Kimberly-Clark Corporation. Tony has
undertaken a wide range of operational and strategic leadership
roles during his 35 year career across a range of manufacturing
industries.
Additionally, Tony was Director and Chairman of Kimberly-Clark Pension Trust Limited for eight
years, and has served as a Director of the Valley Invicta Academy Trust based in Maidstone, Kent.
Membership of committees: Investment & Contracts Committee (Chair), Charitable Funds
Committee (Chair), Integrated Audit Committee and Nominations & Remuneration Committee.

Joanne Palmer (Non-Executive Director)
Jo Palmer was appointed a non-executive director on 1 September
2015.
-RKDVRYHU\HDUV¶H[SHULHQFHLQEDQNLQJDQG¿QDQFLDOVHUYLFHV
background across a range of disciplines.
Since joining Lloyds Banking Group in 2000, Jo has held a number
of senior executive positions covering major transformation,
acquisition, integration programmes and large-scale operations.
She was part of the management team that recommended and delivered the sale and carve -out of
the Lloyds TSB Registrars business into private equity ownership in 2007. Jo transferred with the
EXVLQHVVDV&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHUIRU(TXLQLWL*URXSUHWXUQLQJWR/OR\GV%DQNLQJ*URXSLQ
Jo currently has executive accountability for divested businesses including the ongoing service
provision for Sainsbury’s Bank and the newest UK Bank, TSB. She is leading the design of the
service provision arrangements for the new ring-fenced banking and resolution regulations. She
also has executive accountability for all aspects of the Group’s extensive property portfolio
LQFOXGLQJKHDGRI¿FHVEUDQFKQHWZRUNGDWDFHQWUHVDQGRWKHUFULWLFDOIDFLOLWLHV
Jo is the Executive Sponsor for emerging talent across the 20,000 colleagues within Lloyds
Banking Group Operations, and is a member of the national committee for the Group’s women’s
network, Breakthrough. She is also an active executive sponsor of inclusion and diversity activities
across Lloyds Banking Group.

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

36

Directors’ Report
Jan Stephens (Non-Executive Director)
Jan Stephens was appointed as a non-executive director on 1
August 2011 and re-appointed in August 2014.
Jan joined Kent Police in 1975 and served for around 36 years as a
SROLFHFDGHWSROLFHRI¿FHUDQGWKHQDVDSROLFHPDQDJHUXQWLO
November 2011. She worked in the Medway towns as a police
RI¿FHURQIRXURFFDVLRQV¿QDOO\VHUYLQJDV0HGZD\¶VDUHD
commander (chief superintendent) in 2006 before retiring in 2008.
Jan also served in Swale as area commander between 2001 and
2003. Her policing career was varied including senior police management roles covering uniform
operations, crime investigations, crime reduction and partnership working. After retiring, Jan was
appointed as Kent Police’s policy and governance manager.
Jan has lived in Medway since 1988 and is a trustee of Medway Youth Trust - a charity delivering
employment and career guidance services together with other development opportunities for young
people.
As part of her role at the Trust, Jan is currently representing the non-executive directors on a
committee specially set up to establish the feasibility of Medway Maritime Hospital becoming a
smoke-free site.
Membership of committees: Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Quality Assurance
Committee, Investment & Contracts Committee, Charitable Funds Committee and Integrated Audit
Committee and non-executive lead for security.

Lesley Dwyer (Chief Executive)
Lesley Dwyer was appointed as Chief Executive on 18 May 2015.
Lesley is a highly experienced executive manager with more than 30
years’ experience across the public health system.
Prior to taking up the role as Chief Executive, Lesley held senior
executive roles in government and health services within the
Australian Health System.
Lesley has worked in a number of roles at times of reform and
challenge in large multi-site tertiary and quaternary organisations,
including Victoria, South Australia.
Lesley’s most recent role in Australia was Chief Executive of West Moreton Hospital and Health
Service in Queensland. It is here where Lesley led the turnaround of a failing health service to that
of a high performing integrated health system.
Through these roles, Lesley has gained a complete understanding and experience of public sector
accountabilities, effective governance and performance frameworks, which have ensured the
effectiveness and quality of services delivered.
Lesley has extensive experience and knowledge gained within primary, community and tertiary
healthcare settings, working collaboratively across agencies and jurisdictions. She has led
multi-faceted change and improvement programs aimed at raising organisational performance,
and integrating service delivery across entire healthcare systems.
/HVOH\¶VFOLQLFDOEDFNJURXQGLVLQQXUVLQJ6KHKDVWHUWLDU\TXDOL¿FDWLRQVLQKHDOWKPDQDJHPHQWDV
well as being a Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
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Patricia Bain &KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUIRUPHUO\'LUHFWRU
of Health Informatics)
7ULVKDZDVDSSRLQWHGDV&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHURQ0DUFK
Prior to this, she was appointed as Director of Health Informatics on 1
October 2014.
Trisha was born in North Yorkshire and moved to Nottinghamshire to
complete her degree. After graduating in Human Biology, Trisha
worked for Nottingham Medical School as a health service
researcher, and completed her PhD related to the epidemiology of
injury prevention. This included developing an NHS data collection
methodology.
After working at a community trust as head of research and effectiveness, Trisha then worked at
the former Commission for Healthcare Improvement (CHI) as a regional manager. She was then
seconded to a small team, working with the Chief Executive of CHI, as programme manager to
develop the new clinical governance assessment processes and information data collection
methods for the renewed regulatory process.
Following this secondment, Trisha worked at the National Patient Safety Agency as a regional
manager, developing national patient safety solutions. Trisha was instrumental in turning around an
electronic patient record (EPR) implementation in her role as Executive Director for Health
Informatics.

Rebecca Bradd (Acting Director of Workforce)
Rebecca Bradd was appointed as Acting Director of Workforce in
February 2016.
Rebecca has worked at Medway NHS Foundation Trust since 2004
and has undertaken a number of HR roles during her time at the
Trust, most recently in June 2014 as Deputy Director of Workforce.
Rebecca is a Chartered Member of the Chartered Institute of
Personnel and Development, and was awarded a Distinction for her
Masters in Human Resource Management in 2013.
As part of her current role, Rebecca recently led the launch of the Trust’s new Vision and Values
DQGLQWURGXFHGWKHQHZ7HPSRUDU\6WDI¿QJVHUYLFH
In her current role, Rebecca provides strategic leadership on the workforce agenda.

Darren Cattell (Interim Director of Finance)
Darren joined Medway Foundation Trust in late January 2016 as the
interim Director of Finance.
'DUUHQLVDTXDOL¿HG$FFRXQWDQWZLWKRYHUWZHQW\\HDUV¶H[SHULHQFHLQ
the NHS.
'DUUHQKDVDZHDOWKRIH[SHULHQFHLQ¿QDQFLDOO\FKDOOHQJHG1+6
RUJDQLVDWLRQV'DUUHQ¶VPRUHUHFHQWH[SHULHQFHLQFOXGHV¿QDQFLDO
turnaround work in Foundation Trusts in breach of licence, as well as
WKHGHYHORSPHQWDQGLPSOHPHQWDWLRQRI¿QDQFLDOUHFRYHU\SODQV
ZKHQDWUXVWIDFHVVHYHUH¿QDQFLDOGLI¿FXOWLHV
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Dr Diana Hamilton-Fairley (Interim Medical Director)
Diana Hamilton-Fairley was appointed Interim Medical Director on 19
October 2015, as part of the Trust’s buddying agreement with Guy’s
and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust (GSTT).
Diana has been a Consultant Obstetrician and Gynaecologist at
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust (GSTT) since 1996,
and has recently been promoted to Director of Education
Transformation.
Diana was Clinical Director for Women’s Services and Deputy Acting
Medical Director at GSTT between 2004 and 2011, and Head of the London School for Obstetrics
and Gynaecology between 2008 and 2011.
Diana was previously joint Director of Quality and Education for Health Education South London
(South London LETB) between 2013 and 2014.
As Dean of secondary care specialities at the London Deanery from 2011-2013, Diana led on
commissioning and quality management of commissioned and non-commissioned postgraduate
medical education.
Diana was elected as the London Fellow’s representative for the Council of The Royal College of
Obstetricians and Gynaecologists (RCOG) in July 2011. She is an appointed member of the
London Clinical Senate Council.
Through the buddying agreement with GSTT, Diana is aware of how hard staff work and their
dedication to patient care. Diana continues to work with staff and patients at Medway Maritime
Hospital to improve patient outcomes and experience.

Karen Rule (Interim Director of Nursing)
Karen Rule was appointed as Deputy Chief Nurse in October 2014.
She was appointed Interim Director of Nursing in October 2015.
Karen possesses a wealth of experience in a variety of challenging
nursing roles, predominantly in acute medicine. Karen trained as a
registered nurse at Guy’s Hospital, qualifying in 1985. Before Karen
arrived at Medway NHS Foundation Trust, she was the Directorate
Head of Nursing for Ambulatory Care Services at Guy’s and St
Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.
As part of this role, Karen led successful clinical and non-clinical workforce and service
UHFRQ¿JXUDWLRQVIRUDQXPEHURIVWUDWHJLFGHYHORSPHQWVZLWKLQWKHGLUHFWRUDWHLQFOXGLQJWKH
implementation of a seven day service in sexual health.
In her current role, Karen provides professional leadership to nurses and midwives in the Trust,
DQGZRUNVFORVHO\ZLWKWKH0HGLFDO'LUHFWRUDQG&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUWRGHOLYHUWKH7UXVW¶V4XDOLW\
Strategy. This ensures the Trust provides, and will continue to provide, safe, effective and
compassionate patient care.
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Board Appointments - Directors who left the Trust during 2015/16
Roberta Barker
(left the Trust on 5 February 2016)
(Director of Workforce)
Steve Beaumont
(left the Trust on 1 November 2015)
(Chief Nurse)
Tim Bolot
(left the Trust on 24 December 2015)
(Interim Director of Finance)
Andrew Burnett
(left the Trust on 30 September 2015)
(Non Executive Director)
Morag Jackson
(left the Trust on 11 November 2015)
&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU
Table 2.1.2: Attendance at Board of Directors’ meetings in 2015/16
Member

Total

Patricia Bain

12 of 12

Roberta Barker

9 of 10

Phillip Barnes

1 of 2

Steve Beaumont

6 of 6

Tim Bolot

8 of 9

Andrew Burnett

5 of 6

Rebecca Bradd

2 of 2

Ewan Carmichael

6 of 7

Darren Cattell

2 of 3

Stephen Clark

3 of 3

Lesley Dwyer

10 of 11

Diana Hamilton-Fairley

6 of 6

Morag Jackson

5 of 7

Martin Jamieson

9 of 12

Tony Moore

12 of 12

Kirti Mukherjee

5 of 6

Joanne Palmer

5 of 7

Ghada Ramadan

1 of 1

Karen Rule

7 of 7

Jan Stephens

12 of 12

Shena Winning

12 of 12

During 2015/16 there were 12 Board meetings.
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Board of Directors’ Register of Interests
Under the terms of the Trust’s Constitution, the Board of Directors are individually required to
declare any interest, as soon as they become aware of it, which may under the terms of the
FRQVWLWXWLRQFRQÀLFWZLWKWKHLUDSSRLQWPHQWDVDGLUHFWRURI0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW
A register of the directors’ interests is available to the public via the Trust’s website www.medway.
nhs.uk or on request from the Trust Secretary, Medway NHS Foundation Trust, Medway Maritime
Hospital, Windmill Road, Gillingham, Kent ME7 5NY. Details are also set out in the biographies
within this report.

Development of Working Relationships with the Council of Governors
The Board of Directors and the Council of Governors have development/discussion sessions to
discuss particular areas of interest and concern. With the considerable challenges facing the Trust,
these sessions enable the views of both the Board of Directors and Council of Governors to be
shared and thus improve the considerable understanding of the issues facing the Trust, and are
therefore considered invaluable to all concerned.

Committees of the Trust Board
Integrated Audit Committee
Members

Committee role

Attendance

Martin Jamieson (Non-executive director)

Chairman

6 out of 7

Tony Moore (Non-executive director)

Member

7 out of 7

Jan Stephens (Non-executive director)

Member

6 out of 7

Stephen Clark (Non-executive director)

Appointed 1 January 2016

1 out of 1

The Integrated Audit Committee (IAC), which consists of not less than three non-executive
directors of the Trust, is required to meet at least four times a year and provides the Board with an
LQGHSHQGHQWDQGREMHFWLYHYLHZRQLWV¿QDQFLDODQGQRQ¿QDQFLDOV\VWHPV¿QDQFLDODQGQRQ
¿QDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQDQGFRPSOLDQFHZLWKODZVJXLGDQFHDQGUHJXODWLRQVJRYHUQLQJWKH1+6)RXU
meetings plus three extraordinary meetings were scheduled in order to provide adequate
assurance to the Board. The IAC provided a report to the Board after every meeting and an update
to the Council of Governors.
The Committee’s main responsibility is to provide the Board with assurances in respect of
governance, risk management and internal control and effective systems across the whole of the
organisation’s activities (both clinical and non-clinical) that support the achievement of the
RUJDQLVDWLRQ¶VREMHFWLYHV7KH&RPPLWWHHFRQVLGHUHGVLJQL¿FDQWLVVXHVLQUHODWLRQWR¿QDQFLDO
statements, operations and compliance, as well as how to address these matters. The
effectiveness of the external audit process and the appointment of external auditors are also within
the remit of the Committee.
Internal Auditors report to every meeting of the IAC to provide relevant assurances regarding the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. The IAC carries out an annual review of the
adequacy of internal audit. External auditors attend every meeting of the IAC to provide progress
reports and actions taken as part of the annual audit plan. They also contribute to discussions on
systems and processes.
Counter fraud specialists report to every meeting of the IAC to provide an update on current or new
fraud cases and actions taken as a result of those cases.
As is normal practice, during 2015/16 the Audit Committee signed off the Annual Audit plan for
Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and the proposed External Audit work plan. Regular progress reports
were presented to each Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee also received Internal Audit reports in the following four areas:
Ɣ &RUH¿QDQFLDOV\VWHPV
Ɣ 7HPSRUDU\VWDI¿QJ
Ɣ Activity and income reporting under the OASIS Patient Administration System
Ɣ Health informatics and data quality assurance
7KHUHSRUWVSURYLGHGVRPHGHJUHHRIDVVXUDQFHDQGLGHQWL¿HGUHFRPPHQGDWLRQVIRULPSURYHPHQW
that have been accepted by the Executive. The Audit Committee were assured that the actions
LGHQWL¿HGZRXOGOHDGWRWKHUHTXLUHGLPSURYHPHQWV
The Audit Committee also received the Annual Internal Audit report, the Head of Internal Audit
Opinion, the Annual Governance Statement, the Annual Counter Fraud report and the External
Audit Opinions on the Financial Accounts and the Quality Account and recommended acceptance
to the Trust Board.

Quality Assurance Committee (previously Quality Committee)
Members

Committee role

Attendance

Ewan Carmichael (Non-executive director)

Chairman from October 2015

4 out of 4

Andrew Burnett (Non-executive director)

Chairman until September 2015

6 out of 6

Jan Stephens (Non-executive director)

Member

10 out of 10

Lesley Dwyer (Chief Executive)

Member from May 2015

4 out of 8

Karen Rule (Interim Director of Nursing)

Member from October 2015

3 out of 3

Steve Beaumont (Chief Nurse)

Member until September

5 out of 6

Paul Ryan (Interim Medical Director)

Member until April 2015

1 out of 1

Ghada Ramadan (Interim Medical Director)

Member from May 2015 until
September 2015
Member from 19 October 2015

4 out of 4

Diana Hamilton-Fairley (Interim Medical
Director)

3 out of 4

During the year there were 10 meetings.
The Quality Assurance Committee, which consists of no less than two non-executive directors of
the Trust, one acting as Chair, the Chief Executive, the Medical Director and the Director of
1XUVLQJPHHWVRQDPRQWKO\EDVLV,WLVDOVRUHJXODUO\DWWHQGHGE\WKH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
directors of clinical operations and deputy directors of nursing.
The Quality Assurance Committee ensures an integrated and co-ordinated approach to the
development and monitoring of the quality metrics (patient safety, patient experience and clinical
effectiveness) at a corporate level, it leads on the monitoring of quality systems within the Trust to
ensure that quality is a key component of all activities within the Trust, and assures compliance
with regulatory requirements and best practice with patient safety, patient experience and clinical
effectiveness. The Committee regularly receives assurance and seeks further guidance or actions
on:
Ɣ Reports on serious incidents
Ɣ Infection control report
Ɣ Outcomes from Clinical Audit
Ɣ Compliance with NICE guidance and Safety Alerts
Ɣ Reports on complaints and other matters relating to the experience of our patients.
The Quality Assurance Committee provides a report to the Board of Directors after every meeting
on its activities which includes reports on infection control.
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Finance and Performance Committee (formerly Trust Recovery Group)
Members

Committee role

Attendance

Shena Winning (Chairman)

Chairman

12 out of 12

Ewan Carmichael (Non-executive director)

Member from September 2015

3 out of 6

Stephen Clark (Non-executive director)

Member from January 2016

3 out of 3

Martin Jamieson (Non-executive director)

Member

10 out of 12

Tony Moore (Non-executive director)

Member

12 out of 12

Joanne Palmer (Non-executive director)

Member from September 2015

3 out of 6

Jan Stephens (Non-executive director)

Member

11 out of 12

During the year, the Finance and Performance Committee, consisting of the non-executive
directors, met on a monthly basis and provided the Trust Board with assurance that the Trust
VWUDWHJ\¿QDQFLDOIRUHFDVWVSODQVDQGRSHUDWLRQDOSHUIRUPDQFHZHUHEHLQJFRQVLGHUHGLQGHWDLO

Investment and Contracts Committee
Members

Committee role

Attendance

Tony Moore (Non-executive director)

Chairman

5 of 5

Jan Stephens (Non-executive director)

Member

5 of 5

Martin Jamieson (Non-executive director)

Member

3 of 5

Tim Bolot (Interim Director of Finance)

Member until December 2015

4 of 4

Darren Cattell (Interim Director of Finance)

Member from January 2016

1 of 1

0RUDJ-DFNVRQ &KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU

Member until November 2015

3 of 3

The purpose of the committee is to provide independent and objective assurance to the Trust
%RDUGUHJDUGLQJ7UXVWLQYHVWPHQWVDQGVLJQL¿FDQWFRQWUDFWVDQGWRUHFHLYHDQGFRQVLGHUSURSRVDOV
IRUDOOVLJQL¿FDQWLQYHVWPHQWVSULRUWRDSSURYDOE\WKH7UXVW%RDUGLQFOXGLQJVHUYLFHGHYHORSPHQW
and capital investment.
The committee meets quarterly and more often where there is a need to consider urgent issues.
The Investment and Contracts Committee’s membership includes no fewer than three NonExecutive Directors, including the Committee Chair, and the Director of Finance. Attendees
include Executive Directors and/or Clinical Divisional Representative where appropriate, and where
QHFHVVDU\DUHSUHVHQWDWLYH V IURPWKH'LUHFWRUDWHVWRFRPPHQWRQVSHFL¿FLQYHVWPHQWLVVXHV
The Chairman of the Trust has an open invitation to attend Committee meetings and would be
expected to attend at least one meeting annually.
The Investment & Contracts Committee provides a verbal report to the Board of Directors after
every meeting on its activities.
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Nominations and Remuneration Committee
Members

Committee role

Attendance

Shena Winning (Chairman)

Chair

5 out of 5

Andrew Burnett (Non-executive director)

Member until September 2015

2 out of 2

Ewan Carmichael (Non-executive director)

Member from September 2015

2 out of 3

Stephen Clark (Non-executive director)

Member from January 2016

1 out of 2

Martin Jamieson (Non-executive director)

Member

3 out of 5

Tony Moore (Non-executive director)

Member

3 out of 5

Joanne Palmer (Non-executive director)

Member from September 2015

3 out of 3

Jan Stephens (Non-executive director)

Member

4 out of 5

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee membership consists of the chair and nonexecutives. The Committee is chaired by the Trust Chairman.
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the composition, balance, skill mix and succession
planning of the Board, the appointment of the Executive Directors, and monitoring the level and
structure of other senior managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive. The Committee also
UHYLHZVWKHDQQXDO%RDUG6HOI&HUWL¿FDWLRQVXEPLVVLRQLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRI
Monitor.
The Committee also has responsibility for reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board on an annual basis, and makes recommendations to the Board and Council of Governors for
change. Directors have individual appraisals and professional development reviews.
Following a benchmarking exercise which took place to market test the remuneration levels of
executive pay, a report was sent to the Nominations and Remuneration Committee which
concluded that executive salaries were consistent with the benchmark data and this continues to
be used in reviewing the remuneration structure.

Council of Governors Summary
Council of Governors
The Council is made up of elected and appointed Governors who provide an important link
between the Trust, local people and key stakeholder organisations. They share information and
YLHZVWKDWFDQLQÀXHQFHDQGVKDSHWKHZD\WKDWVHUYLFHVDUHSURYLGHGE\WKH7UXVWDQGWKH\ZRUN
together with the Board of Directors to ensure that the Trust delivers a high quality of healthcare
ZLWKLQDVWULFWIUDPHZRUNRIJRYHUQDQFHZKLOVWDFKLHYLQJ¿QDQFLDOEDODQFHDQGSODQQLQJIRUWKH
future.
There are 25 seats on the Council of Governors, 19 of which are elected public and staff member
representatives and six are appointed by the partner organisations. A full breakdown of the
Council of Governors is detailed later in the report.
All public and staff governors are elected for a maximum term of three years and are able to seek
re-election.
The public governors each represent a constituency. Medway Constituency has nine public
governors; Swale Constituency has four public governors; Rest of England and Wales has one
public governor.
7KHVWDIIJRYHUQRUVDUHHOHFWHGWRUHSUHVHQWVWDIILQHDFKGLUHFWRUDWHRIZKLFKWKHUHDUH¿YHLQWKH
Trust: nursing and midwifery; allied health professionals, medical and dental; non-clinical; and
management.
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3DUWQHUJRYHUQRUVDUHQRPLQDWHGE\WKHLURUJDQLVDWLRQDQGVHUYHDWHUPRIRI¿FHRIWKUHH\HDUV
These governors can be replaced by their organisation during this time and existing
representatives can be nominated to serve further terms of three years.
Governors are required to attend regular meetings of the Council of Governors – normally at least
¿YHD\HDUZKLFKLQFOXGHVWKH$QQXDO0HPEHUV¶0HHWLQJ([WUDRUGLQDU\PHHWLQJVDUHDOVRKHOG
from time to time when an urgent decision is required outside of the normal schedule of meetings.
7KHJRYHUQRUVKDYHVRPHVSHFL¿FVWDWXWRU\UHTXLUHPHQWVWRIXO¿O7KHVHLQFOXGHWR
Ɣ Hold the non-executive directors individually and collectively to account for the performance
of the board of directors;
Ɣ Represent the interests of the members of the Trust as a whole and the interests of the
public;
Ɣ Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the chairman and non-executive directors;
Ɣ Approve (or not) the appointment of any new chief executive;
Ɣ 'HFLGHRQUHPXQHUDWLRQDQGDOORZDQFHVDQGRWKHUWHUPVDQGFRQGLWLRQVRIRI¿FHRIWKH
Chairman and non-executive directors;
Ɣ Receive the annual accounts, any report of the auditor, and the annual report at a general
meeting of the Council of Governors;
Ɣ Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the foundation trust’s auditor;
Ɣ $SSURYHµVLJQL¿FDQWWUDQVDFWLRQV¶
Ɣ Approve an application by the Trust to enter into a merger, acquisition, separation or
dissolution;
Ɣ 'HFLGHZKHWKHUWKH7UXVW¶VQRQ1+6ZRUNZRXOGVLJQL¿FDQWO\LQWHUIHUHZLWKLWVSULQFLSDO
purpose, which is to provide goods and services for the health service in England, or
performing its other functions; and
Ɣ Approve amendments to the Trust’s constitution.
The Council has established one steering group, four working groups and one committee. These
are listed below with a brief overview of each group’s responsibilities:
Governors’ Steering Group: To act in an advisory capacity to support and facilitate the work of
WKH&RXQFLORI*RYHUQRUVJHQHUDOO\DQGVSHFL¿FDOO\LQUHVSHFWRIIXO¿OOLQJWKHLUVWDWXWRU\GXWLHVDV
laid out in Monitor’s Code of Governance. The Chair and Trust Secretary attend the meeting.
Community and Patient Engagement Group: To oversee the engagement between the
Governors and the community, including, but not limited to, patients, community groups, key
stakeholders and the wider public and report back on the subject (with or without recommendation)
to the Council of Governors.
Membership Engagement Group: To develop, implement and review the Trust’s membership
strategy as well as being accountable on behalf of the governors for ensuring that the elections are
fair and true; review any issues brought to the Working Group’s attention that relate to the
members and membership, including complaints from members about membership; adjudicating
RQDQ\DSSOLFDWLRQIRUGLVTXDOL¿FDWLRQIURPPHPEHUVKLSDQGWREHLQYROYHGLQRYHUVHHLQJWKH
arrangements of the Trust’s Annual Members’ Meeting. One non-executive director attends
meetings to provide additional support.
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Finance and Performance Working Group: To make recommendations to the Council of
Governors with respect to the appointment of the Trust’s external auditor and to report to the
Council of Governors with respect to the auditor’s opinion of the Trust’s Annual Report, the Trust’s
forward plan and the Quality Account; and to hold the Board’s Performance Committee and the
Integrated Audit Committee to account. The Chairs of the two Committees regularly attend the
Working Group meetings for this purpose.
Quality Working Group: To receive quarterly reports from the Board’s Quality Assurance
Committee on the work around patient safety, patient experience and other aspects of quality
including the Trust’s Quality Account; to scrutinise the decisions made, or actions taken, in
connection with the Quality Assurance Committee; and make recommendations to the Council of
Governors arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process. The Chair of the Quality Assurance
Committee regularly attends Working Group meetings to provide updates and answer questions.
Governors’ Nominations and Remuneration Committee: To review the remuneration of the
non-executive directors on an annual basis; to be involved in the nomination process for all nonH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUVLQFOXGLQJWKH&KDLUPDQDQGWRUHFHLYHFRQ¿UPDWLRQWKDWDSSUDLVDOVKDYHEHHQ
carried out for the Chairman and non-executive directors. Attendance of committee members is
detailed below:
Attendee
Shena Winning, Chairman
Stella Dick, Lead Governor (appointed August 2015)
Ruth Jenner, Lead Governor (retired July 2015)
Michael Moseley, Swale Governor
Margaret Ratcliffe, Medway Governor
Ann Richmond, Medway Governor
David Brake, Partner Governor
.HYLQ*ULI¿Q6WDII*RYHUQRU UHVLJQHG$XJXVW
Claire Thurgate
Dr Peter Nicholls
Mandy Stevenson

Attendance
4 out of 4
2 out of 2
2 out of 2
1 out of 4
4 out of 4
3 out of 4
2 out of 4
2 out of 2
0 out of 0
0 out of 0
0 out of 0

Governor elections
The 2015 elections took place in June 2015. There were 10 seats up for election: 4 Medway
seats, 3 Swale seats and 3 staff seats.
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Attendance at Council of Governors’ meetings
The information below outlines details of all governors on the Council during the year 2015/16,
WRJHWKHUZLWKWKHLUUHFRUGRIDWWHQGDQFHLQFOXGLQJWKH¿YHVFKHGXOHG&RXQFLORI*RYHUQRUPHHWLQJV
and the Annual Members’ Meeting.
Table 2.1.3: Attendance at Council of Governors’ meetings
Name
Glyn Allen

Constituency
Medway

Vivien
Bouttell
Renee
Coussens
Stella Dick

Medway

Doreen
King
Margaret
Ratcliffe

Medway

Ann
Richmond

Medway

Paul
Walker
Alan West

Medway

Lyn
Gallimore
Ruth
Jenner

Swale

Silvia
Marin
Michael
Moseley
Richard
Tripp

Swale

VACANT

Medway
Medway

Medway

Medway

Swale

Swale
Rest of England and
Wales

Staff:
Nursing and Midwifery
VACANT
Staff:
Allied Health
Professionals
Ann
Staff:
Bushnell
Management
Tim Cowell Staff:
Non Clinical

7HUPRIRI¿FH
Next placed successful candidate from the
2015 elections, appointed to take over
from James Devine who resigned in
September 2015. Elected for 2 years and 8
months
Elected 2010. Re-elected March 2014, for
3 years with effect from 1 July 2014
Elected 2008. Re-elected June 2011.
Re-elected March 2014 for 3 years
Elected 2014 for 2 years and 3 months,
with effect from 1 April 2014
Elected 2015 for 3 years with effect from 1
July 2015
Elected 2008. Re-elected June 2011.
Re-elected March 2014 for 3 years with
effect from 1 July 2014
Elected 2007. Re-elected June 2008.
Re-elected March 2014 for 3 years with
effect from 1 July 2014
Elected 2015 for 2 years with effect from 1
July 2015
Elected 2014 for 2 years and 3 months,
with effect from 1 April 2014
Elected 2015 for 2 years with effect from 1
July 2015
Elected unopposed 2009. Re-elected
unopposed June 2012. Re-elected July
2015 for 3 years
Elected 2015 for 3 years with effect from 1
July 2015
Elected 2014 for 2 years 3 months, with
effect from 1 April 2014
Elected unopposed 2010. Re-elected
March 2014 for 2 years 3 months, with
effect from 1 April 2014
Seat currently Vacant

Attendance
1 out of 1

5 out of 6
6 out of 6
6 out of 6
4 out of 4
5 out of 6

5 out of 6

3 out of 4
6 out of 6
4 out of 4
6 out of 6

1 out of 4
4 out of 6
4 out of 6

Seat currently Vacant

Elected 2015 for 2 years with effect from 1
July 2015
Elected 2015 for 3 years with effect from 1
July 2015
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Dr Anil
Madhavan
Cllr David
Brake
Adrian
Crowther

Staff:
Medical & Dental Class
Medway Council Health
and Wellbeing Board
Kent County Council

Mandy
Stevenson

Greenwich University
representing Medway
Universities
Canterbury Christ
Church University
University of Kent

Claire
Thurgate
Dr Peter
Nicholls
Christine
Harvey

Medway League of
Friends representing
Charities

Elected unopposed 2014 for 2 years and 3 1 out of 6
months, from 1 April 2014
Appointed May 2013 for 3 years
3 out of 6
Appointed June 2007. Re-appointed June
2010.
Re-appointed June 2013 for 3 years
Appointed February 2016 for 3 years

6 out of 6

0 out of 0

Appointed February 2016 for 3 years

0 out of 0

Appointed February 2016 for 3 years

0 out of 0

Appointed July 2015 for 3 years

4 out of 6

Table 2.1.4: Attendance of former governors at Council of Governors’ meetings

Paul
Bennett
James
Devine
Ann Smart
Dawn
Cockburn

Kevin
*ULI¿Q

Viv Parker

Former Governors during 2015/16
Medway
Elected 2014 for 1 year and 3 months, with
effect from 1 April 2014, resigned April
2015
Medway
Elected 2015 for 3 years, resigned
September 2015
Medway
Elected June 2012 for 3 years, resigned
July 2015
Swale
Next placed successful candidate from the
2014, appointed to take over from Paul
Wood for 1 year and 1 month with effect
from May 2014. Resigned June 2015
Staff:
Elected March 2014 for 2 years and 3
Allied Health
months with effect from 1 April 2014,
Professionals
resigned August 2015
Seat currently Vacant
Staff:
Elected unopposed June 2012 for 3 years,
Non Clinical
resigned June 2015

Attendance
1 out of 1

1 out of 1
1 out of 2
1 out of 2

3 out of 3

2 out of 2

A register of Governors’ interests is held at the Trust and can be obtained by contacting the
Governor and Membership Lead, Level 1 Postgraduate Centre, Medway NHS Foundation Trust,
Windmill Road, Gillingham, Kent, ME7 5NY, or email members@medway.nhs.uk.

Membership
Anyone aged 16 and over and is not employed by the Trust can become a public member. Every
member of staff automatically becomes a member unless they choose to opt out.
As at 31 March 2016, the Trust has 11,026 public members and 4,286 staff members which gives a
total of 15,312 members. In the last 12 months, a total of 613 public members were recruited. The
breakdown of our public membership base per constituency is listed below.
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Total

Constituency
Medway
Swale
Rest of England and Wales
Membership Total

6,863
1,845
2,318
11,026

A programme of 13 members’ events took place during 2015/16. Two events were held in Swale
which were duplicates of events run in Medway, seeking feedback from members and governors
regarding the priorities to be included in the Trust’s Annual Plan and Quality Account. One event
was the Trust’s Annual Members’ Meeting.
Members received quarterly newsletters and monthly e-bulletins during 2015 and from 2016
receive the Trust’s News@Medway newspaper by email, which is also available for collection from
various newsstands around the hospital.
The Council of Governors is chaired by the Chairman of the Trust and its meetings are also
attended by the Chief Executive, who presents a report on performance and current issues. Other
executive directors, along with the non-executive directors, also attend the Council of Governors’
meetings and working groups on a regular basis to provide updates as and when requested by the
governors.
The Council of Governors has undertaken scrutiny of a variety of subjects during the year 2015/16,
including:
Ɣ The Trust’s performance against the annual plan
Ɣ The Trust’s performance against the Quality Account
Ɣ Progress of the Trust’s Recovery Plan

Director attendance at Council of Governors meetings
(including the Annual Members’ Meeting) 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Table 2.1.5: Attendance of current directors at Council of Governors’ meetings
Current Board members during 2015/16
Shena Winning, Chairman
3DWULFLD%DLQ&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
Rebecca Bradd, Acting Director of Workforce
Ewan Carmichael, Non-Executive Director
Darren Cattell, Interim Director of Finance
Stephen Clark, Non-Executive Director
Lesley Dwyer, Chief Executive
Diana Hamilton-Fairley, Interim Medical Director
Martin Jamieson, Non-Executive Director
Tony Moore, Non-Executive Director
Joanne Palmer, Non-Executive Director
Karen Rule, Interim Director of Nursing
Jan Stephens, Non-Executive Director
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Attendance
6 out of 6
4 out of 6
0 out of 0
1 out of 1
0 out of 0
0 out of 0
5 out of 5
1 out of 1
3 out of 6
6 out of 6
1 out of 1
1 out of 1
5 out of 6
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Table 2.1.6: Attendance of former directors at Council of Governors’ meetings
Former Board members during 2015/16
Roberta Barker, Director of Workforce
Phil Barnes, Acting Chief Executive
Steve Beaumont, Chief Nurse
Tim Bolot, Interim Director of Finance
Andrew Burnett, Non-Executive Director
0RUDJ-DFNVRQ&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU
Kirti Mukherjee, Acting Medical Director
Ghada Ramadan, Acting Medical Director
Paul Ryan, Acting Medical Director

Attendance
5 out of 6
1 out of 1
3 out of 5
3 out of 6
2 out of 4
2 out of 3
1 out of 2
1 out of 2
0 out of 1

Table 2.1.7: Non-Executive Director attendance at Governors’ Working Group / Committee
meetings 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Current and former Non-Executive Directors
Shena Winning
Andrew Burnett (former non-executive director)
Ewan Carmichael
Stephen Clark
Martin Jamieson
Tony Moore
Joanne Palmer
Jan Stephens

Attendance
6 out of 10
0 out of 1
3 out of 3
1 out of 1
3 out of 5
5 out of 5
0 out of 0
5 out of 6

Governors are invited to take part in various Trust Groups and Committees in order to
communicate the views and concerns of their members. These Groups include:
Ɣ Emergency Department Patient Focus Group
Ɣ End of Life Care Steering Group
Ɣ Outpatient Improvement Group
Ɣ Patient Safety Committee
Ɣ Patient Experience Task Group
Ɣ Health and Safety Committee
One representative from the Council of Governors regularly attends the Trust Board meetings to
observe proceedings, and raise questions and concerns relating to the agenda directly with the
Board. The Governor Representative then reports back at each Council of Governors meeting’ on
her observations from the Board meetings.
Governors keep a log of any queries raised with executive directors outside of their scheduled
meetings.
The Council of Governors appointed three new Non-Executive Directors in 2015, following a robust
appointment process that was approved by the Council of Governors. A headhunting organisation
was appointed to seek appropriate candidates and a shortlist was approved by the Governors’
Nominations and Remuneration Committee prior to interviews commencing. Governors were
invited to join a stakeholder group which had the opportunity to meet with each of the applicants
prior to the interview. The interview panel comprised the Trust Chairman, Lead Governor, and two
other public governors. Human Resources provided support for the process.
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Dispute Resolution Process
In the event of disputes between the Council of Governors and the Board of Directors, the following
Dispute Resolution Procedure shall apply:
a) LQWKH¿UVWLQVWDQFHWKH&KDLURQWKHDGYLFHRIWKH7UXVW6HFUHWDU\DQGVXFKRWKHUDGYLFHDV
WKH&KDLUPD\VHH¿WWRREWDLQVKDOOVHHNWRUHVROYHWKHGLVSXWH
b) if the Chair is unable to resolve the dispute the individual shall refer the dispute to the Trust
Secretary who shall appoint a joint special committee constituted as a committee of the
Board of Directors and a committee of the Council of Governors, both comprising equal
numbers, to consider the circumstances and to make recommendations to the Council of
Governors and the Board of Directors with a view to resolving the dispute;
c) if the recommendations (if any) of the joint special committee are unsuccessful in resolving
the dispute, the Chair may refer the dispute back to the Board of Directors who shall make
WKH¿QDOGHFLVLRQ
This dispute resolution procedure is set out in the Trust’s Constitution which is available on the
Trust’s website.
0HPEHUVPD\FRQWDFW*RYHUQRUVRU%RDUGPHPEHUVWKURXJKWKHPHPEHUVKLSRI¿FHE\WHOHSKRQH
on 01634 825292, by email to members@medway.nhs.ukLQZULWLQJWR0HPEHUVKLS2I¿FH/HYHO
Postgraduate Centre, Medway NHS Foundation Trust, Windmill Road, Gillingham, Kent, ME7 5NY,
or via our website www.medway.nhs.uk
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1. Nominations and Remuneration Committee
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the Board, responsible for
reviewing and advising the Board of Directors on the composition of the Board of Directors and
appointing and setting the remuneration of executive directors and all very senior manager
appointments. Further details of the Committee can be found within the Directors’ Report section of
this document.
During the course of 2015/16, the Trust appointed a substantive Chief Executive and has
undertaken to appoint substantive executives and very senior managers following a period of
considerable change and a number of interim appointments. Newly appointed executive directors
are employed on substantive contracts with a notice period of six months. The Trust continues to
have some interim and acting contracts and is working to substantively recruit to these positions.

2. Executive Remuneration policy
The Trust has a Senior Remuneration policy agreed by the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee. The Trust recognises that, in order to ensure optimum performance, it is necessary to
KDYHDFRPSHWLWLYHSD\DQGEHQH¿WVVWUXFWXUH7KHREMHFWLYHRIWKH&RPPLWWHH¶VVWUDWHJ\IRUWKH
remuneration of executive directors and very senior managers is to attract and retain suitably
VNLOOHGDQGTXDOL¿HGLQGLYLGXDOVRIKLJKFDOLEUHSURYLGLQJVXI¿FLHQWUHVRXUFHVDQGVWUHQJWKDQG
maintaining stability throughout the senior management team. Remuneration is therefore set and
maintained to be competitive.
The Nominations and Remuneration Committee reviews salaries each year. In 2015/16 the
&RPPLWWHHGHFLGHGWKDWQRLQÀDWLRQDU\SD\DZDUGZDVDSSURSULDWH7KLVLVLQOLQHZLWKRYHUDOO
increases in the NHS.
Director salaries were within benchmarked salary ranges with no substantive executive
appointments being made after June above the Prime Minister’s salary. When new appointments
are made, the salary is determined by reference to Foundation Trust Network (FTN) benchmarking
of chief executive and executive director salaries, current market rates and internal relativities with
executive directors / senior managers. The Trust also commissioned an independent
benchmarking exercise this year for executive directors / senior managers.
7KHRQO\QRQFDVKHOHPHQWVRI([HFXWLYHUHPXQHUDWLRQSDFNDJHVDUHSHQVLRQUHODWHGEHQH¿WV
accrued under the NHS Pensions Scheme. Contributions are made by both the employer and
employee in accordance with the rules of the national scheme, which applies to all NHS staff in the
VFKHPH7KHRQO\H[FHSWLRQWRWKLVLVWKHRYHUVHDVUHORFDWLRQUHODWHGEHQH¿WVIRUWKH&KLHI
Executive agreed as part of the recruitment offer and subject to pay back clauses.
Each executive director has annual objectives, which are agreed with the Chief Executive. The
Trust’s normal disciplinary policies apply to senior managers, including the sanction of summary
dismissal for gross misconduct. The Trust’s redundancy policy is consistent with NHS redundancy
terms for all staff.
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3. Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers
a) Remuneration
2015/16

Name and title

Ms S Winning, Chair/Non-Executive Director
Mr C Langley, Interim Chair
Mr M Jamieson, Non-executive Director

2014/15

Salary

Life Time
Pension
Related
%HQH¿WV
Increase
in year

Total

Salary

Life Time
Pension
Related
%HQH¿WV
Increase
in year

(bands of
£5000)

(bands of
£5000)

(bands of
£5000)

(bands of
£5000)

(bands of
£5000)

60-65

-

60-65

35-40

-

Total

35-40

-

-

-

75-80

-

75-80

10-15

-

10-15

10-15

-

10-15

Ms J Stephens, Non-executive Director

10-15

-

10-15

10-15

-

10-15

Mr T Moore, Non-executive Director

10-15

-

10-15

10-15

-

10-15

Mr A Burnett, Non-executive Director

5-10

-

-

10-15

-

10-15

Mr S Clark, Non-executive Director

0-5

-

0-5

-

-

-

Ms J Palmer, Non-executive Director

5-10

-

5-10

-

-

-

Mr E Carmichael, Non-executive Director

5-10

-

5-10

-

-

-

Ms C Becher, Non-executive Director

-

-

-

10-15

-

10-15

Mr C Wilby, Non-executive Director

-

-

-

0-5

-

0-5

Mr J Sands, Non-executive Director
Ms L Dwyer, Chief Executive
Dr P Barnes, Interim Chief Executive/Medical
Director

-

-

-

0-5

-

0-5

195-200

25-30

220-225

-

-

-

-

-

-

215-220

-

215-220

Mr N Beverley, Interim Chief Executive

-

-

-

75-80

-

75-80

Mr D Cattell, Interim Director of Finance

45-50

-

45-50

-

-

-

-

-

-

50-55

-

50-55

-

-

-

Mr D Meikle, Director of Finance
Mrs R Bradd, Acting Director of Workforce
Mrs R Barker, Director of Workforce
Ms R Bhamber, Director of Organisational
Development and Communications

10-15

-

10-15

115-120

-

115-120

-

-

-

110-115

10-15

120-125

40-45

-

-

-

70-75

50-55

-

50-55

Mrs K Rule, Interim Director of Nursing

40-45

Mr S Beaumont, Chief Nurse

70-75

-

-

-

-

70-75

30-35

105-110

70-75

-

70-75

-

-

-

Mr S Hams, Chief Nurse
Dr D Hamilton-Farley, Interim Medical Director
Dr G Ramadan, Acting Medical Director

1

Dr K Mukherjee, Acting Medical Director2
Dr P Ryan, Acting Medical Director3
0V3%DLQ&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
0V0-DFNVRQ&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU

75-80

-

75-80

-

-

-

95-100

-

95-100

-

-

-

15-20

-

15-20

115-120

85-90

205-210

155-160

-

155-160

-

-

-

85-90

35-40

120-125

60-65

30-35

95-100

Mr M Morgan, Interim Director of Operations

-

-

-

175-180

-

175-180

Mr J Seez, Director of Strategy & Infrastructure

-

-

-

70-75

(5-10)

65-70

Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total
Remuneration (£’000)
Median Total Remuneration (£’000)

220-225

215-220

22,236

22,016

10.1

9.8

Ratio

7KH¿JXUHVLQWKHDERYHWDEOHUHODWHWRWKHDPRXQWVUHFHLYHGGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
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Remuneration Report
1.

7KH¿JXUHVTXRWHGIRU'U*5DPDGDQUHODWHWRERWKKHUFOLQLFDOGXWLHVDQGWKH0HGLFDO
'LUHFWRUSRVW2IWKHVH¿JXUHV UHODWHGWRWKH0HGLFDO'LUHFWRUSRVW

2.

7KH¿JXUHVTXRWHGIRU'U.0XNKHUMHHUHODWHWRERWKKHUFOLQLFDOGXWLHVDQGWKH0HGLFDO
'LUHFWRUSRVW2IWKHVH¿JXUHV UHODWHGWRWKH0HGLFDO'LUHFWRUSRVW

3.

7KH¿JXUHVTXRWHGIRU'U35\DQUHODWHWRERWKKLVFOLQLFDOGXWLHVDQGWKH0HGLFDO'LUHFWRU
SRVW2IWKHVH¿JXUHV   UHODWHGWRWKH0HGLFDO'LUHFWRUSRVW

)RUDQGWKHUHZHUHQRWD[DEOHEHQH¿WVRUDQQXDORUORQJWHUPSHUIRUPDQFH
related bonuses.
Median remuneration is based on total permanent staff and full-time annual salaries.
Medway NHS Foundation Trust had commissioned a range of services from Bolt Partners including
Timothy Bolot, who served as Interim Director of Finance between June 2014 and December 2015.
7KHWRWDOFRVWRIWKHVXSSRUWVHUYLFHVIURP%ROW3DUWQHUVZDV  H[FO9$7  H[FO
VAT) 2014/15)

b) 3HQVLRQEHQH¿WV

Name and title

Ms L Dwyer, Chief Executive
0V0-DFNVRQ&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU

Real
increase in
pension
and related
lump sum
at pension
age

Total
accrued
pension
and related
lump sum
at pension
age at
March 2016

(bands of
£2500)

(bands of
£2500)

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at 31
March 2016

Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value at 31
March 2015

Real
Increase in
Cash
Equivalent
Transfer

£000

£000

£000

2.5-5

2.5-5

47

0

47

12.5-15

225-227.5

1,113

1,004

97

The table above excludes directors who are paid via off-payroll arrangements, on another
organisation’s payroll and those who have drawn their pension.
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation
Contributions Adjusted for Past experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate
DIIHFWVWKHFDOFXODWLRQRI&DVK(TXLYDOHQW7UDQVIHU9DOXH &(79 ¿JXUHVLQWKLVUHSRUW
'XHWRWKHOHDGWLPHUHTXLUHGWRSHUIRUPFDOFXODWLRQVDQGSUHSDUHDQQXDOUHSRUWVWKH&(79¿JXUHV
quoted in this report for members of the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous discount
rate and have not been recalculated.
7KHSHQVLRQEHQH¿WVDFFUXHGE\WKH$FWLQJ0HGLFDO'LUHFWRUVDUHSUHGRPLQDWHO\DWWULEXWDEOHWR
their clinical salaries and hence are excluded from the table above.
$VDWWKHWLPHRIWKHVLJQLQJRIWKLVUHSRUWWKHSHQVLRQ¿JXUHVIRU0V5%UDGG$FWLQJ'LUHFWRURI
Workforce, were not available from the NHS Pensions Agency.

c) /RVVRIRI¿FH
7KHUHZHUHQR'LUHFWRUVZKRKDGORVVRIRI¿FHLQ
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d) Expenses of Governors and Directors
The directors and governors receive reimbursement of travel and incidental expenses incurred as
a result of their duties to the Trust.
Aggregate sum of
expenses paid
2015/16

Directors
Governors

Number in receipt
of expenses
2015/6
11
4


45,331.13
361.10

Aggregate sum of
expenses paid
2014/15


13,820.39
369.46

Signed

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
26 May 2016
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2.3 Staff Report
Average Staff Numbers
Table 2.3.1 below provides a breakdown of the average number of whole time equivalent staff and
people working on a non-permanent basis in the Trust throughout the year, by NHS Occupation
Code. Table 2.3.2 sets out a breakdown at year end of the headcount number of male and female
directors, other senior managers and employees.
Table 2.3.2: staff numbers
2014/15
Total
Medical and dental
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other
support staff
Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting learners
6FLHQWL¿FWKHUDSHXWLFDQG
technical staff
Total

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Permanent

2015/16
Other

Total

Permanent

Other

543

454

89

604

504

100

1,270

1,159

111

1,279

1,135

144

552

451

101

774

653

121

1,281

1,100

181

1,323

1,074

249

19

19

0

14

14

0

490

451

39

360

284

76

4,155

3,634

521

4,354

3,664

690
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Table 2.3.2: Breakdown of males and females - headcount (as at 31/3/16):

Male
Female
Total

Voting Board Directors

Other Senior Managers

All Staff

5
8
13

18
47
65

785
3,425
4,210

6WDI¿QJOHYHOVDQGWKHH[WHQWWRZKLFKVWDIILQPDQ\FOLQLFDODUHDVDUHRYHUVWUHWFKHGSUHVHQWWKH
PRVWVLJQL¿FDQWULVNWRWKHRUJDQLVDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRGHOLYHUKLJKTXDOLW\SDWLHQWFDUHDQGVWDELOLVHLWV
¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ6WDI¿QJOHYHOVKDYHDOVREHHQUHFRJQLVHGE\H[WHUQDOUHJXODWRUVDVDQDUHD
UHTXLULQJXUJHQWLPSURYHPHQW7KLVKDVUHVXOWHGLQDFRQWLQXHGUHOLDQFHRQWHPSRUDU\VWDI¿QJDQG
agency expenditure, as shown in table 2.3.1 above.
The Trust has undertaken a number of activities during 2015/16 to support the recruitment of
individuals to substantive positions, and in particular to business critical front-line clinical
vacancies. However, the output of the recruitment activity has not been at the required level to
PDNHWKHRSHUDWLRQDOLPSDFWQHHGHGDQGWKLVFRXSOHGZLWKDGGLWLRQDOVWDI¿QJUHTXLUHPHQWVDQGD
KLJKOHYHORIWXUQRYHUSDUWLFXODUO\RYHUWKH¿UVWKDOIRIWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUKDVFRPSRXQGHGWKH
shortage of permanent staff. As a result of this, the Trust has had to rely on temporary / agency
staff to enable it to discharge critical functions.

Sickness Absence Data
Table 2.3.3 sets out the Trust’s sickness absence for March 2016, compared with March 2015. The
overall sickness rate remained fairly constant throughout the year. Actions taken to reduce
sickness absence include auditing and validating sickness data, supporting managers to manage
individuals with high levels of sickness absence or on long term sick leave, and reviewing the
Trust’s current sickness absence policy.
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Table 2.3.3: sickness absence data

$GGLWLRQDO3URIHVVLRQDO6FLHQWL¿FDQG7HFKQLFDO
Additional Clinical Services
Administrative and Clerical
Allied Health Professionals
Estates and Ancillary
Healthcare Scientists
Medical and Dental
Nursing and Midwifery Registered
Students
Average

March 2015

March 2016

2.38%
4.66%
2.94%
3.44%
5.64%
0.49%
0.91%
3.45%
0.00%
3.33%

2.10%
5.25%
2.99%
0.48%
6.75%
1.00%
0.75%
3.66%
0.00%
3.49%

Staff policies and actions
3ROLFLHVDQGDFWLRQVDSSOLHGGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUDUHVHWRXWLQWKHWDEOHEHORZ
7DEOHSROLFLHVDQGDFWLRQVDSSOLHGGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Policies applied for giving full and fair The Trust has a recruitment and selection policy, which
consideration for employment made sets out how the Trust ensures fair recruitment practices
by disabled persons
throughout the attraction, selection and recruitment of
candidates, including compliance with the JobCentre Plus
“Two Ticks Disability Symbol” standards. This is reviewed
through the Trust’s electronic tracking ‘TRAC’ recruitment
system.
Policies for continuing the
The Trust adheres to the Equality Act 2010, and as such,
employment of, and for arranging
line managers make reasonable adjustments and use
training for employees who have
referrals to the Occupational Health team to ensure the
become disabled persons during the continued employment of employees who become
period
disabled persons. In addition, the HR team provides direct
support to staff affected and their managers.
Policies for the training, career
development and promotion of
disabled employees
$FWLRQVWDNHQLQWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUWR
provide employees systematically
with information on matters of
concern to them as employees

There is equality of access to training for all staff.

The Trust augmented its internal communications
activities during the year, including the introduction of new
printed and face-to-face channels, and a dedicated
communications programme to provide information about
the Trust Recovery Plan.
$FWLRQVWDNHQGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO
The Trust has regular meetings of its Joint Staff
Committee and Joint Local Negotiating Committees for
year to consult employees or their
representatives on a regular basis so IRUPDOGLVFXVVLRQVUHODWLQJWRVWDI¿QJLVVXHV
As stipulated within the organisational change policy,
that the views of employees can be
taken into account in making
collective consultations would be enacted where there are
PRUHVSHFL¿FLVVXHVDIIHFWLQJHPSOR\HHVLHUHVWUXFWXUHV
decisions which are likely to affect
their interests
In addition, informal engagement with staff took place to
inform various key initiatives, such as the development of
the new vision and values.
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$FWLRQVWDNHQLQWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUWR
encourage the involvement of
employees in the NHS foundation
trust’s performance

Information on health and safety
performance occupational health

The Trust has placed considerable emphasis, through its
internal communications activities, on encouraging staff to
consider what role they can play in making the Trust
Recovery Plan successful. A “quick wins” programme has
been set up, whereby staff can suggest low-cost, highimpact initiatives to be incorporated into the Recovery
Plan.
During the year health and safety training was delivered
to 89% of staff. The Trust has 92 health and safety
keyworkers trained, and 85 keyworkers trained in moving
and handling. The health and safety department
undertakes audits on the whole hospital in conjunction
with a staff side chair person. Over the year 18 RIDDOR
UHSRUWDEOHDFFLGHQWVZHUHFRQ¿UPHG

A formal review of the in-house occupational health
service was undertaken during the year. This looked into
nurse activity, turnaround times, patients failing to turn up
for appointments and cancellations, medical activity,
pre-employment screening, current management referral
screening processes, and the production of medical
reports. The performance of the service continues to be
monitored and options are being reviewed with regards to
a possible tendering process for the longer term provision
of the service.
The Trust has a whistleblowing policy in place, which also
Information on policies and
procedures with respect to countering covers fraud. The Trust procured a new supplier to
support its whistleblowing activities in early 2016, and
fraud and corruption
RSHUDWHVDIUHHFRQ¿GHQWLDOZKLVWOHEORZLQJKRWOLQH$
range of communications activities were undertaken to
raise staff awareness of this hotline.
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Staff Survey
Approach to staff engagement
Medway NHS Foundation Trust is committed to engaging its workforce and recognises the
contribution that staff make to care for patients. The Trust recognises the importance of staff
feedback and engagement and has many mechanisms in place to obtain staff views and opinions
including:
Ɣ &KLHI([HFXWLYHPRQWKO\VHQLRUPDQDJHUEULH¿QJVHVVLRQV
Ɣ Sessions for senior managers to cascade key information to staff and gain feedback
Ɣ Monthly hospital newspaper “News@Medway”
Ɣ Weekly Chief Executive email updates
Ɣ Regular staff meetings to which all staff are invited
Ɣ ([HFXWLYHµZDONWKHÀRRU¶
Ɣ Open lunches with the Chief Executive
Ɣ Feedback forms located in the hospital
Ɣ Intranet
Ɣ Screensavers
Ɣ National NHS Staff Survey and quarterly Staff Friends and Family test

Summary of Performance – National NHS Staff Survey
The National NHS Staff Survey is a key measure of staff engagement and an important tool for the
organisation to understand how staff are feeling and look to increase engagement where there is
required improvement. Each year the Trust’s results are compared against other acute NHS Trusts
across the UK (as a national average), as well as with the Trust’s own results from the previous
year.
7KHVWDIIVXUYH\UHVXOWVDUHSUHVHQWHGLQWKHIRUPRIWZRNH\¿QGLQJV7KH\LQFOXGH
Ɣ Percentage scores
Ɣ Scale between 1 to 5 (each question indicates whether 1 or 5 is the best score)

Table 2.3.5: Staff survey response rate

Response Rate

Trust
41%

2014
National Average
42%
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Trust
37%

2015
Difference
National Average 4% decrease
locally and 1%
38%
lower than
national
average

Staff Report
Table 2.3.6: Areas of Improvement from 2014 survey

KF11. Percentage of staff appraised in the last 12
months

2014
79%

2015
84%

Difference
5% increase

2014
41%

2015
22%

3.73

3.60

86%

80%

Difference
19%
decrease
0.13 points
decrease
6% decrease

Table 2.3.7: Areas of deterioration since 2014 survey

KF27. Percentage of staff/colleagues reporting most
recent experience of harassment, bullying or abuse
KF10. Support from immediate managers
KF21. Percentage of staff believing that the organisation
provides equal opportunities for career progression or
promotion

Table 2.3.8: Top Ranking Scores
2014

KF12. Quality of appraisals

KF28. Percentage of staff
witnessing potentially harmful
errors, near misses &
incidents
KF25. Percentage of staff
experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from
patients, relatives or public in
the last 12 months
KF24. Percentage of staff/
colleagues reporting most
recent experience of violence

2015

Trust
Score
-

National
Average
-

Trust
Score
3.09

33%

34%

31%

28%

29%

28%

-

-

52%
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Trust improvement/
deterioration

National
Average
3.05
Higher than
national average
by 0.04 points
31%
Decrease by 2%
locally and the
same as the
national average
28%
The same result
locally and against
the national
average
53%

Below the national
average by 1%
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Table 2.3.9: Bottom Ranking Scores
2014

KF30. Fairness and
effectiveness of procedures for
reporting errors, near misses
and incidents
KF19. Organisation and
management interest in and
action on health and wellbeing
KF5. Recognition and value of
staff by managers and the
organisation
KF1 Staff recommendation of
the organisation as a place to
work or receive treatment
KF6. Percentage of staff
reporting good communication
between senior management
and staff

2015

Trust improvement/
deterioration

Trust
Score
-

National
Average
-

Trust
Score
3.51

National
Average
3.70

-

-

3.34

3.57

-

-

3.27

3.42

3.40

3.67

3.44

3.76

25%

30%

22%

32%

Below national
average by 0.19
points
Lower than
national average
by 0.23 points
Lower than
national average
by 0.15 points
Increase by 0.04
points locally and
0.32 points below
national average
Decrease by 3%
locally and
10%below the
national average

Areas for concern
The priority areas are:
Ɣ Improving communication and engagement between managers and their staff
Ɣ ,PSURYLQJVWDIIFRQ¿GHQFHWRUHSRUWEXOO\LQJDQGKDUDVVPHQWFRQFHUQVDQGDGGUHVVLQJ
these concerns
Ɣ Improving staff health and wellbeing
Ɣ 'LUHFWRUDWHDFWLRQSODQVWRWDUJHWVSHFL¿FSUREOHPDUHDV

Future priorities and targets
In the year ahead, the Trust-wide action plan is focusing on the following areas:
Ɣ An anti-bullying campaign to address concerns about bullying and harassment
Ɣ Launching our new Vision and Values and ‘Our Behaviours’
Ɣ Leadership development programme for all leaders
Ɣ Working with Medway Council to improve the health and wellbeing of our staff
Ɣ Reviewing the appraisal process and increasing the opportunities for staff to access training
and development
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Expenditure on Consultancy
,QWKLVZDV PLOOLRQ XQDXGLWHGDVDW DVFRPSDUHGWRZKHQWKH
VSHQGZDV PLOOLRQ

Off Payroll engagements
$VSDUWRIWKHUHYLHZRI7D[$UUDQJHPHQWVRI3XEOLF6HFWRU$SSRLQWHHV¿UVWSXEOLVKHGE\WKH&KLHI
Secretary to the Treasury in May 2012, public departments are now required to publish information
relating to the number of off payroll engagements within the following tables.
Table 2.3.10: Off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2016, for more than £220 per day, lasting
longer than six months.
No. of existing engagements as of 31 March 2016
Of which...
No. that have existed for less than one year at time of reporting.
No. that have existed for between one and two years at time of
reporting.
No. that have existed for between two and three years at time of
reporting.
No. that have existed for between three and four years at time of
reporting.
No. that have existed for four or more years at time of reporting.

1
1
0
0
0
3

Each of the above appointees have or are being subject to a risk-based assessment programme
as to whether the individuals are paying the right amount of tax.
There was 1 new off-payroll engagement, between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, for more than
SHUGD\WKDWODVWHGIRUORQJHUWKDQVL[PRQWKV
7DEOH2IISD\UROOHQJDJHPHQWVRIERDUGPHPEHUVDQGRUVHQLRURI¿FLDOVZLWKVLJQL¿FDQW
¿QDQFLDOUHVSRQVLELOLW\EHWZHHQ$SULODQG0DUFK
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior
2
RI¿FLDOVZLWKVLJQL¿FDQW¿QDQFLDOUHVSRQVLELOLW\GXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Number of individuals that have been deemed ‘board members and/or 21
VHQLRURI¿FLDOVZLWKVLJQL¿FDQW¿QDQFLDOUHVSRQVLELOLW\¶GXULQJWKH
¿QDQFLDO\HDU7KLV¿JXUHVKRXOGLQFOXGHERWKRIISD\UROODQGRQSD\UROO
engagements.
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Exit packages
See below for data relating to 2015/16 and 2014/15.

Table 2.3.12

2015/16

Exit package cost band

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
other
departures
agreed

Total
number of
exit
packages

Number

Number

Number

 

0

0

0

± 

0

3

3

± 

0

1

1

± 

0

2

2

± 

0

5

5

± 

0

0

0

! 

0

0

0

Total

0

11

11

2014/15

Exit package cost band

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
other
departures
agreed

Total
number of
exit
packages

Number

Number

Number

 

0

1

1

± 

0

1

1

± 

0

3

3

± 

0

0

0

± 

0

0

0

± 

0

0

0

! 

0

0

0

Total

0

6

6
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2.4 Governance Disclosures
Disclosures and annual reporting requirements
Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance (the Code) brings together best practices
from both the public and private sector in order to help NHS Foundation Trust Boards maintain
good quality corporate governance. Although the Code is best practice advice, certain disclosures
are required to be reported in the Trust’s Annual Report, along with additional requirements as
stated in the Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16. The Trust’s compliance is stated below with these
requirements.

Table 2.4.1: Code of governance compliance

Part of
schedule A
Disclose

Relating to
Board and
Council of
Governors

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement
A.1.1

Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

The schedule of matters
reserved for the board of
directors should include a clear
statement detailing the roles
and responsibilities of the
council of governors.

Directors’ report
– Board section
and Council of
Governors
section.

This statement should also
describe how any disagreements
between the council of governors
and the board of directors will be
resolved.

There were no
disagreements
between the council of
governors and the
board of directors. A
dispute resolution
process has been
included in the
Directors’ report along
with a statement on
working relationships.

The annual report should include
this schedule of matters or a
summary statement of how the
board of directors and the council
of governors operate, including a
summary of the types of
decisions to be taken by each of
the boards and which are
delegated to the executive
management of the board of
directors.

Directors’ report
– Board section
and Council of
Governors
section
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Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement

Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

Disclose

Board,
Nomination,
Audit,
Remuneration
Committees

A.1.2

The annual report should identify
the chairperson, the deputy
chairperson (where there is one),
the chief executive, the senior
independent director (A.4.1) and
the chairperson and members of
the nominations, audit and
remuneration committees. It
should also set out the number of
meetings of the board and those
committees and individual
attendance by directors.

Directors’ Report –
throughout the report

Disclose

Council of
Governors

A.5.3

The annual report should identify the Directors’ Report –
members of the council of
Council of Governors
governors, including a description of section
the constituency or organisation that
they represent, whether they were
elected or appointed, and the
duration of their appointments. The
annual report should also identify
the nominated lead governor.

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Council of
Governors

N/A

The annual report should include a
Directors’ Report –
statement about the number of
Council of Governors
meetings of the council of governors section
and individual attendance by
governors and directors.

Disclose

Board

B.1.1

The board of directors should
identify in the annual report each
non-executive director it
considers to be independent,
with reasons where necessary

Directors’
Report
All non-executive
directors are
independent as per the
GH¿QLWLRQLQ&RGH
Provision B.1.1.

Disclose

Board

B.1.4

The board of directors should
include in its annual report a
description of each director’s
skills, expertise and experience.
Alongside this, in the annual
report, the board should make a
clear statement about its own
balance, completeness and
appropriateness to the
requirements of the NHS
Foundation Trust.

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Board

N/A

The annual report should include Directors’ Report
a brief description of the length
of appointments of the nonexecutive directors, and how
they may be terminated.

Disclose

Nominations
Committees

N/A

A separate section of the annual
report should describe the work of
the nominations committees,
including the process it has used in
relation to board appointments.
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Directors’ Report –
Biographies and Board
section

Directors’ Report

Governance Disclosures

Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement

Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Nominations
Committees

N/A

The disclosure in the annual report
on the work of the nominations
committee should include an
explanation if neither an external
search consultancy nor open
advertising has been used in the
appointment of a chair or nonexecutive director.

An external search
consultancy was used
for NED recruitment
during the year.

Disclose

Chair / Council
of Governors

B.3.1

$FKDLUSHUVRQ¶VRWKHUVLJQL¿FDQW
commitments should be
disclosed to the council of
governors before appointment
and included in the annual
report. Changes to such
commitments should be
reported to the council of
governors as they arise, and
included in the next annual
report.

As part of the
appointment
process the
governors were
made aware of
Shena Winning’s
professional
commitments at the
time and an up to
date declaration of
interests is detailed
on the Trust
website http://
www. medway.nhs.
uk/about-the- trust/
freedom-ofinformation/
publicationscheme/lists-andregisters/

Disclose

Council of
Governors

B.5.6

Governors should canvass the
Directors’ Report –
opinion of the Trust’s members and Council of Governors
the public, and for appointed
section
governors the body they represent,
on the NHS Foundation Trust’s
forward plan, including its objectives,
priorities and strategy, and their
views should be communicated to
the board of directors. The annual
report should contain a statement as
to how this requirement has been
XQGHUWDNHQDQGVDWLV¿HG

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Council of
Governors

N/A

,IGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUWKH
Governors have exercised their
power 4 under paragraph 10C of
schedule 7 of the NHS Act 2006,
then information on this must be
included in the annual report.

This power has not
been exercised by
the Council of
Governors.

This is required by paragraph 26(2)
(aa) of schedule 7 to the NHS Act
2006, as amended by section 151
(8) of the Health and Social Care Act
2012.

4 Power to require one or more of the directors to attend a governors’ meeting for the purpose of obtaining information
about the foundation trust’s performance of its functions or the directors’ performance of their duties (and deciding
whether to propose a vote on the foundation trust’s or directors’ performance). (As inserted by section 151 (6) of the
Health and Social Care Act 2012)).
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Governance Disclosures
Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement

Disclose

Board

B.6.1

The board of directors should
state in the annual report how
performance evaluation of the
board, its committees, and its
directors, including the
chairperson, has been
conducted.

Directors’ Report

Disclose

Board

B.6.2

Where there has been external
evaluation of the board and/or
governance of the trust, the
external facilitator should be
LGHQWL¿HGLQWKHDQQXDOUHSRUW
and a statement made as to
whether they have any other
connection to the trust.

There has not been an
external evaluation of
the board in 2015/16

Disclose

Board

C.1.1

The directors should explain in
the annual report their
responsibility for preparing the
annual report and accounts, and
state that they consider the
annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable
and provide the information
necessary for patients,
regulators and other
stakeholders to assess the NHS
Foundation Trust’s performance,
business model and strategy.

Stated in the
“Statement of the chief
executive’s
responsibilities as the
DFFRXQWLQJRI¿FHURI
Medway NHS
Foundation Trust.”

Directors should also explain
their approach to quality
governance in the Annual
Governance Statement (within
the annual report).

Quality Governance is
included in the Annual
Governance Statement.

The annual report should contain
a statement that the board has
conducted a review of the
effectiveness of its system of
internal controls.

Annual Governance
Statement

A Trust should disclose in the
annual report:

The Trust does not have
its own internal audit
department. Internal
audit services are
provided by KPMG, an
external provider.

Disclose

Disclose

Board

Audit
Committee/
control
environment

C.2.1

C.2.2

(a) if it has an internal audit
function, how the function is
structured and what role it
performs; or
(b) if it does not have an internal
audit function, that fact and the
processes it employs for
evaluating and continually
improving the effectiveness of its
risk management and internal
control processes.
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Directors’ Report –
Committees section.

KPMG agrees an audit
plan with the Trust and
provides reports to the
Integrated Audit
Committee and reports
on progress made by
the Trust in
implementing the
actions required to
improve controls.

Governance Disclosures

Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement

Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

Disclose

Audit
Committee/
Council of
Governors

C.3.5

If the council of governors does not
accept the audit committee’s
recommendation on the
appointment, re-appointment or
removal of an external auditor, the
board of directors should include in
the annual report a statement from
the audit committee explaining the
recommendation and should set out
reasons why the council of
governors has taken a different
position.

The Council of
Governors approved the
appointment of Deloitte
LLP as the Trust’s
external auditor for an
initial contract period of
three years commencing
in 2014/15 with an
option to extend for a
further period of up to
two years.

Disclose

Audit
Committee

C.3.9

A separate section of the annual
report should describe the work of
the audit committee in discharging
its responsibilities. The report
should include:

Directors’ Report –
Committee section

ŶWKHVLJQL¿FDQWLVVXHVWKDWWKH
committee considered in relation to
¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRSHUDWLRQV
and compliance, and how these
issues were addressed;
Ŷ an explanation of how it has
assessed the effectiveness of the
external audit process and the
approach taken to the appointment
or re-appointment of the external
auditor, the value of external audit
services and information on the
length of tenure of the current
DXGLW¿UPDQGZKHQDWHQGHUZDV
last conducted; and
Ŷ if the external auditor provides
non-audit services, the value of the
non-audit services provided and
an explanation of how auditor
objectivity and independence are
safeguarded.
Disclose

Board /
Remuneration
Committee

D.1.3

Where an NHS Foundation Trust
releases an executive director, for
example to serve as a nonexecutive director elsewhere, the
remuneration disclosures of the
annual report should include a
statement of whether or not the
director will retain such earnings.
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None of the executive
directors have been
released to serve as a
non-executive director
elsewhere.
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Governance Disclosures
Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation

Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement

Disclose

Board

E.1.5

The board of directors should state Directors’ Report
in the annual report the steps they
have taken to ensure that the
members of the board, and in
particular the non-executive
directors, develop an
understanding of the views of
governor and members about the
NHS Foundation Trust, for
example through attendance at
meetings of the council of
governors, direct face-to-face
contact, surveys of members’
opinions and consultations.

Disclose

Board /
Membership

E.1.6

The board of directors should
monitor how representative the
NHS Foundation Trust’s
membership is and the level and
effectiveness of member
engagement and report on this in
the annual report.

Directors’ Report –
Membership section

Disclose

Membership

E.1.4

Contact procedures for members
who wish to communicate with
governors and/or directors should
be made clearly available to
members on the NHS Foundation
Trust’s website and in the annual
report.

Directors’ Report –
Membership section

Additional
requirement
of FT ARM

Membership

N/A

The annual report should include:

Directors’ Report –
Membership section

Ŷ a brief description of the eligibility
requirements for joining different
membership constituencies,
including the boundaries for public
membership;
Ŷ information on the number of
members and the number of
members in each constituency; and
Ŷ a summary of the membership
strategy, an assessment of the
membership and a description of
any steps taken during the year to
ensure a representative
membership [see also E.1.6
above], including progress towards
any recruitment targets for
members.
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Governance Disclosures

Part of
schedule A

Relating to

Additional
Board /
requirement Council of
of FT ARM
Governors
(based on
FReM
requirement)

Code of
Governance
reference
Summary of requirement
N/A

The annual report should disclose
details of company directorships or
other material interests in
companies held by governors and/
or directors where those companies
or related parties are likely to do
business, or are possibly seeking to
do business, with the NHS
Foundation Trust. As each NHS
Foundation Trust must have
registers of governors’ and
directors’ interests which are
available to the public, an
alternative disclosure is for the
annual report to simply state how
members of the public can gain
access to the registers instead of
listing all the interests in the annual
report.

Where located in
the annual report
and further
explanation
Directors’ Report details
how the Registers of
Interests for both
directors and governors
can be accessed.

Comply or explain
Medway NHS Foundation Trust has applied the principles of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of
Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most
recently revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code
issued in 2012.
At the end of March 2016, the Trust was not compliant with one of the 57 comply or explain
requirements. An explanation is stated below.
Table 2.4.2: Comply or explain
Part of
schedule A
Comply or
explain

Relating to

Code of
Governance
Summary of requirement
reference

Board

B.1.2

At least half the board, excluding
the chairperson, should comprise
non-executive directors
determined by the board to be
independent.
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Further explanation
During 2015/16 there
were a number of
changes within the
board both executive
and non-executive
which meant that this
requirement was not
always met during the
year. At the end of
March 2016, excluding
the Chair, there were
six non-executive and
six executive directors.
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2.5 Regulatory Ratings
Monitor Regulation
)ROORZLQJDUHYLHZIURP0RQLWRUDWWKHHQGRIWKH7UXVWZDVSODFHGLQVLJQL¿FDQWEUHDFKRI
two of its terms of authorisation, namely - the general duty to exercise its functions effectively,
HI¿FLHQWO\DQGHFRQRPLFDOO\DQGLWV¿QDQFLDOJRYHUQDQFHGXW\7KLVPHDQWWKDWWKH7UXVWZDV
red-rated for governance risk throughout 2011/12 and 2012/13 under the authorisation regime.
Monitor introduced the licensing regime in April 2013 for all provider organisations. This meant that
WKHSRVLWLRQRIVLJQL¿FDQWEUHDFKEHFDPHRQHRIWKHFRQGLWLRQVSODFHGRQWKHQHZOLFHQFH7KH
Trust has continued to be red-rated for governance throughout 2015/16 on this basis.
In June 2013 the Trust was one of those reviewed by Sir Bruce Keogh in relation to high mortality
rates. This review resulted in additional conditions being placed on the Trust’s licence with Monitor
in relation to A&E performance and quality of care.
During 2015/16, existing conditions have remained on the Trust’s licence. The Trust has worked
FORVHO\ZLWK0RQLWRUGXULQJWKLV¿QDQFLDO\HDURQWKHUHFRYHU\SODQZKLFKZLOOOHDGWRWKHUHPRYDORI
these conditions.

Table 2.5.1: Monitor Risk Ratings 2015 / 16
Plan
Q1
Under the risk assessment framework
Continuity of
1
1
Services
Governance
Red
Red

Q2

Q3

Q4

1

1

1

Red

Red

Red

Table 2.5.2: Monitor Risk Ratings 2014 / 15
Plan
Q1
Under the risk assessment framework
Continuity of
1
1
Services
Governance
Red
Red

Q2

72

Q4

1

1

1

Red

Red

Red

The planned COSRR for Q1 and Q2 in 2016/17 is 1 and 1.
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2.6 6WDWHPHQWRI$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV
Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the Accounting
2I¿FHURI0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW
It is the responsibility of the directors to prepare the annual report and accounts. The directors
consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders
to assess the Trust’s performance, business model and strategy.
7KH1+6$FWVWDWHVWKDWWKH&KLHI([HFXWLYHLVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHURIWKH1+6)RXQGDWLRQ
7UXVW7KHUHOHYDQWUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVRIWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULQFOXGLQJWKHLUUHVSRQVLELOLW\IRUWKH
SURSULHW\DQGUHJXODULW\RISXEOLF¿QDQFHVIRUZKLFKWKH\DUHDQVZHUDEOHDQGIRUWKHNHHSLQJRI
SURSHUDFFRXQWVDUHVHWRXWLQWKH1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU0HPRUDQGXPLVVXHG
by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Medway NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each
¿QDQFLDO\HDUDVWDWHPHQWRIDFFRXQWVLQWKHIRUPDQGRQWKHEDVLVVHWRXWLQWKH$FFRXQWV
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of Medway NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total
UHFRJQLVHGJDLQVDQGORVVHVDQGFDVKÀRZVIRUWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHDFFRXQWVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVUHTXLUHGWRFRPSO\ZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
Ɣ Observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Ɣ Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
Ɣ State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
GHSDUWXUHVLQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Ɣ Ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated
authorities and guidance; and
Ɣ 3UHSDUHWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRQDJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLV
7KH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUNHHSLQJSURSHUDFFRXQWLQJUHFRUGVZKLFKGLVFORVHZLWK
UHDVRQDEOHDFFXUDF\DWDQ\WLPHWKH¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWDQGWRHQDEOH
her to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act.
7KH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUVDIHJXDUGLQJWKHDVVHWVRIWKH1+6)RXQGDWLRQ
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
0RQLWRU¶V1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU0HPRUDQGXP

Signed

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
26 May 2016
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2.7 Annual Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility
$V$FFRXQWLQJ 2I¿FHU,KDYHUHVSRQVLELOLW\IRUPDLQWDLQLQJDVRXQGV\VWHPRILQWHUQDOFRQWURO WKDW
supports the achievement of Medway NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the
NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied
HI¿FLHQWO\DQGHIIHFWLYHO\,DOVRDFNQRZOHGJHP\UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVDVVHWRXWLQWKHNHS Foundation
Trust Accounting 2I¿FHU Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control described herein has been subject to a number of changes in the
leadership and management of Medway NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2016
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
Whilst the system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
limited and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control has been based
on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the
policies, aims and objectives of Medway NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage WKHPHI¿FLHQWO\
effectively and economically.

Capacity to handle risk
Leadership
The overall responsibility for the management of risk lies with the Chief Executive as Accounting
2I¿FHU7KH%RDUGRIDirectors, collectively and individually, are responsible for ensuring that robust
systems of internal control and management are in place. Responsibility for leading the management
of risk throughout the Trust has been delegated to the executive directors to identify and manage
those risks within their sphere of responsibility.
Although this annual governance statement relates to 2015/16, it is useful to provide some background
context to the changes in Trust leadership that have occurred during the last three years.
In February 2013, Medway NHS Foundation Trust was one of 14 trusts that became subject to Sir
Bruce Keogh’s review of the quality of care and treatment at hospitals with the highest mortality rates.
The planned integration of Medway Foundation Trust and Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust was
paused in February 2013 when it became apparent that Medway NHS Foundation Trust was one of
the trusts under investigation as part of the Keogh Review. Following the outcome of the Review
which was reported in July 2013, the Trust was put into Special Measures in August 2013 by its
regulator, Monitor, and subsequently in October 2013 it was formally agreed that the merger would not
take place. Following the announcement of the Trust being in Special Measures, considerable changes
took place within the executive team with a number of interim appointments made to cover vacancies
in the Trust leadership. It is recognised that these changes in the Trust leadership, as described below,
have hindered the Trust’s ability to turn the Trust around and out of Special Measures.
Following the resignation of Denise Harker, Chair, and Mark Devlin, Chief Executive, in February 2014,
Monitor gave an instruction for the Trust to appoint Christopher Langley as Interim Chair and Nigel
Beverley as Interim Chief Executive until substantive appointments could be made. The Medical
Director, Dr Philip Barnes, took on the role of Acting Chief Executive from Nigel Beverley in July 2014
and Dr Paul Ryan was appointed as Acting Medical Director to cover this role. During that time there
were also a number of other departures from other members of the executive team which included the
Director of Finance, Director of Strategy, Governance and Infrastructure, the Chief Nurse and the
Director of Organisational Development and Communications. In addition to the executive team there
were also resignations from a number of Non-Executive Directors.
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In September 2014, Shena Winning was appointed as Chair of the Trust, having for a short time prior to
this appointment been a Non-Executive Director at the Trust. Shortly after her appointment, the Chair
made it a priority to recruit a permanent Chief Executive. It was acknowledged that as the Trust
remained in Special Measures, this would deter some candidates from applying. After two recruitment
rounds, a successful appointment was made and Lesley Dwyer took up the post of Chief Executive on
18 May 2015. Since that time the Chief Executive has continued to recruit a new and restructured
executive team.
Dr Patricia Bain was appointed as Director of Health Informatics on 1 October 2014 (non-voting)
DQGVXEVHTXHQWO\EHFDPH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU DIXOOYRWLQJPHPEHURIWKHERDUG RQ0DUFK
2015. The appointments to the seconded positions of Medical Director, Diana Hamilton-Fairley, and
Director of Nursing, Karen Rule, have been made through the Trust’s formal buddying agreement
with Guy’s and St Thomas NHS Foundation Trust. A new organisational structure came into effect
LQ$XJXVWPHDQLQJWKDWZKHQWKH&KLHI2SHUDWLQJ2I¿FHU0RUDJ-DFNVRQOHIWWKH7UXVWLQ
November 2015, a decision was made that this position was no longer required and would be
superseded by the Directors of Clinical Operations, one leading each of the three new directorates.
Rebecca Bradd has been acting into the position of Director of Workforce since Roberta Barker left
the Trust in January 2016.
The post of Director of Corporate Affairs was covered on an interim basis by a number of
individuals from September 2014 until February 2016 when Lynne Stuart was appointed as the
permanent Director of Governance, Risk, Compliance and Legal Services. Darren Cattell also
joined the Trust in February 2016 as Director of Finance on a long term interim arrangement,
following the departure of Tim Bolot when his contract expired on 24 December 2015. A permanent
Company Secretary was appointed in January 2016 and three new Non-Executive Directors were
appointed during 2015. The Board is now going through a period of stabilisation with some signs
that the new Trust leadership team is starting to make a positive difference.

How staff are trained or equipped to manage risk
The Director RI*RYHUQDQFH5LVN&RPSOLDQFHDQG/HJDO6HUYLFHVKDVLGHQWL¿HGDQXPEHURI
improvements that need to be made to the risk management framework. A full implementation
plan has been drawn up which includes provision for addressing training needs. This plan was
reviewed by the Integrated Audit Committee at a meeting on 9 March 2016 with implementation
commencing thereafter. The plan includes actions to address a number of areas where
improvements are needed including:
Ɣ ,GHQWL¿FDWLRQRIULVNV
Ɣ Risk assessment process
Ɣ Enhanced software platform for effective risk management
Ɣ Refreshing the risk management strategy
Ɣ The establishment of a Risk Governance Group to ensure that governance leads across the
organisation have a forum for risk management learning, development and issues.
For front-line staff, during 2015/16 the IRFXVKDVEHHQRQVXEMHFWVSHFL¿Ftopics across the core
mandatory subjects VXFKDVLQIRUPDWLRQJRYHUQDQFHVDIHJXDUGLQJKHDOWKDQGVDIHW\¿UHVDIHW\
manual handling, duty of candour and root cause analysis training. Training and development has
commenced at directorate level on the use of risk registers and guidance and support is being
provided on how risk management should be incorporated into directorate governance meetings.
Risks to data security are managed by providing annual information governance training and regular
global emails are sent to remind staff of the risks of not securing information. This is discussed further
in the information governance section of this Annual Governance Statement.
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The risk and control framework
Risk management
A revised Governance Framework was approved by the Board in June 2015 which included some
of the elements of risk management that would normally be found within the Trust’s Risk
Management Strategy. Due to changes in the Board and governance structure, the Trust Risk
Management Strategy has not been reviewed during 2015/16 but a review is scheduled and
LGHQWL¿HGLQWKH5LVN0DQDJHPHQW)UDPHZRUN,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ3ODQ
Whilst the formal arrangements for risk management at the Trust are currently being strengthened,
the approach taken has continued to aim to:
Ɣ Ensure that risks to the qualit\DQGGHOLYHU\RISDWLHQWFDUHDUHLGHQWL¿HGPLQLPLVHGPDQDJHG
and escalated effectively;
Ɣ Protect the services, reputation DQG¿QDQFHVRIWKHorganisation;
Ɣ Create a culture where staff acknowledge risk as the responsibility of everyone, but which
also supports the provision of realistic resources, training and information;
Ɣ Act as an enabler in assisting the organisation to meet its statutory requirements. Although
NH\VWUDWHJLFULVNVKDYHEHHQLGHQWL¿HGDQGPRQLWRUHGE\the Trust Board, operational risks
are managed on a day-to-day basis by staff throughout the Trust.
5LVNVDUHLGHQWL¿HGIURPDQXPEHURIsources including:
Ɣ Risk assessments
Ɣ Directorate meetings
Ɣ Performance reports
Ɣ Serious Incidents, complaints and claims
Ɣ Reports from external organisations and external audits
Ɣ Internal and external auditors’ reports
(DUO\LQWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUDUHYLHZRIWKH%RDUG$VVXUDQFH)UDPHZRUNDQG&RUSRUDWH
5LVN5HJLVWHULGHQWL¿HGWKHQHHGIRUWKHVHWREHUHYLVHGDQGSUHVHQWHGLQDPRUHobjective and
understandable manner and with a greater focus on risk analysis, control and measurement. Apart
from the Board Assurance Framework and the Corporate Risk Register, the Trust also has a
number of risk registers at different levels of the organisation, which includes directorate and
specialty level risk registers.
Due to senior management changes in 2015/16 there was a delay in taking this work forward. As
part of the of the Risk Management Strategy Implementation Plan, the Board Assurance Framework ,
Corporate Risk Register and other directorate/specialty level risk registers are now being been
totally reviewed, having taken into consideration the comments from the Integrated Audit Committee
and the Trust’s internal auditors.

Risk appetite
The Trust recognises that it is not possible to deliver its services and achieve positive outcomes for its
patients, staff and stakeholders in a completely risk-free context. Indeed, most actions that result in
EHQH¿WZLOOLQYROYHVRPH form of risk. The Trust does however take these risks in a controlled manner,
thus reducing its exposure to a level deemed acceptable by the Board and, by extension, external
inspectors, regulators and relevant legislation.
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The risk management process is designed to identify the principal risks to the achievement of the
organisation’s objectives; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and determine the
RUJDQLVDWLRQ¶VDSSHWLWHIRUWKRVHULVNVDQGWRPDQDJHWKHPHI¿FLHQWO\HIIHFWLYHO\DQGHFRQRPLFDOO\

Key risks
5LVN±6WDI¿QJOHYHOV
If the levels of vacancies remain high, particularly for
nursing and medical staff, then this may negatively
impact both patient experience and patient safety.

Rationale
Ɣ 5HFUXLWPHQWDQGUHWHQWLRQLVDVLJQL¿FDQW
risk at present particularly in clinical
areas.
Ɣ As retention improves and vacancies
DUH¿OOHGWKHrisk would reduce but the
impact would remain should short term
RUEXVLQHVVFULWLFDOVWDI¿QJLVVXHVoccur.

1DWLRQDOO\WKHUHLVDGH¿FLWRIUHJLVWHUHGQXUVHVZKLFKLVQHJDWLYHO\LPSDFWLQJRQWKH7UXVW¶VDELOLW\WR
consistently deliver timely and patient-centred care and as a result there is an over-reliance on using
agency staff.
How we are addressing the risk:
Ɣ 7KLVKDVEHHQLGHQWL¿HGDVRQHRIWKHVL[NH\FRPPLWPHQWVZLWKLQWKH7UXVW
Recovery Plan
Ɣ A number of actions have already been taken to strengthen recruitment and retention
including the implementation of a new senior management operational structure; an
enhanced rapid recruitment programme including an electronic tracking system (TRAC);
implementation of a Clinical Leadership programme and the creation of an “in-house” staff
EDQNZKLFKZLOOVLJQL¿FDQWO\UHGXFHRYHUUHOLDQFHRQDJHQF\VWDII
Ɣ A number of other initiatives are in the process of being developed to support this.
Risk – Impact of Constrained Financial Resources
7KH7UXVWKDGDVLJQL¿FDQWGH¿FLWLQWKH
¿QDQFLDO\HDUDQGLVIRUHFDVWWRGHOLYHUDQRWKHU
VLJQL¿FDQWGH¿FLWLQThere is a risk that in
DWWHPSWLQJWRFORVHWKHGH¿FLWthe Trust increases
risks to the quality of patient care.

Rationale
Ɣ The Trust is currently facing severe
¿QDQFLDOSUHVVXUHV (which is
comparable to the national
picture).
Ɣ The Executive Team, overseen
by the Trust Board, is driving
hard to reduce the overall level
of GH¿FLW
Ɣ In such circumstances, it is important
WKDW¿QDQFHand care quality issues are
carefully balanced.

How we are addressing the risk:
Ɣ All savings schemes are reviewed by the Executive Team, and have explicit sign off by the
Director of Nursing and the Medical Director based on an assessment of the impact on
quality
Ɣ A management dashboard is reviewed weekly by the Executive Team.
7KLVGDVKERDUGLQFOXGHVNH\TXDOLW\¿QDQFLDOand operational metrics
Ɣ A monthly performance management framework has been established during 2015/16
which includes a review with directorate PDQDJHPHQWRITXDOLW\¿QDQFLDODQGRSHUDWLRQDO
performance
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Ɣ 7KH7UXVW%RDUGUHYLHZVNH\TXDOLW\¿QDQFLDODQGRSHUDWLRQDOPHWULFVPRQWKO\
to ensure that areas RIFRQFHUQDUHLGHQWL¿HGDQGDGGUHVVHGE\WKH
Executive Team.
Risk – Emergency care
A failure to respond effectively to excessive
emergency demand may lead to a compromise in
providing safe care.

Rationale
Ɣ The Trust remains in special measures.
Ɣ Our 4 hour A&E performance during
2015/16 remained poor.
Ɣ Trust reputation is being negatively
impacted.
Ɣ /RVVRIFRQ¿GHQFHRIFRPPLVVLRQHUV
Ɣ CQC rated services as inadequate
during the August / September 2015
inspection process.

Capacity within the Emergency Department has been severely challenged throughout 2015/16.
7KLVKDVEHHQGXHWRDQXPEHURIIDFWRUVDIIHFWLQJSDWLHQWÀRZWKURXJKWKHFDUHSDWKZD\VXFKDV
increasing numbers of patient attendances, delayed discharges of medically optimised patients
across the Trust and the existing medical model of care.
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How we are addressing the risk:
Ɣ A comprehensive and overarching Emergency Department Improvement Plan was
established in September 2015 with key performance indicators mapped to timed
trajectories
Ɣ We have been working toward changing the acute medical model of care, and launched a new
Medical Model on 14 March 2016
Ɣ Working with the Urgent & Emergency Care Intensive Support Team (through NHS IMAS) to
improve patient ÀRZ
Ɣ A new ‘frailty’ model of care has been designed by our elderly care consultants and is being
implemented
Ɣ Continuing to improve in-patient ward processes to speed recovery
Ɣ *DLQLQJPRUHFRQWURODQGLQÀXHQFHRYHUGLVFKDUJHSODQQLQJ
Ɣ Reporting delayed discharges (health and social care) externally
Risk – Mortality
As stated earlier in this report, the Trust was placed
in Special Measures in 2013 following the Keogh
Review into failing hospitals in England which took
DFFRXQWRIWKH¿QGLQJVRID&DUH4XDOLW\
&RPPLVVLRQUHYLHZZKLFKLGHQWL¿HGDKLJKOHYHOof
mortality rates.
If mortality rates fail to improve it suggests that
patients could be put at risk, the Trust’s reputation
will be negatively impacted, with a continued loss of
FRQ¿GHQFHfrom regulators, commissioners and
patients.

Rationale
Ɣ The Trust remains in special measures.
Ɣ Our Hospital Standardised Mortality
Ratio (HSMR) and Summary Hospitallevel Mortality Index (SHMI) remain
statistically higher than expected
however a downward trend in HSMR
from 120 to 106 has been evidenced in
recent months.
Ɣ Trust reputation is being negatively
impacted.
Ɣ /RVVRIFRQ¿GHQFHRIUHJXODWRUV

Throughout 2015/16, the Trust has continued to focus its efforts on improving its mortality rates.
How we are addressing the risk:
Ɣ Re-designed the mortality review structure
Ɣ Created a mortality review template that is now being used Trust-wide
Ɣ Established a Trust-wide Mortality Group
Ɣ Directorate / Specialty mortality review groups
Ɣ Continuing to improve on clinical coding accuracy and coding / clinician engagement
Ɣ Getting external advice and support through our formal buddying arrangement with Guy’s
and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust and implementing these changes through our
revised clinical governance structures and processes
Ɣ Pathway / Disease and other sSHFL¿FJURXSVHJ6WURNH6HSVLV'HWHULRUDWLQJ
Patient etc.
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Risk – Leadership
Rationale
If there is a lack of clear and consistent leadership,
Ɣ There is no established system in place
coupled with variability of management skills, staff
to adequately identify leadership skills
engagement and performance may decline, and as a
and training requirements.
consequence, the Trust will not be able to meet its
Ɣ The risk rating would reduce with
operational and strategic objectives.
adequate systems, access to data and
relevant training.

How we are addressing the risk:
Ɣ Recruitment to a fully established Board of Directors with an associated board development
programme being devised
Ɣ A number of substantive appointments to the Executive Team
Ɣ Review of directorate and senior management structures undertaken and new positions
appointed to including the appointment of new clinical directors within each of the
directorate care programmes
Ɣ Clinical leadership programme started
Ɣ Review of Trust vision and values undertaken and preparation for launch in 2016/17
¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Ɣ Review of learning and development function being undertaken to ensure adequate support
for delivery

Governance structure
During the course of the year there have been a number of changes made to improve the
governance structure of the Trust and in June 2015 a revised Governance Framework was
approved by the Board. The Framework mainly details the clinical governance and operational
management arrangements for implementing changes to the Trust’s committees, executive
groups, processes, roles and responsibilities with the aim of improving and providing greater clarity
over many aspects of clinical governance. There remains substantial improvement to be made in
respect of the Trust’s corporate governance and risk management arrangements, which the newly
appointed Director of Governance, Risk, Compliance and Legal Services is addressing. This
programme of improvement will continue during 2016/17.
Improvements made in respect of clinical governance arrangements during 2015/16 include:
Ɣ An improving level of Board assurance in respect of the safety and quality of services
provided to patients
Ɣ An improving level of Board assurance in respect RI¿QDQFLDODQGoperational performance
Ɣ Clear Executive Director responsibilities and accountability
Ɣ Clear Senior Management roles, responsibilities and accountability
Ɣ Clear scheme of delegated authority to improve decision making at all levels
Ɣ Formal processes for routine review of performance against plans, including processes for
reviewing the implementation of actions to address operational risk
Ɣ Standardising a consistent approach to clinical / quality governance and operational
management across each directorate
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Executive Recovery Group
As part of the revised Governance Framework, an Executive Recovery Group (ERG) has been
created and has been meeting on a weekly basis. The Group is not a sub-committee of the Board.
However, the ERG allows for detailed scrutiny of the Trust’s Recovery Plan and the management
of risk to enable the Trust to progress out of the Special Measures regime. This allows for more
in-depth discussion on performance matters than would be feasible during Board meetings.

Board committees providing assurance
The Trust’s Integrated Audit Committee, as an oversight committee, reviews whether there is an
effective system of integrated governance, risk management and internal control across the whole
of the Trust’s activities (both clinical and non-clinical) that support the achievement of the Trust’s
objectives. It also receives regular reports on WKHZRUNDQG¿QGLQJVRIWKHH[WHUQDODQGLQWHUQDO
auditors as well as from the local counter-fraud specialist. Following each meeting feedback is
given to the Board by the Committee Chair who is a Non-Executive Director.
The Quality Assurance Committee provides the Board, and thereby the Trust’s Council of
Governors, with assurance that the Trust is delivering safe, high quality care and, if it is not, that
effective mechanisms are in place to remedy this as quickly as possible. The Committee can, and
regularly does, request that a report is provided by any executive group / committee (all levels) on
any clinical / quality-related matter and that a representative attend in person to present and
explain.
The Investment and Contracts &RPPLWWHHUHYLHZVVLJQL¿FDQWEXVLQHVVFDVHVSURSRVDOVIRU
disinvestments and contracts and focuses on providing effective scrutiny and onward
recommendations for the Board to consider for approval.
Due to the critical nature of workforce issues impacting on the delivery of patient care, the Board
made a decision to terminate the Workforce Committee, ensuring that all matters related to
workforce are reviewed at Board meetings.

Executive / operational groups
The main executive groups that have been fully functional since June are the Executive Committee
and Clinical Executive Committee which together replaced the former Chief Executive Advisory
Group (CEAG). The Committees were established to support the Chief Executive and other
Executive Directors and Clinical Directors in delivering the tasks delegated to them by the Trust
Board. They are responsible for agreeing strategies and plans and reviewing performance prior to
consideration by the Trust Board. Also, they are accountable for delivering the strategic and annual
plans approved by the Board.
In addition, the Executive Committee co-ordinates the monitoring of all Trust activity, thereby
ensuring effective management of the organisation. It provides assurance to all Board subcommittees (along with supporting management groups where relevant) in all aspects of the Trust
management; and it ensures that new issues pertinent to the Trust are effectively managed.

Quality governance
The Board receives monthly reports on key quality indicators which include mortality, falls,
pressure ulcers, serious incidents and meeting national and contractual targets.
There are a number of groups with VSHFL¿Fresponsibility for clinical and quality governance
including patient safety, health and safety and information governance. As part of the
implementation of the Governance Framework, there is now also an executive led Quality
Improvement Group which, although is not an assurance group in itself, provides a regular report
to the Quality Assurance Committee. The Quality Improvement Group concentrates on the
operational delivery of improving quality across the Trust whereas the Quality Assurance
Committee (a board committee) provides an overview of assurance and includes Non-Executive
Director members.
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The Trust will continue to strengthen the quality governance structure in tandem with any and all
revisions to the corporate governance arrangements, which is a key consideration for the recently
appointed Director of Governance, Risk, Compliance and Legal Services.
The Chief Quality OI¿FHU has strategic oversight of all quality matters within the Trust, working
closely with Medical 'LUHFWRUDQG'LUHFWRURI1XUVLQJ7KH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUDOVRKDVH[HFXWLYH
responsibility for health informatics which means that the management of quality is aligned to both
information and performance management.
,QWKH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUXQGHUWRRNDIXUWKHUUHYLHZof the Trust’s compliance against
Monitor’s Quality Governance Framework.

Incident reporting
The reporting of incidents and near misses is widely encouraged and the use of DATIX, the Trust’s
electronically-based reporting system, allows incidents to be inputted at source and data
interrogated through ward, specialty and directorate processes. This encourages local ownership
and accountability for incident management and the sharing of lessons learned.
There is now an established weekly Harm Free Care meeting chaired by the Medical Director,
'LUHFWRURI1XUVLQJRUWKH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU LQURWDWLRQ ZKHUHE\DOOLQFLGHQWVFDWHJRULVHGDV
µPRGHUDWHKDUP¶RUJUHDWHUDUHUHYLHZHGDQGGHFLVLRQVPDGHDVWRWKHFRUUHFWOHYHORIQRWL¿FDWLRQ
and investigation required.
The Trust has been raising staff awareness in relation to their obligations in applying the Duty of
Candour through a series of sessions aimed at established staff and for new starters at induction,
whilst a comprehensive training programme regarding incident reporting and management and
Root Cause Analysis training is well underway.
Both the Serious Incident Policy and Procedure and the Being Open policy have been revised to
streamline them and ensure that lessons learnt DUHVXI¿FLHQWO\FDSWXUHGand communicated across
the Trust.
Since July 2015 the Trust has been implementing an overarching Serious Incident Action Plan,
agreed with its commissioners, to close off a back-log of improvement actions arising from serious
incident investigations. This plan is shared with the Patient Safety Committee but is formally
reviewed and monitored at the monthly Quality Improvement Group.

Information governance
The Trust submitted the Information Governance Toolkit on 18 March 2016, achieving level 2
compliance with an overall “satisfactory” rating.
The Information Governance Group regularly reviews policies, incidents, training and statutory
compliance. Policies are in place, outlining appropriate use of email, internet and equipment, and
these are reviewed and updated. All known incidents are logged and reported to the Information
*RYHUQDQFH*URXS$EULH¿QJLVDOVRSURYLGHGWRWKH&KLHI([HFXWLYHoutlining recent incidents,
work undertaken by the Information Governance Group and progress against the Information
Governance Toolkit.
The Trust had 150 incidents reported internally in 2015/16 (April – February) compared to 178
between April 2014 and March 2015. 60% of incidents were information disclosed in error. Staff
are informed of this at training sessions and reminded to take FDUHZKHQ¿OOLQJLQQRWHVRUhanding
information to patients.
Two serious incidents were reported via the Toolkit to the Information Commissioner in 2015/16.
Both incidents were fully investigated and a review of processes undertaken. As a result of these
incidents awareness has increased and has been cascaded down through the directorates. In
respect of staff information governance training, compliance is actively monitored, reminders are
sent and a monthly report provided for all Directorates. This has resulted in improvement. The
decision to remove the access to IT systems for staff whose training was more than three months
out of date remains in effect.
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Compliance with the Trust’s licence
The Trust continues to face considerable challenges and remains in the Special Measures regime
and therefore subject to continuing enforcement action. Since 27 April 2011, the Trust has
remained in breach of two of its licence conditions:
Ɣ The duty to exercise its functions HIIHFWLYHO\HI¿FLHQWO\and economically;
Ɣ The Governance duty.
Under Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework, as in the previous year, the Trust has a Continuity of
Services Rating of “1” which means that WKH7UXVWKDVVLJQL¿FDQW¿QDQFLDOrisk and it also continues
to have a Governance Rating of “red.” As part of the Special Measures regime, the Trust is subject
to monthly performance review meetings with Monitor and weekly conference calls with wider
stakeholders – representatives from the Care Quality Commission (CQC), Medway and Swale
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and NHS England.
The Trust has started to see some positive signs of improvement and this has been particularly
SUHYDOHQWLQWKHODWWHUKDOIRIWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU since the introduction of a new senior management
team.
As part of the Trust Recovery Plan, the Trust is actively addressing its licence breaches by
continuing to develop and implement robust management structures and governance processes,
including those described above, and also wLOOEHXQGHUWDNLQJDFOLQLFDODQG¿QDQFLDO sustainability
review going forward.

Compliance with the Care Quality Commission Fundamental Standards
As part of the Trust’s compliance assurance process, the Trust undertook a series of Better Care
Together (BCT) Internal Reviews on the wards and departments within WKH7UXVWLQWKH¿UVWKDOIRI
WKLVUHSRUWLQJSHULRG7KHVHUHYLHZVZHUHEDVHGRQWKH&4&.H\/LQHVRI(QTXLU\RIWKH¿YH
domains of safety, effectiveness, caring, responsive and well-led. The directorates are responsible
for monitoring their level of compliance and any associated improvement actions through their
directorate governance meetings.
These reviews enabled the wards and departments to experience a CQC-style inspection and to
provide a review of current compliance within the clinical areas. These reviews also served to
inform the Trust of gaps in compliance and identify areas where remedial action was required.
During the last review, just prior to the CQC’s August 2015 inspection, the Trust self-assessed itself
as not fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.
Going forward, monitoring of compliance will be undertaken by a new Compliance and Risk Group,
once it is established in May 2016.

Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection visits during 2015/16
Following a comprehensive inspection of Medway NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) by the CQC in
April 2014, the Trust was given an overall rating of inadequate and has been subject to further
critical CQC inspections over the last two years, namely in April 2014 (Emergency Department and
Surgical Services), July 2014 (Emergency Department and Surgical Services) and August 2014
(Emergency Department). As a result of those inspections the CQC undertook Enhanced
Enforcement action and imposed conditions on the Trust’s registration which required the Trust to
undertake an initial assessment of all patients that presented to the Emergency Department within
15 minutes of their arrival.
The Care Quality Commission carried out a second Comprehensive Inspection of the Trust on 25
– 27 August 2015, with further unannounced inspections taking place on 8, 9 & 13 September
'XULQJWKLVPRVWUHFHQWLQVSHFWLRQWKH&4&ZDVVDWLV¿HGWKDWWKH7UXVWZDVPHHWLQJWKH
condition imposed in August 2014, as described above, and has since removed this condition from
the Trust’s registration.
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Findings
The CQC published the report on its August / September inspection on 7 January 2016. The Trust
received the following overall ratings:

In addition to an overarching Trust level rating, each of the eight core services inspected received
the following ratings:

$OWKRXJKWKH7UXVWKDGDOUHDG\UHFRJQLVHGPDQ\RIWKHLVVXHVWKDWWKH&4&LGHQWL¿HGDVDUHDVIRU
LPSURYHPHQWDQGKDGDFWLRQSODQVLQSODFH LWKDGIRUH[DPSOHGHYHORSHG¿YH5HPHGLDO$FWLRQ
Plans relating to cancer, imaging, the Emergency Department, referral-to-treatment (RTT) and
HQGRVFRS\ LWZDVFOHDUWKDWVLJQL¿FDQWDFFHOHUDWLRQLQWKHSDFHRIWKHZRUNZDVQHHGHG
1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJWKLVWKH7UXVWDFFHSWHGWKH&4&¶VRYHUDOO¿QGLQJVDQGH[SUHVVHGLWVUHJUHWWKDWLW
was falling short of what the people of Medway and Swale deserve.
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Quality Summit
The Trust recognises that it cannot improve the hospital without support from a whole range of
partners. In this context, it was very helpful that the day after the report, on 8 January 2016, the
CQC hosted a Quality Summit which brought together representatives from the Trust, other
regulatory bodies and a range of other stakeholders, including Kent and Medway Councils.
Over 90 people attended the summit. In round table sessions, those present explored the key
challenges facing the Trust, and the ways in which they could support the Trust to address these.
Everyone present made a pledge around the action they would take.
The event was extremely positive – although everyone recognised the scale of the work needed in
improving the hospital, all participants committed to working with the Trust to bring about the
changes that are needed.
,QSUHVHQWLQJKLVVXPPDU\RIWKHNH\¿QGLQJV3URIHVVRU6LU0LNH5LFKDUGVWKH&KLHI,QVSHFWRURI
Hospitals, reported that the CQC saw several areas of improvement and outstanding practice
including:
Ɣ 7KHRUWKRWLFVGHSDUWPHQWZKLFKKDGDOVREHHQLGHQWL¿HGE\1+6(QJODQGDVDVHUYLFHWR
benchmark against, because of the waiting times (90% of all patients seen the same day or
next day).
Ɣ The maternity team, for the multidisciplinary teamwork in providing support for women
LGHQWL¿HGLQWKHDQWHQDWDOSHULRGDVUHTXLULQJDQHOHFWLYHFDHVDUHDQVHFWLRQ
Ɣ The Oliver Fisher Neonatal Unit
Ɣ The hospital play areas
7KHUHSRUWDOVRLGHQWL¿HVVHYHUDOH[DPSOHVRIJRRGSUDFWLFH
Ɣ The Intensive and Surgical High Dependency Care Units
Ɣ The leadership of the outpatient nursing team
Ɣ Overall, that the Trust’s staff were caring and supportive with patients and those close to
them, and that staff responded with compassion to patients in pain and to other fundamental
needs.
Ɣ Staff treated patients with dignity and respect and people felt supported and cared for as a
result.

Our improvement plan
The Trust submitted its improvement plan to the CQC on 8 February 2016. It is centred on six key
commitments:
Ɣ Modernising the Emergency Department, reducing the time it takes for patients to be seen
and assessed
Ɣ Improving patient safety and care by minimising the number of different doctors that patients
see during their stay in hospital
Ɣ Accelerating the recruitment drive to bring in the right people with the right skills. This will
ensure consistent high quality care by reducing our dependency on interims and agency
staff
Ɣ Continuing to improve the Trust’s corporate and clinical governance, which will support both
safe and high quality patient care and a productive working culture for staff
Ɣ Improving care for patients with cancer, reducing waiting times, replacing scanners and
providing additional clinic appointments for patients to see specialists
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Ɣ Working closely with the Trust’s healthcare partners to ensure patients receive the right care
in the community, when they are ready to leave hospital. This will free up beds for people
coming into the hospital.
The Trust has put in place a specialist team, mainly drawn from colleagues already working within
the Trust, and from its buddy Trust, Guy’s and St Thomas’, to co-ordinate and drive the plan, and
the team has made a good start in mobilising and engaging staff to generate the improvements
needed. It is critical that staff are fully engaged to generate the improvements needed.
In March 2016 the Trust rolled-out of a new way of treating patients that reduces the number of
doctors they see and the amount of time they spend in the hospital. In addition the opening of a
new waiting area in the Emergency Department and the launch of an in-house bank of locum
nurses and other staff groups means the Trust is less reliant on costly agency staff.
The plan is underpinned by a range of Key Performance Indicators which the Trust has agreed with
the CQC, including average length of stay in the hospital, mortality rates and time spent in the
Emergency Department before being seen.

Next steps
Following the Quality Summit, the Chief Inspector of Hospitals, Professor Sir Mike Richards, wrote
to the Health Secretary informing him that the Trust would remain in special measures for a further
three months, that he was impressed by the progress that the Trust was making but added that he
ZRXOGEHPRQLWRULQJLWVSURJUHVVFORVHO\GXULQJWKLVSHULRG7KH&4&FDUULHGRXWIXUWKHU¿HOGZRUN
activities at the Trust on 29 - 30 March 2016.

Equality Impact Assessments
The Trust is required to meet its obligations in respect of the general duties under the Equality Act
(2010) and the Public Sector Equality Duties.
Equality impact assessments are undertaken on all aspects of Trust business, particularly in
respect of its plans, and the development and UHFRQ¿JXUDWLRQRIFOLQLFDOVHUYLFHV

Stakeholder Involvement
The Trust’s Council of Governors and Non-Executive Directors participate in departmental visits
throughout the hospital and engage with patients and visitors to seek their views of their
experiences whilst attending the hospital. The Trust also engages with Medway and Swale
Councils through the Health Overview and Scrutiny meetings and with other stakeholders such as
the local Health and Wellbeing Boards, when there are proposed service changes that may impact
on the local population. There is an active dialogue with commissioners in relation to the
development and GHOLYHU\RIVHUYLFHVDQGWKLVLVXVXDOO\LQÀXHQFHGE\0HGZD\DQG6ZDOH&&*V¶
commissioning intentions.
7KH7UXVW¿UPO\EHOLHYHVWKDWOLVWHQLQJDQGUHVSRQGLQJWRWKHYLHZVof patients is a fundamental
part of the way in which the Trust can continually improve and demonstrate positive change and
EXLOGD¿UPIRXQGDWLRQof openness and transparency.
The Trust welcomes all comments and complaints from patients and relatives as it allows the Trust a
chance to put things right and improve the delivery of the service. The opportunity for patients to offer
feedback has grown nationally, with public websites such as Patient Opinion and NHS Choices
widely being used by patients to describe their experiences. All directorates are sent the comments
allowing them to respond, where appropriate, so that WKH\FDQUHDG¿UVWKDQGZKDWpatients think
about the service provided.
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Trust has considered the validity of its Corporate Governance Statement through the following
assurances:
As previously described in the Governance Structure section, the Trust has a Governance
Framework which is a ‘blueprint’ of how governance is structured in the organisation. Alongside
this Framework, the Trust has its Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions.
Notwithstanding these, the Trust recognises that it has to further develop and embed more robust
corporate governance and risk management arrangements.
The Trust has regard to the Code of Governance and compliance against the Code has been
described in the Code of Governance Compliance section of this Annual Report.
The Trust’s Governance Framework has attempted to streamline the committee / group structure
and separated Board committees, which are assurance focused, from those groups that are
operationally driven and delivery focused. The latter are led by the Chief Executive and the
Executive Team.
The Board and some of the committees have annual programmes of work which ensures that they
see sight of relevant information throughout the year.
This allows for scrutiny of the Trust’s performance in an orderly, structured manner. The Board is
particularly focused on the quality of care and PDNHVVXUHWKDWLWJLYHVVXI¿FLHQWtime to reviewing
the performance in this area.
As previously stated, the Integrated Audit Committee was established to provide assurance on the
systems and processes of internal control as well as receiving reports from both internal / external
auditors where improvements are required to be made.
6LJQL¿FDQWEXVLQHVVFDVHVDQGFRQWUDFWVDUHscrutinised through the Investment and Contracts
Committee. There LVFOHDUO\GH¿QHGaccountability for the quality of care and an overarching
Quality Strategy is in place. Both the Medical Director and Director of Nursing are overall
professionally accountable while WKH&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUFUHDWHVDQHQDEOLQJLQIUDVWUXFWXUHWR
measure, monitor and improve quality.
As previously described, the Trust has been assessed by the CQC in relation to the Fundamental
Standards and has been rated as inadequate overall. The Trust is working hard to make the
required improvements and is making steady progress against the associated recovery plan.
Board member capability is reviewed by two Nominations and Remuneration Committees – one is
a non-executive committee that considers executive performance and capability and the other is a
Council of Governors-led committee which considers non-executive performance.
In respect of Board effectiveness, the Board will carry out a review of its performance. This review
KDVEHHQGHOD\HGXQWLOWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUUHFRJQLVLQJWKDWDQXPEHURIDSSRLQWPHQWVDUH
recent and the review needs to be undertaken during a period of stability.

Statements of compliance
Pension Schemes
As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, or auto-enrol into
an alternative qualifying scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations
contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions
from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance
with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.
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Equality, Diversity and Human Rights
Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity
and human rights legislation are complied with.

Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans
The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans will be reviewed in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP
2009 weather projects, to ensure that the organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and
the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, eI¿Fiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
7KH7UXVWGHOLYHUHGDVLJQL¿FDQWGH¿FLWLQDQGLVIRUHFDVWWRGHOLYHUDQRWKHUVLJQL¿FDQW
GH¿FLWLQ&RQVHTXHQWO\WKH7UXVW%RDUd UHPDLQVGLVVDWLV¿HGZLWKWKHRYHUDOOHFRQRP\
HI¿FLHQF\DQGeffectiveness of the current use of resources. As a result, the Trust is taking the
following steps to rectify the position:
Ɣ A challenging reduction in the RYHUDOOOHYHORIGH¿FLWLVSODQQHGIRU:KLOHthe level of
GH¿FLWSODQQHGUHPDLQVVLJQL¿FDQWLWZLOOEHDVLJQL¿FDQWLPSURYHPHQWIURPthe current
position;
Ɣ Additional controls around key areas of spend have been introduced to ensure that
additional ¿QDQFLDOH[SHQGLWXUHLVQHFHVVDU\DQGMXVWL¿HG
Ɣ To ensure that resources are XVHGHFRQRPLFDOO\HI¿FLHQWO\and effectively across clinical
services the Trust carries out regular monitoring of clinical indicators on quality and safety.
The Integrated Audit Committee, chaired by a Non-Executive Director and reporting directly to the
Board, receives independent assurance from internal and external audit and counter-fraud
specialists who support and provide regular reports. This Committee also receives other external
reports and investigations undertaken during the year.
The Integrated Audit Committee agrees an annual work plan and monitors the work undertaken by
the external and internal auditors, the counter fraud specialist and clinical audit and sets aside time
with WKRVHSDUWLHVLQSULYDWHVRWKDWDQ\FRQ¿GHQWLDOLWHPVFDQEHGLVFXVVHGif necessary.
The Board receives an Integrated Finance and Performance Report at each Board meeting which
includes reviewing the Trust’s operational performance relating to national targets, quality, CQUINs
DQGHI¿FLHQF\
Performance is reviewed at all directorate and service level and at team meetings, issues are
monitored and managed through the Trust’s management structure, with Directors of Clinical
Operations being held accountable for the performance of their Care Programmes. Issues are
escalated to the Executive Committee / Clinical Executive Committee for discussion and resolution
where appropriate.

Annual Quality Report
The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality
Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual
Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual.
The drawing up of the Quality Accounts in 2015/16 was led by the &KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHUZLWKWKHIXOO
support of the Trust Board and the Council of Governors. This work has involved discussion and
consultation with the Board, staff, patients, and governors.
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To support this work, and to assure the Board that appropriate controls are in place to ensure
accuracy of data, the Quality Account is reviewed throughout the year to monitor progress being
made on the Trust’s priorities for improvement.
The clinical quality indicators, including the metrics in the Quality Account, are monitored at the
Quality Assurance Committee monthly and reported in more detail on an exception basis, with a
full report at WKHHQGRIWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
The clinical coding, business intelligence and clinical systems development teams have been
merged into a newly formed Health Informatics Directorate under the Executive leadership of the
&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
A review of key indicators has highlighted issues with data quality in relation to referral to treatment
(RTT), cancer and A&E data. This led to the suspension of reporting of RTT data to national data
systems and therefore assurance for any elective waiting times data is limited for the period
UHÀHFWHGLQthis report.
Systems and processes have been put in place to strengthen the reporting process and improve
the quality of the data. These include governance processes, lead roles, data quality feedback
reports and tracking and monitoring processes in relation to data quality for these key access
indicators.
A Data Quality Strategy has been agreed and a Data Quality Forum is now in place, primarily
focusing on RTT and data quality issues following the new OASIS Patient Administration System
implementation in February 2015. However, going forward the Forum will focus on all data quality
feedback reporting.
As stated in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, there are a number of limitations in the
preparation of the Quality Accounts which may impact on the reliability or accuracy of the data
reported:
Ɣ Data is derived from a large number of different systems and processes with only some of
these being subject to external assurance or included in the internal audit programme of
work.
Ɣ Data is collected by a large number of teams across the Trust alongside their main
responsibilities which means that differences in how policies are applied or interpreted may
be evident. Data reported UHÀHFWVFOLQLFDOMXGJHPHQWZKHUHLQGLYLGXDOFDVHVPLJKWEH
FODVVL¿HGdifferently.
Ɣ 1DWLRQDO'DWD'H¿QLWLRQV do not necessarily cover all circumstances, and local
interpretations may differ.

Review of effectiveness
$V$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU,KDYHUHVSRQVLELOLW\IRUUHYLHZLQJthe effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of
the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS
Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework. I have drawn on the content of the quality report attached to this annual report
and other performance information available to me.
My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter
and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board and its committees and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
The effectiveness of the system of internal control is monitored through:
Ɣ 0RQWKO\¿QDQFLDODQGoperational performance reporting to the Trust Board;
Ɣ Input into the controls and risk management processes from executive directors, senior
managers and clinicians;
Ɣ Quarterly review of the Corporate Risk Register by the Integrated Audit Committee and
thereafter to the Trust Board for approval, where the previously described weaknesses
KDGEHHQLGHQWL¿HG
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Ɣ Quarterly review of the Board Assurance Framework by the Integrated Audit Committee and
thereafter to theTrust Board for approval, where the previously described weaknesses
KDGEHHQLGHQWL¿HG
Ɣ Internal and external audit reviews;
Ɣ Comment on the system of Internal Control from the Head of Internal Audit in the annual
report.

Conclusion
7KH7UXVWKDVFRQWLQXHGWRH[SHULHQFHVLJQL¿FDQWFKDOOHQJHVDQGLQWHUQDOFRQWUROLVVXHVGXULQJ
2015/16, including:
Ɣ Emergency Department capacity challenges and continuing underperformance against
Department of Health Quality Standards
Ɣ ,QFUHDVLQJ¿QDQFLDOFKDOOHQJHVDVLJQL¿FDQWYDULDWLRQEHWZHHQIRUHFDVWDQGDFWXDOGH¿FLW
Ɣ Concerns highlighted by CQC inspections
Ɣ An overall mortality rate that remains too high
Ɣ $QRQJRLQJDQGKLJKQXUVHVWDI¿QJYDFDQF\UDWH
Going forward the Board will continue to work towards a more stable position with the aim of
coming out of the Special Measures regime.
,DPVDWLV¿HGWKDWWKHLQWHUQDOFRQWUROLVVXHVWKDWKDYHEHHQLGHQWL¿HGLQWKLVUHSRUWDUHEHLQJ
addressed through appropriate action plans and that these are, and will continue to be, monitored
under close scrutiny by the Executive Team and collectively by the Board.

Signed

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
26 May 2016

$V$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU,DPVDWLV¿HGWKDWWKLVDFFRXQWDELOLW\UHSRUWSURYLGHVDWUXHDQGDFFXUDWH
summary of the performance of the Trust during the year 2015/16.

Signed

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
26 May 2016
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Quality Report

Part 1: Statement on quality from the Chief Executive
All of us here at Medway are committed to providing the best of care to our patients and the quality
of the care we provide is our absolutely paramount priority. I am pleased to say that we have seen
VRPHVLJQL¿FDQWLPSURYHPHQWVGXULQJWKHFRXUVHRIWKH\HDUEXWWKHUHLVVWLOODKXJHDPRXQWWRGR

2QHRIP\¿UVWSULRULWLHVLQEHFRPLQJFKLHIH[HFXWLYHZDVWRSXWLQSODFHWKHULJKWOHDGHUVKLSDQG
clinical governance structures. Over the second half of 2015, we introduced a new clinical structure
based on three new directorates with 12 clinical programmes to ensure that decisions are made
closer to where care is provided. To ensure that clinicians sit at the heart of the leadership of the
organisation, we have appointed 12 new excellent clinical directors, most of whom have been
promoted from within, and created a clinical council of our senior doctors and nurses to steer the
FOLQLFDOVWUDWHJ\RIWKHRUJDQLVDWLRQ7KHTXDOLW\RIOHDGHUVKLSKDVXQGHUJRQHDVLJQL¿FDQWVWHS
change as a result of this reorganisation, and we are already seeing the results of this through
improvements in the quality of care across the Trust.
Probably the biggest challenge we face is the pressure on our Emergency Department. The
Department was built to accommodate around 45,000 each year but now handles over 100,000
people, with well over 300 people arriving at the Department each day. The result is that it is
impossible for us to avoid patients having to wait in corridors. We are part of the way through a
major refurbishment, which will help to alleviate the pressure we face, and we opened a new minor
injuries area in the autumn. However, the new physical environment has to be accompanied by
changes in the way the department operates, and I am pleased that we have brought in a new
management team, a new triage process to ensure that patients are seen within 15 minutes of
arrival, and a number of other changes. We expect to see these generating tangible improvements
early in 2016/17.
The pressure on the Emergency Department and the hospital more widely can only be alleviated
with the help of our healthcare partners in helping to ensure that only patients who really need to
FRPHWRKRVSLWDOGRVRDQGWRIDFLOLWDWHWKHHI¿FLHQWGLVFKDUJHRISDWLHQWVZKRDUHUHDG\WRJR
home. We are also pleased to be one of the 28 Trusts across England receiving assistance from
the national Emergency Care Improvement Programme; this has been invaluable in supporting the
improvements we are seeking to make.
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The publication of the Care Quality Commission’s report into the Trust in January 2016 was a
GLI¿FXOWWLPHIRUXVEXWLWZDVDOVRFRQVWUXFWLYH,WJDYHXVWKHLPSHWXVWRDFFHOHUDWHDOOWKH
programmes of change we had been putting in place across the hospital and seek to do something
different from the way Medway had operated in the past. The plan we have in place is focused on
improving patient safety and care, recruiting more permanent colleagues to reduce our
dependency on agency, reducing waiting times and developing our partnerships.
In the last three months of 2015/16, since the report was published, we have made some real
strides forward. Our new Medical Model, under which patients can expect a more consistent
standard of care, shorter lengths of stay in the Emergency Department and the hospital as a
whole, was launched in March and is bedding in well. Waiting times are improving and we are now
meeting our two week cancer targets, having been some way out in the autumn. Mortality rates,
which were one of the key factors behind our original move into special measures, are also
improving.
I would like to pay tribute to the work of our Women and Children’s directorate for being a beacon
of excellence in the Trust. Our neonatal and children’s department had been well regarded for
many years, but our maternity department was rated as inadequate by the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) in 2013. After an enormous amount of effort and hard work by everyone in the
team to turn the department around, they were rated as “good” when the CQC were here last
summer. They showed that improvement and change is possible. They are an inspiration for the
rest of the Trust to follow.
The information contained within this document is, to the best of my knowledge, accurate.

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
Medway NHS Foundation Trust
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Part 2: Priorities for improvement and statements of assurance

from the Board
The process for developing the priorities for 2016/17 has included input and suggestions from
Commissioners, clinical and non-clinical staff, executive and non-executive directors, There were
public meetings held in January 2016 which involved the Council of Governors and Foundation
Trust members.
The views of the above groups and our current analysis on areas for improvement were taken into
DFFRXQWDQGWKHIROORZLQJSULRULWLHVKDYHEHHQVHWIRUWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU

Table 3.1: Looking Forward – 2016/17 priorities
PATIENT SAFETY
Standard

Current
Performance

South Regional Tripartite Expectations for Improvement

Expectation
of delivery

1a: Meeting national access targets as set out in the South Eastern Tripartite expectations for
improvement
All trusts performing above 95% maintain that level through
2016/17

A&E

RTT

84.79% of
patients seen
within four
hours of arrival
(2015/16)

Currently not
reporting

All trusts below 89% achieve at least 89% by the end of
September 2016

Continue to
monitor
performance

Develop bespoke trajectories for all remaining trusts which,
as a minimum, deliver a 3% improvement on 2015/16 Q2
performance in each month from the end of September
2016 until such time that the standard is met

Continue to
monitor
performance

All trusts performing above 93% to at least maintain 2015/16
level of performance through 2016/17

N/A

Trusts delivering between 92 and 93% to deliver an
improvement exceeding 93% by the end of September 2016

N/A

The operating standard for all providers is 92% and any
GHYLDWLRQEHORZWKLVPXVWEHVSHFL¿FDOO\DJUHHGZLWKWKH
provider regulator and commissioners

Diagnostic
6 week
waiting
times

78.98%
(2015/16)

88.85%
(Mar 2016)

Continue to
monitor
performance

Where there are known capacity problems it is the
commissioners’ responsibility to secure enough capacity to
achieve the 92% standard

N/A

Where there are over 52 week waiters, develop trajectories
to eliminate all over 52 week waiters as soon as possible
and by no later than March 2017.

Continue to
monitor
performance

All trusts performing above 85% to at least maintain that
level through 2016/17
62 Day
Cancer

N/A

N/A

Develop bespoke trajectories for all remaining trusts which
as a minimum deliver 85% by the end of September 2016.
Note - where there are over 104 day waiters, trajectories
should include the elimination of these long waiters

Continue to
monitor
performance

All trusts performing 1% or below to at least maintain that
level through 2016/17

Continue to
monitor
performance

Develop bespoke trajectories for all remaining trusts which
as a minimum delivers 1% or below by the end of
September 2016

Continue to
monitor
performance
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1b: Continue to improve mortality rates in septicaemia
Current Performance
Expectation of delivery

Linked to Trust Recovery Plan5

SHMI 115
(as at Dec 2015)

To be within benchmarked limits
by March 2017

Deteriorating Patient
Medical Model
Emergency Pathway

HSMR 106
(as at March 2016)

Reduction on March 2016
baseline to =< 100

Deteriorating Patient
Medical Model
Emergency Pathway

1c: Learning from Serious Incidents
Current performance
Expectation of delivery
Trust-wide learning events as
of March 2015

Increased number of learning
events both at Trust &
Directorate level

20% serious incidents relate to
deteriorating patient

Reduction of serious incidents
relating to deteriorating patients

2: PATIENT EXPERIENCE
Current performance
Action plan developed to
improve end of life care
pathway management

Linked to Trust Recovery Plan
Deteriorating Patient

Expectation of delivery

Linked to Trust Recovery Plan

100% achievement against
action plan

Deteriorating Patient

Emergency Department
Friends and Family test
response to recommend
currently 80.4% (Mar 2016)

85% or above by March 2017

Current performance for
Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and
Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguarding (DoLs) is
measured by development of
an improvement plan

100% of actions in
improvement plan completed
by March 2017

3: CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
Current performance
Expectation of delivery

Emergency Pathway
Medical Model

Nursing Strategy: Improving care for
vulnerable patients

Linked to Trust Recovery Plan

Non Elective Length of Stay
(NELOS) for patients over
65yrs as of March 2016 is 9.36
days

Reduction on 2015/16 whole
year average of 10.07%

Medical Model
Emergency Pathway

Non-elective readmissions
within 28 days currently at
10.25% (Mar 2016)

Reduction on 2015/16 whole
year average of 11.99%

Medical Model
Emergency Pathway

Number of in-hospital cardiac
arrests 15 per month

10% reduction on April 2016
baseline of 15

Deteriorating Patient

5 The Trust Recovery Plan is being run as a series of distinct projects. This column refers to the projects which align with
the 2016/17 quality priorities.
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Reasons why we chose these areas of focus
Patient safety
Priority PS.1:
Although we have improved mortality rates in sepsis they are still above the national average and
we therefore need to continue with this improvement to ensure all patients are provided with the
correct diagnosis and treatment for infections.
Executive Lead:
Medical Director and Director of Nursing
Current position
The current position for the HSMR is:
Ɣ Sepsis – 100.05
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
Ɣ Implement the deteriorating patient programme
Ɣ Introduce new Medical Model and emergency pathway
Ɣ Ensure clinicians review and implement changes following mortality reviews
Ɣ Work with clinicians to ensure we have accurate data
How will progress be monitored?
The Trust will monitor the crude death rate to ensure that it is reducing. The Trust reviews the
mortality data published by Dr Foster Intelligence (a provider of healthcare variation analysis and
clinical benchmarking solutions) and the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) on a
monthly basis and internal investigations are initiated with both clinical and clinical coding
involvement where there are particular diagnoses or procedure groups of concern. For diagnosis
groups that are seen to be persistent outliers, focused multi-disciplinary task groups have been
introduced to review clinical pathways, analyse data and implement quality improvements to
improve both patient outcomes and patient experience. Data quality work will be carried out to
ensure that the data being submitted for secondary uses is correct and will neither under or over
LQÀDWHWKHPRUWDOLW\FUXGH¿JXUHVRU+605

Priority PS.2:
7KH&4&UHSRUWRI-DQXDU\LGHQWL¿HGWKDWWKH7UXVWGRHVQRWVKRZPXFKHYLGHQFHRIOHDUQLQJ
from safety incidents. The Trust therefore needs to provide evidence of learning from serious incidents
and from that learning, reduce the likelihood of further harm to patients.
Executive Lead:
&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU

Current position
A new serious incident framework is in place that includes monitoring and support for staff
throughout the investigation process and increased scrutiny of reports prior to closure. All serious
incident investigation outcomes are collated into themes and lessons learned shared via a
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communication strategy and learning sessions. Evidence of implementation of actions is also
monitored via the newly formed serious incident monitoring group.
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
Ɣ Increase number of reports being conducted by clinical directors
Ɣ Utilise grand rounds and other appropriate forums to share lessons learned
Ɣ Hold twice yearly trust wide learning conference
Ɣ Utilise the Nursing Quality Forum to share learning at every meeting
How will progress be monitored?
Ɣ Via the DATIX incident reporting system
Ɣ Evidence of implementation from serious incident monitoring group
Ɣ Cultural survey results

Priority PS.3:
Compliance with the NHS constitutional standards for access waiting times (emergency four hours,
cancer and diagnostic waits and treatments)
Executive Lead:
Directors of Clinical Operations
Current position
As at 31 March 2016, the Trust was failing to see patients waiting for care in the timescales set out by
national standards. In the Emergency Department over 30% of patients currently wait over four hours
to see a clinician. This is unacceptable. We have also seen many patients waiting too long to have an
initial assessment then their follow up treatment across many specialities. Although we have worked
hard to ensure patients who are referred with suspected cancer diagnosis are seen within two weeks,
we still have many patients waiting too long to be seen and treated. It is critical that the Trust resolves
this issue.
An external audit undertaken by Deloitte reported the following issues with the A&E performance
indicator:
Ɣ The Trust does not retain an audit trail for adjustments made following the validation of
apparent breaches.
Ɣ Documentation is not always available to evidence the rationale for amending individual
A&E attendance durations.
Ɣ &RQÀLFWLQJLQIRUPDWLRQEHWZHHQVXSSRUWLQJGRFXPHQWDWLRQDQGWKH7UXVW
Waiting times in A&E remain under continuous scrutiny and ongoing validation by Trust management.
Going forward, further validation and analysis of performance will be undertaken to inform the Trust’s
SRVLWLRQDQGGDWDTXDOLW\LVVXHVLGHQWL¿HGDQGDGGUHVVHG
Training will be drawn up on the appropriate use of the Symphony patient administration system to
ensure accurate recording of clock starts and stops.

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

96

Quality Report
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
Ɣ Introduction of the new Medical Model and emergency pathway via workstreams within the
Trust Recovery Plan to improve performance against A&E targets
Ɣ Working across the health community to ensure appropriate admissions and timely
discharges via national Emergency Care Improvement Programme (ECIP)
Ɣ Referral to treatment workstream within the Trust Recovery Plan that includes all aspects of
systems, processes and pathway management and data quality to ensure we are more
HI¿FLHQWDWPDNLQJVXUHSDWLHQWVDUHVHHQDQGWUHDWHGLQDWLPHO\ZD\
How will progress be monitored?
Through a range of governance committees which report into the Executive Committee and Board.

Patient experience
Priority PE.1:
Improvement in end of life care management to ensure patients who are at the end of their life are
treated with respect, dignity and the correct treatment at all times.
Executive Lead
Director of Nursing
Current position
We know that the care given to our patients who are at the end of their life requires improvement.
The families of our deceased patients provide feedback through satisfaction surveys and we know
our staff members are caring but we need to improve the way we involve patients and carers in
decisions about their end of life care. We also need to improve the experience families have when
they return to the hospital to complete administration processes following the death of their loved
one.
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
An end of life care improvement plan will set out the actions the Trust will be taking to improve the
care of our patients at the end of their life, and their families. These actions will include ensuring
we are providing care in accordance with national best practice guidelines and improved
documentation to support the delivery of high standards of care.

How will progress be monitored?
The end of life care improvement plan will be monitored at the Trust’s End of Life Steering Group.
Progress will be reported to the internal Quality Improvement Group and up to the Trust Quality
Assurance Committee (a sub-committee of the Board) and full Board itself.
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Priority PE.2:
Continue to improve Friends & Family Test (FFT) ‘likely to recommend’ response in the Emergency
Department (ED).
Executive Lead
Director of Nursing
Current position
The current FFT score for the ED is 72.28%, against a national standard of over 85%. We are
therefore currently not meeting this target. Our patients tell us they are waiting too long to be seen,
that some staff have a poor attitude and that we do not always keep patients updated about their
care and treatment.
7KLVFOHDUO\QHHGVWREHDFRQWLQXHGIRFXVDUHDIRUWKH7UXVWDSRLQWFRQ¿UPHGE\WKH&4&LQWKHLU
report in January 2016.
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
We have an Emergency Department improvement plan in place; this has been running since
September 2015 and has seen some successes, however we need to improve further.
The ED improvement plan will continue to be delivered and small staff groups are being set up to
focus on particular areas for improvement.
How will progress be monitored?
The ED improvement plan has outcome measures.
These will be monitored locally at ED performance / team meetings. Progress will be reported at
the Directorate Performance Review meetings and the Trust Patient Experience Group and
through reports to our regulators.

Priority PE.3:
Improve the assessment and Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
(DoLS) status of patients to ensure we are aware of their issues and can treat patients
appropriately.
Executive Lead
Director of Nursing
Current position
Mandatory safeguarding training provides staff with an understanding of the MCA, Mental Capacity
Assessment and DoLS.
Staff compliance with mandatory training is lower than we would want to achieve. We know staff
awareness and understanding of MCA and DoLS assessment is inconsistent across the Trust.
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
The content of mandatory safeguarding training will be reviewed to provide greater clarity about the
requirements of MCA and DoLS. Additional resources to support practice and decision-making will
be made available in all clinical areas. A new process for submission of DoLS applications and
monitoring outcomes will be implemented. The Trust safeguarding team will undertake regular
visits to all clinical areas to provide support with decision-making and to monitor adherence to
policies and protocols.
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How will progress be monitored?
The number of DoLS applications will continue to be monitored and reported monthly to the Board
through an Integrated Quality Performance Report. We will begin to report on the outcome of DoLS
applications. This will be an indicator of staff understanding and the appropriateness of the
applications. The Trust safeguarding team will undertake regular MCA and DoLS audits to monitor
compliance with policies and protocols and staff understanding.

Clinical effectiveness
Priority CE.1:
Optimising patient pathways, including reducing non-elective length of stay (LoS), is important to
ensure that patients do not stay in hospital longer than is needed.
Executive Lead
Medical Director
Current position
Length of stay in the Trust is currently high, especially for those in the 65+ age bracket. We have
seen some improvement in discharging patients more quickly but we are still not doing well
compared to other trusts.
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
The Trust will focus on improving the discharge of patients by working with external organisations
to ensure that discharge can happen safely, quickly and effectively where appropriate.
How will progress be monitored?
Their length of stay will continue to be reported to the Board and will be monitored through the
Trust Recovery Plan reports. Issues affecting this target will be reported by the Programme
0DQDJHPHQW2I¿FHZKLFKLVFRRUGLQDWLQJWKHUHFRYHU\SODQWRWKHH[HFXWLYHIRUJXLGDQFHZKHUH
it becomes absolutely necessary.

Priority CE.2:
Reduce readmissions within 28 days to ensure patients are discharged safely and that their care in
the community is appropriate to ensure they do not have to come back to hospital unless
necessary.
Executive Lead
Medical Director
Current position
The current position for non-elective re-admissions (where a patient attends the Trust and
subsequently returns to the Trust) is 10.25% as at March 2016. This is currently measured
internally only.).
Actions to be taken to achieve goal
Ɣ Implementation of the new medical model
Ɣ Implementation of the emergency pathway
Ɣ Continue to work with the Emergency Care Improvement Programme (ECIP) to ensure that
the home to assess and management of discharge processes are implemented to best
practice guidelines
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Looking back over the data that is available from Methods Stethoscope (currently up to June 2015)
our re-admission rate, for those patients that are readmitted within 30 days of discharge has come
down.
How will progress be monitored?
Progress will be monitored via the ED action plan, the Trust Recovery Plan reports, and via the
quality and performance Board reporting framework.

Priority CE.3:
Reducing the number of in-hospital cardiac arrests
Executive Lead
Medical Director/Director of Nursing
Current Position
There are currently 15 cardiac arrests on average per month among people who are already receiving
treatment within the hospital. Only 22% of these people survive and are discharged.
Investigations into each cardiac arrest identify how and why it happened will be carried out and
lessons that can be learnt from those cases will be shared across the Trust.
How will progress be monitored?
The resuscitation team will continue to provide data which will be seen at the Trust’s dedicated
internal mortality and morbidity group and as part of the deteriorating patient project report, as well
as an indicator on the monthly Integrated Quality and Performance report to the Board.

Statements of assurance from the Board
Review of Services
During April 2015 to March 2016, Medway NHS Foundation Trust provided and / or subcontracted
51 NHS Services for Medicine, Surgery, Women & Children’s and Clinical Support services
(Clinical Services has now been merged across the other directorates). Medway NHS Foundation
Trust has reviewed all the data available to it on the quality of care provided in all of these NHS
Services.
The income generated by the NHS Services reviewed in 2015/16 represents 100 percent of the
total income generated from the provision of NHS Services by the Trust for 2015/16.

Participation in Clinical Audits 2015/16
'XULQJQDWLRQDOFOLQLFDODXGLWVDQGVL[QDWLRQDOFRQ¿GHQWLDOHQTXLULHVFRYHUHGWRSLFV
relevant to health services that Medway NHS Foundation Trust provides.
During that period, Medway NHS Foundation Trust participated in 97% of the national clinical
DXGLWVDQGRIWKHQDWLRQDOFRQ¿GHQWLDOHQTXLULHVDQGQDWLRQDOFRQ¿GHQWLDOHQTXLULHVLQZKLFKLW
was eligible to participate.
7KHQDWLRQDOFOLQLFDODXGLWVDQGQDWLRQDOFRQ¿GHQWLDOHQTXLULHVWKDW0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW
was eligible to participate in during April 2015 to March 2016 are detailed in Table 3.2.
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Table.3.2: Eligible audits in which the Trust participated
Number of audits relevant to
services provided by Medway
NHS Foundation Trust

National Clinical Audits

Percentage of audits
participated in

34

97% (33/34)
Percentage of cases
submitted

1DWLRQDO&RQ¿GHQWLDO(QTXLULHV

1DWLRQDO&RQ¿GHQWLDO(QTXLULHVLQWR
Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD)
Ɣ Mental Health in General Hospitals

60% (study still open)

Ɣ Acute Pancreatitis

100% (5/5)

Ɣ Sepsis

100% (4/4)

Ɣ Gastrointestinal haemorrhage

100% (5/5)

&RQ¿GHQWLDO(QTXLULHVLQWR0DWHUQDODQG
Child Health

1

100%

7KHQDWLRQDOFOLQLFDODXGLWVDQGQDWLRQDOFRQ¿GHQWLDOHQTXLULHVWKDW0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW
participated in, and for which data collection was complete during 2015/16, are listed below
alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number
of registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry.
The reports of 21 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2015/16 and Medway
NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the quality of the healthcare
provided – see Table 3.3 below.
Table 3.3: Detailed audit participation

Title

Acute
Case Mix
Programme
(CMP)
Emergency
Use of
Oxygen
Major Trauma
Audit

National
Complicated
Diverticulitis
Audit (CAD)
Acute surgical
services

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Yes

Yes

100%

No

Yes

Yes

100%

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

54.4%
(participation
rate to Dec
2015)
Awaiting
FRQ¿UPDWLRQRI
%
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No

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Report
Not applicable
not yet
published
Report
Not applicable
not yet
published
No

No

Report not yet
published
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Title

National
Emergency
Laparotomy
Audit (NELA)

Eligible

Yes

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Yes

100%

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Yes

Yes

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Sepsis clinical
tool kit in place
Boarding card in
place to reinforce
message
P-Possum
scoring of all
emergency
laparotomy
patients now
compulsory
CEPOD
(emergency
theatre list) days
are staffed by
Speciality,
Associate
Specialist and
Staff grades
Establish Code
Laparotomy
Sepsis Action
Group established
Clinical toolkit in
place – Sepsis
card, sepsis 6 care
bundle
Teaching &
awareness
P-Possum scoring
for all patients
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Emergency
laparotomy
collaborative (ELC)
ELC stickers on
World Health
Organisation
check list for time
out and sign out to
remind all of the
need to complete
the National
Emergency
Laparotomy Audit
(NELA) NELA data
and P Possum
scoring
Monthly ELC
meetings chaired
by Consultant
Anaesthetist to
review all streams
of NELA and
Quality
Improvement
project ELC do
occur
Monthly
presentation of
NELA and ELC at
Anaesthetic
Governance/audit
meeting
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Title

National Joint
Registry (NJR)
Knee
replacement
Hip
replacement
Non-Invasive
Ventilation
– Adults

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Yes

Yes

58%

Yes

Yes

Medway has
submitted revised
data to the NJR
for 2015, which
will improve the
submission rate.

Yes

N/A

Did not take
place in

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Blood & Transplant
Yes
National
Comparative
Audit of Blood
Transfusion
programme
Use of blood
in
haematology
Yes
National
Comparative
Audit of Blood
Transfusion
programme
Audit of
Patient Blood
Management
in Scheduled
Surgery

2015/16

Yes

100%

No

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

The pre-operative
pathway will be
examined to
assess the
feasibility of
carrying out the
pre-assessment
earlier in the
pathway
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anaesthetists to
be made aware
that tranexamic
acid should be
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patients with
likely or possible
blood loss of
>500mls
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

(National institute
of Clinical
Excellence
(NICE)
guidelines, 2015).
Guidelines to be
XSGDWHGWRUHÀHFW
NICE guidance
(NG24) published
in December
2015.
Trust wide audit
against NICE
blood transfusion
guideline
undertaken in
January 2016;
results to be
disseminated
Trust-wide.
Cancer
Bowel Cancer
(NBOCAP)

Yes

Yes

Data
collection
ongoing until
April 2016

Yes

Yes

National Clinical
Audit Facilitator
to regularly
validate data for
uploading to
ensure maximum
participation.
Continue to
participate in the
National
Emergency
Laparotomy Audit
in conjunction
with NBOCAP.
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

National Lung
Cancer Audit
(NLCA)
Lung Cancer
Consultant
Outcomes
Publication

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

National
Prostate
Cancer Audit

Yes

Yes

> 100%

Yes

Yes

Benchmarking
report completed.
Awaiting action
plan.

Oesophagogastric Cancer
(NAOGC)

Yes

Yes

97%

Yes

Yes

Medway is not
the treatment
centre for
oesgophagogastric cancer
and therefore no
actions.

Yes

Yes

100%

No

N/A

Not applicable

Adult Cardiac
Surgery

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Cardiac
Rhythm
Management
(CRM)

Yes

Yes

100%

No

N/A

Not applicable

Coronary
Angioplasty/
National Audit
of
Percutaneous
Coronary
Interventions
(PCI)

Yes

Yes

100%

No

N/A

Not applicable

Heart
Acute
Coronary
Syndrome or
Acute
Myocardial
Infarction
(MINAP)
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

National
Cardiac Arrest
Audit (NCAA)

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

Quarterly reports
reviewed through
the Resuscitation
Committee.

National Heart
Failure (HF)
Audit

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

Weekly HF ward
round to improve
cardiology input
for these patients
Improved bed
management to
get HF patients to
cardiology ward

National
Vascular
Registry

Yes

Yes

99%

Yes

Yes

Organisational
results indicate
that Medway
patients receive
care in line with
guidelines.

Congenital
Heart Disease
(CHD)
Paediatric

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Congenital
Heart Disease
(CHD)
Adult

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Did not take
place in
2015/16

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

100%

No report
published
2015/16

N/A

Not applicable

Long Term Conditions
Adult Asthma
Yes

Diabetes
(Paediatric)
(NPDA)

Yes
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

,QÀDPPDWRU\
Bowel Disease
(IBD)
programme
Uk IBD
Registry

Yes

National
Chronic
Obstructive
Pulmonary
Disease
(COPD) Audit
programme
Pulmonary
rehabilitation
National
Chronic
Obstructive
Pulmonary
Disease
(COPD) Audit
programme
Secondary
Care
National
Diabetes Audit
– Adults
National
Footcare Audit

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Await next round
of audit data
before making
generalised
management
changes as follow
up data only
available for small
numbers of
patients at present
(4 patients for 3
month follow up, 3
patients for 12
month follow up).
Not applicable

Yes

N/A

Did not take
place in

No

N/A

Not applicable

Report
planned
for Mar
2016

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

All patients to
have Harvey
Bradshaw Index
done pretreatment.

2015/16

Yes

Yes
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Title

Eligible

National
Diabetes Audit
- Adults
National
Inpatient Audit

Yes

National
Diabetes Audit
- Adults
National
Pregnancy in
Diabetes Audit

Yes

National
Diabetes Audit
- Adults
National
Diabetes
Transition
National
Diabetes Audit
- Adults
National Core
Renal
Replacement
Therapy
(Renal
Registry)
Rheumatoid
and Early
,QÀDPPDWRU\
Arthritis
Clinician/
Patient
Baseline
Clinician/
Patient Followup
UK Parkinson’s
Audit

Chronic Kidney
Disease in
primary care

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Yes

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

100%

No

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

93%

Report
planned
for Jun
2016
Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

N/A

New
project.
No report
published
2015/16

N/A

Liaise with
Diabetes Nurse
Specialists in the
Community to
discuss the
current preconceptual care
system. Potential
for staff training if
required.
Not applicable

Yes

No

N/A

N/A

N/A

Did not participate

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

No

Report to be
benchmarked

Yes

Yes

100%

Report in
Mar 2016

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Mental Health
Mental Health
N/A
N/A
Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Suicide in
children and
young people
(CYP)
N/A
N/A
Mental Health
Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Suicide,
Homicide &
Sudden
Unexplained
Death
N/A
N/A
Mental Health
Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
The
management
and risk of
patients with
personality
disorder prior
to suicide and
homicide
1DWLRQDO&RQ¿GHQWLDO(QTXLUHV
Yes
Data
Child Health
Clinical
collection
commences
Outcome
Review
in Spring
2016
Programme
Chronic
Neurodisability

Child Health
Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Young People’s
Mental Health

Yes

Yes
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Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

New
project. No
report
published
2015/16

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

Report
expected

N/A

Not applicable

Autumn/
Winter
2017
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Title

Medical and
Surgical Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Acute
Pancreatitis
Medical and
Surgical Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Physical and
mental health
care of mental
health patients
in acute
hospitals
Older People
Falls and
Fragility
Fractures Audit
programme
(FFFAP)
Fracture Liaison
Service
Database
Falls and
Fragility
Fractures Audit
programme
(FFFAP)
Inpatient Falls

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Yes

N/A

No data
collection in
2015

Yes

Yes

60% (data
collection
ongoing for
2015/16)

Yes

Yes

Data
collection
ongoing

Yes

Yes

100%

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Planned
July 2016

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

N/A

Not applicable

N/A

Not applicable

No

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

Yes

Re-establish falls
steering group and
multi–disciplinary
working group
Review other
related hospital
policies to ensure
falls prevention is
mentioned
Disseminate
delirium pathway
Audit bed rail use

Falls and
Fragility
Fractures Audit
programme
(FFFAP)
National Hip
Fracture
Database

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

Develop pathways
allowing direct and
rapid transfer from
ED to ward.
The results were
favourable for
Medway patients.

111

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Quality Report

Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Sentinel Stroke
National Audit
programme
(SSNAP)
SSNAP
Clinical Audit

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

Quarterly Reports
reviewed regularly
by the Stroke
Working Group.

Elective
Surgery
(National
PROMs
Programme)

Yes

Yes

78.3%

Yes

Yes

The results were
favourable for
Medway patients.

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

National
Ophthalmology
Audit
Adult Cataract
surgery

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

UK Cystic
Fibrosis
Registry
Paediatric

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

UK Cystic
Fibrosis
Registry
Adult

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

No action required

Other
National Audit
of Intermediate
Care

Women’s & Children Health
Yes
Maternal,
Newborn and
Infant Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Perinatal
Mortality
Surveillance
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Title

Eligible

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Maternal,
Newborn and
Infant Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Perinatal
mortality and
morbidity
FRQ¿GHQWLDO
enquiries (term
intrapartum
related
neonatal
deaths)

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

No action required

Maternal,
Newborn and
Infant Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Maternal
morbidity and
mortality
FRQ¿GHQWLDO
enquiries
(cardiac (plus
cardiac
morbidity) early
pregnancy
deaths and
pre-eclampsia,
plus psychiatric
morbidity)

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

No action required

Maternal,
Newborn and
Infant Clinical
Outcome
Review
Programme
Maternal
mortality
surveillance

Yes

Yes

100%

Yes

Yes

No action required
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Title

Neonatal
Intensive and
Special Care
(NNAP)

Eligible

Yes

% Case
Participation submission
in 2015/16

Yes

100%

Report
Report
Published
Reviewed
2015/16

Yes

Yes

Actions to
Improve
quality of care
Comments

Purchase new
transport
incubator system
to move
premature babies
from labour ward
to Neonatal
Intensive Care
Unit.
Staff awareness
drive emphasising
the importance of
thermos
regulation.
Report all
hypothermic
babies less than
29 weeks
gestation via
Datix.
Initiate Quality
Improvement
Project and Infant
Feeding Working
Group.
Add breast
feeding module to
e-learning.

Paediatric
Asthma

Yes

Yes

24%

No

N/A

Run feeding
support study day
for nursing staff.
Not applicable

Paediatric
Intensive Care
(PICANet)
Paediatric
Pneumonia

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not applicable

Yes

N/A

No data
collection in
2015

N/A

N/A

Not applicable
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Quality Report
Review of Local Clinical Audits
Medway NHS Foundation Trust reviewed the reports of 62 local clinical audits in 2015/16 and the
Trust intends to take the following action to improve the quality of healthcare provided.

Table 3.4: Local audit participation
Department
Anaesthetics

Audit Title
National Audit Project (NAP) 5:
Accidental awareness during general
anaesthesia (AAGA)

Action to improve Quality of care
Update patient pre-op information sheets
regarding GA and sedation Amend WHO
checklist to include AC-WHO
Develop link with Psychiatrist with a special
interest in Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder
(PTSD)
Develop NAP5 awareness support pathway
Acquire more peripheral nerve stimulators
Consider using propofol Target Controlled
Infusion (TCI) vs Total Intravenous
Anaesthesia (TIVA) for transfers and the
need for routine muscle paralysis
Consider using DOA for all those at risk of
AAGA

Anaesthetics
Anaesthetics

Anaesthetic: Paediatric patient
satisfaction survey (re-audit)
Diabetes: Perioperative management of
adults with diabetes undergoing surgery

Keep clear records including those for
transfers
No actions required
GP communication regarding quality of
referrals
Incorporate pre-op diabetes management
plan in safer sleep
Establish pre-op diabetes focus groups
Develop and establish peri-op diabetes
guidelines
Re-audit

Anaesthetics

Fluid administration in women during
labour with an epidural

Set up use of infusion machines

Anaesthetics

Quality outcomes in anaesthesia (NICE
CG65: Perioperative hypothermia)

&RQWLQXRXVXVHRI(QÀRZ%DLU+XJJHUDQG
temperature monitoring

Anaesthetics

Post dural puncture headache audit

New guidelines for managing Post Dural
Puncture Headache (PDPH)
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Department
Anaesthetics

Audit Title
Regional techniques for surgery for
fracture neck of femur patients

Action to improve Quality of care
Aim to set up formal research study to
evaluate use of isobaric levobupivicaine vs
hyperbaric bupivacaine for spinal
anaesthesia in patients undergoing surgery
¿[DWLRQRISUR[LPDOIHPRUDOIUDFWXUHV

Anaesthetics

Preoperative fasting re -audit

Update preoperatively fasting instructions for
patients
Develop and implement a plan to identify
and manage patients in high risk of
excessive fasting
Implement intervention bundle for
management of excessive thirst – POCU
and surgical wards
Review use of carbohydrate drinks
Include fasting times to Galaxy operating
theatre management system
Update fasting policy

Anaesthetics

WHO surgical safety checklist

Re audit to include day surgery and obstetric
theatres

Anaesthetics

Inadvertent perioperative hypothermia in
obstetric patients undergoing caesarean
section and assisted delivery (NICE
CG65 Inadvertent perioperative
hypothermia)

Discuss the results and raise the issue at the
obstetric management meeting

Acute Kidney Injury (AKI) - Re-Audit based on NICE CG169

Foundation Trainee Teaching to be
implemented

Acute Medicine

Ensure incident forms are completed
Re-audit – including review of incident data

Arrange teaching for Acute Medical Unit
(AMU) staff
Design and implement the use of AKI cards
Offer training sessions in Primary Care to
raise awareness
Revise pathway and policy
Revise medication toolkit

Acute
Paediatrics

Acute
Paediatrics
Acute
Paediatrics

Paediatric Elective Hypoglycaemia
Testing

Review of Paediatric Surgical Reviews
for Abdominal Pain
Patient & Relative Satisfaction Survey in
Paediatric Surgery - re-audit
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Develop AKI reporting system in pathology
New guideline to indicate inclusion criteria
for testing and advice regarding interim
management and follow up until diagnosis is
made
Re- Audit
Discussion with the clinical lead for surgery
No current actions in place, to repeat cycle
2016/17

Quality Report
Department
Breast

Audit Title
Audit of breast reconstruction in patients
(immediate and delayed) using Acellular
Dermal Matrix
Breast
Breast cancer patient satisfaction survey
Cancer Services MacMillan Social Worker telephone
service/brief contact patient satisfaction
Cancer Services Neutropenic sepsis: Antibiotics door to
needle time – Re-Audit

Cardiology

Cardiology
Cardiorespiratory

Action to improve Quality of care
No actions required

No actions required
No actions required
For discussion at Acute Oncology Meeting
Acute Oncology team to look at pre-printed
packs with prescriptions
Ongoing training of nurses to use venous
access devices
Pharmacy to roll out an educational plan for
consultants and junior doctors

Assessment of stroke risk and
documentation of anticoagulant
discussion in patients with newly
GLDJQRVHGDWULDO¿EULOODWLRQ

Rapid access chest pain clinic patient
satisfaction survey
Respiratory and Sleep Department
Patient Survey Re-audit

Initiate use of a New Oral Anticoagulant
(NOAC) sticker in notes – This could be
mandatory for use in the drug chart for all
SDWLHQWVZLWKDWULDO¿EULOODWLRQ
Use British Heart Foundation information
OHDÀHWV
Car Parking- Review letters to ensure that it is
clear that car parking can be a problem and to
allow extra time
Suggest patient park and ride be put in place
Timely Appointments - Review reasons for this
by keeping a log. Usual reason it is felt is the
late arrival of the previous patient or hospital
Transport (4% of patients)
Patient Information - Continue to push for
being moved to a more appropriate location
so not scattered around the hospital, to avoid
patients being misdirected

Care of the
Elderly
Care of the
Elderly

Admissions from Nursing Homes

Care of the
Elderly
Care of the
Elderly

Antibiotic Prescribing - Re audit

The effect of the Integrated Discharge
Team on length of stay in Elderly Care

Constipation in Adults

Evening and Weekend Appointments - 14% of
patients would prefer evening/Weekend
appointments. Monitor this by asking again in
the next audit.
'LVFXVV¿QGLQJVRIDXGLWLQ)UDLOW\3URMHFW
Meeting
Work closely with the Community on the
Front Door Frailty Project via the Frailty
Pathway
Re-emphasise the Trust Antibiotic
Guidelines to Junior doctors
Trial implementing a toileting care plan
Develop document on how to use laxatives.
Amend stool chart to state that if bowels
KDYHQRWRSHQHGIRUWKUHHGD\VWKH
medical team should be alerted.
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Department
Critical Care

Diabetes/
Endocrinology

Audit Title
Administration time for antibiotics in
sepsis

Diabetic Keto-Acidosis (DKA) (NICE
CG15)

Action to improve Quality of care
Simulation Training for Juniors
Foundation Doctor Training
Laminated Sepsis Cards to be widely
distributed
Incorporate the national guidelines with the
MMH trust guidelines
Change the IV insulin regime from VR-III to
FR-III based on patient’s weight
Use 10% Dextrose instead of 5% in the
management of DKA
Raise awareness and improve
understanding of the DKA protocols

Emergency
Department

Procedural Sedation in the Emergency
Department

Bay 5 in Resus to be dedicated Sedation
%D\¿WWHGZLWKDLGHPHPRLUVDQGVHGDWLRQ
document packs
Introduce the Royal College of Emergency
Medicine (RCEM) Procedural Sedation form
Introduce a logbook in Resus to capture all
sedations and progression to intubation
Develop ED sedation checklist to meet
RCEM standards
Develop sedation documentation relating to
children
Adult Procedural Sedation simulation
training
Survey Resus staff to assess knowledge
DQGOHYHOVRIFRQ¿GHQFHLQGLI¿FXOWDLUZD\V
scenarios
Training and awareness drive

Emergency
Department

Management of Asthma in the
Emergency Department (re-audit)

Highlight importance of completing recently
revised asthma proforma at ED Governance
Day
$GGSHDNÀRZSURPSWFKHFNER[WR
navigation sheet
Present report to nursing team leaders to
address decreased level of administration of
therapy and need for timely observations

Endoscopy

Endoscopy: Nurse-led patient experience Ensure smooth running of the endoscopy
survey (re-audit)
lists, interruptions to operators to be kept at
a minimum,
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Department
ENT

Audit Title
Study of utilisation of ENT treatment
room resource

Action to improve Quality of care
All patients should be seen on the day of
referral
Foreign bodies i.e. tone, tissue, cotton bud
to be booked for planned removal

ENT

Does the time of day (thyroid surgery
No actions required
performed at the end of the operating list)
of thyroid surgery affect outcome?

Gastroenterology

Decompensated cirrhosis care bundle
pathway

Print off checklist with information and inform
AMU clerking team
3ODFHDSRVWHULQ'RFWRU¶V2I¿FH

General Surgery Compliance of consenting procedure for
circumcision (British association of
urological surgeons (BUAS) guidance)

Consenting guidance posters in key areas

General Surgery Pain management post appendectomy

Junior doctors handbook to be updated

Agreement on complications to be
discussed and consented for

Contact anaesthetic audit lead to educate
anaesthetists on post-operative prescribing.
Addition of a nausea score on the Trust
Adult Observation chart to aid with preemptive prescription of anti-emetics in order
to prevent retching/vomiting
Pre-operative education on pain relief
Post-operative education on availability of
pain relief
Combination of Non-Steroidal
DQWLLQÀDPPDWRU\GUXJV 16$,'6 DORQJ
with paracetamol and opioid analgesics
during the short post-operative period to
optimize pain relief whilst preventing side
effects of NSAIDS.
Gynaecology

Emergency Gynaecological Admissions

New Gynaecology Assessment Unit (GAU)
Review and discuss need for O&G clerking
proforma
Re-audit waiting times for patients attending
GAU, use of chaperone, quality of
documentation

119

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Quality Report
Department
Gynaecology

Audit Title
Informed Consent for Elective
Gynaecological Surgeries - Re-audit

Action to improve Quality of care
Consultant led discussion on feasibility of
LQWURGXFWLRQRISURFHGXUHVSHFL¿FFRQVHQW
forms (i.e. incorporate Royal College of
Obstetricians and Gynaecology (RCOG)
consent form into our regular consent form)
for selected procedures.
,ISURFHGXUHVSHFL¿FFRQVHQWIRUPVFDQQRW
be introduced, then update current patient
LQIRUPDWLRQOHDÀHWVWRUHÀHFW5&2*
SURFHGXUHVSHFL¿FFRQVHQWIRUPV

Imaging

Patient waiting times in the Breast Care
Unit

Decide on an acceptable waiting times for
the unit
(GXFDWHDOOVWDIIJURXSVRQWKHDXGLW¿QGLQJV
and develop strategies for reducing the
current level of waiting times
Undertake further audit of waiting times only
for the Wire localisation unit to obtain
statistically relevant data

Neonatology

Renal Outcome Audit

Audit of culture positive urinary tract
infections In antenatal diagnosed
abnormalities.
Review timing of post-natal ultrasound
(USS) scans

Obstetrics

Blood Transfusion at Childbirth

Continuous education to junior doctors at
induction

Obstetrics

VTE Prophylaxis Prescribing among Peri Disseminate the guideline
Partum Patients (NICE CG92 Venous
(GXFDWH5HJLVWUDUV6HQLRU+RXVH2I¿FHU¶V
Thromboembolism)
(SHO’s) at induction meeting

Orthodontics

Audit awareness and compliance with
post bond up instructions

(YHU\SDWLHQWSURYLGHGZLWKDOHDÀHWZLWK
most important information about oral
hygiene
Remind patients every other appointment
about oral hygiene
Give disclosing tablets to patients at the
beginning of treatment to establish oral
hygiene

Pathology

An audit into reporting of blood
transfusion reactions in Medway
Maritime Hospital
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Pharmacy

Audit Title
Audit of the use of enteral syringes and
feeding systems within the trust (NPSA
alert 19)

Action to improve Quality of care
Communicate to wards that staff segregate
oral/enteral syringes from IV syringes.
Oral/enteral syringes on paediatric wards
need to be reviewed to ensure suitable and
if not correct syringes to be ordered.
Nursing staff require education about
administration using oral/enteral syringes
and enteral feeding systems.

Pharmacy

48 hour antimicrobial review (Policy:
Antimicrobial Stewardship Policy)

Each ward consultant was sent the results of
WKHDXGLWDQGUHVSRQVHVLQYLWHGRQVSHFL¿F
areas of discordance with the antibiotic
Audit highlighted the role of the nursing and
ward pharmacists in reminding doctors of
the need for a 48 hour review as per policy
Ad hoc ward visits by the Director on
Infection Prevention & Control (DIPC) and
Consultant Microbiologists to support the
junior doctors in undertaking patient reviews

Radiology

Image Quality of Plain Abdominal
Radiography

Spread awareness about the criteria for
producing optimal abdominal radiographs as
per 2006 ACR guidelines.

Radiology

Ionizing Radiation (Medical Exposure)
Regulations (2000): Four Point Check
Audit: Quality Improvement

Remind Mammographers of the need to
HYLGHQFHWKHLUSDWLHQWLGHQWL¿FDWLRQFKHFNV

Respiratory
Medicine

Hospital Acquired Pneumonia (HAP)
Diagnosis of Hospital Acquired
Pneumonia

Hospital Acquired Pneumonia bundle
developed, including:
,QIRUPDWLRQOHDÀHWIRUSDWLHQW
- Oral hygiene pack
- HAP cards (credit card sized advice cards)

Respiratory
Medicine

Lung Cancer Support Service Evaluation Ensure all consultants attend the “advance
Re-audit
communications” course
Ensure there is patient support at the
“Pleural Clinic”

Surgical Patient
Enhancement
Team

Surgical Patient Enhancement Team
(SPET) patient satisfaction survey

Best practice achieved, no actions

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

MED (Medway Early Discharge) are
primary hip and knee arthroplasty
patients discharged on time

Further discussion with consultant regarding
looking at cases which were not discharged
on time, also discuss with Occupational
Therapy (OT)
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Department
Trauma &
Orthopaedics

Audit Title
Orthopaedics: Availability of last clinic
letter at follow up appointment

Action to improve Quality of care
Engage more typists to clear backlog and to
prevent further backlog

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

Trauma & Orthopaedic ward rounds and
documentation compliance with
nationally recognised standards (Royal
college of physicians, generic medical
recording keeping standards, 2009)

Ward round completion to be ticked off
against ward list and/or ward whiteboard
each day
Nursing staff to contact responsible SHO if
ward round is not completed by midafternoon each day
Allocation of individual bleeps to all SHOs to
LPSURYHZDUGHI¿FLHQF\
Pre-allocated SHO to review observations
on post-take ward rounds with all ward
round members encouraged to prompt if this
is forgotten
Emphasis of importance of ward round
documentation and distribution of standard
documents to all new staff member at
department induction

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

Immediate Post-Operative Check
Radiographs After Hip Arthroplasty:
Are They Adequate?

Post-op arthroplasty - check radiograph
protocol

$VVHVVPHQWRIDGHTXDF\RIYHUL¿FDWLRQ
of deaths: re-audit (Code of practice:
Academy of Medical Royal College)

Education of staff, include in Junior doctor
handbook

Doctors to repeat inadequate radiographs,
until adequate radiographs are done

Include in Junior Doctor Handbooks
Posters on the wards
&UHDWLRQRIVWDQGDUGLVHGGHDWKYHUL¿FDWLRQ
forms and circulation throughout the trust

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

(OHFWURQLF'LVFKDUJH1RWL¿FDWLRQ ('1 
for elective and trauma orthopaedic
patients (re-audit) – Re-audit for patients
understanding of post discharge
instructions

Trauma & Orthopaedic doctors and nurses
to be informed of the importance of
HOHFWURQLFGLVFKDUJHQRWL¿FDWLRQ ('1 DQG
post discharge instructions

Trauma &
Orthopaedics

Trauma & Orthopaedic wards, are
patients on the ward named under the
correct consultant

Update and check name of consultant as
soon as patients are transferred onto the
wards

Urology

Urology ward round - re-audit to assess
WKHHI¿FLHQF\RIWKHXURORJ\ZDUGURXQG

0F&XOORFKZDUGWREHD8URORJ\VSHFL¿F
ward
Increase nurse presence on urology ward
round

Urology

Adequate completion of computerised
tomography (CT) request forms in the
Urology Department
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CT poster to be displayed

Quality Report
Department
Urology

Vascular

Audit Title
Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) in
prostates, are we compliant with NICE
Guidelines: NICE Guidance CG175 in
performing MRI in patient with raised
SURVWDWHVSHFL¿FDQWLJHQ 36$ DIWHUD
QHJDWLYH¿UVWWUDQVUHFWDOXOWUDVRXQG
guided biopsy (TRUS) before planning a
re-biopsy (Template) (NICE: CG175
Prostate cancer: diagnosis and
treatment)
Endovascular intervention follow up: the
evaluation of current nurse led policy

Action to improve Quality of care
Perform MRI scan for patients planned for
re-biopsy with a previous negative TRUS
biopsy.

Perform MRI scan for patients on AS who
are planned for re-biopsy.

No actions required

Patients involved in research at the Trust
The number of patients receiving NHS services provided or sub-contracted by Medway NHS
Foundation Trust between the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, that were recruited during
this period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee, was 8,958.
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Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN)
A proportion of Medway NHS Foundation Trust’s income in 2015/16 was conditional on achieving
quality improvement and innovation goals agreed between the Medway NHS Foundation Trust and
any person or body with whom it entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement for the
provision of NHS services through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment
framework.
Further details of the agreed goals for 2015/16 and for the following 12 month period (once agreed
with commissioners) are set out below and available electronically at http://www.medway.nhs.uk/
about-the-trust/publications/board-papers/

Table 3.5: CQUIN schemes for 2015/16
Reference

Value of the
CQUIN

National

Acute Kidney Injury (AKI)



National

Sepsis (a – sepsis screening on presentation in
ED or assessment units)



National

Sepsis (b – antibiotic administration)



National
National
National

Dementia – Find Assess Investigate Refer
Dementia - leadership/training
Dementia – carers





National

Improved diagnosis Mental Health



TOTAL

Achievement
Partially
Achieved
Partially
Achieved
Partially
Achieved
Achieved
Achieved
Achieved
Partially
Achieved

£2,224,860

Local

Non-Elective Length of Stay



Local
Local
Local
Local

Braden/MUST including pressure ulcer reduction
Pressure Ulcer Collaborative
Complaints
VTE Collab
Local Friends and Family Test (Emergency
Department positive/negative score
improvement)
Smoking at Time of Delivery






Partially
Achieved
Achieved
Achieved
Not Achieved
Achieved



Not Achieved

Local
Local
TOTAL


£2,224,860

Specialised

Hepatitis C Network



Specialised
Specialised

Neo-Natal Term Admissions
Pharmacy – SACT




Specialised

Pharmacy - Oncotype DX



TOTAL

Achieved
Partially
Achieved
Achieved
Achieved
Partially
Achieved

£436,286

The total CQUIN achieved in 2014/15 was 43% and the income generated from the schemes was
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Care Quality Commission (CQC)
Medway NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the Care Quality Commission, and its
current registration status is registered with conditions. The Trust has not participated in special
reviews or investigations by the CQC during 2015/16.
The CQC has taken enforcement action against the Trust during 2015/16 and has
carried out two separate inspections during this time. 7KH¿UVWZDVDQDQQRXQFHGLQVSHFWLRQZKLFK
took place in August 2015 with the second a follow-up unannounced inspection in early September
7KHLQVSHFWLRQVZHUHIROORZHGXSZLWK¿HOGZRUNRQDQG0DUFK

Medway NHS Foundation Trust has participated in investigations by the Care Quality Commission
during 2015/16. The Trust has taken the following actions to address the conclusions or
requirements reported by the CQC.
Ɣ Developed and implemented an Emergency Department action plan including a
comprehensive education plan
Ɣ 6HWXSDSURJUDPPHPDQDJHPHQWRI¿FH 302 ZKLFKLVIDFLOLWDWLQJWKHLPSOHPHQWDWLRQRI
the following projects, as part of the Trust Recovery Plan:
o

Deteriorating patient

o

Introduction of a new Medical Model

o

Data quality

o

Emergency care pathway

o

Access targets (A&E and cancer)

o

Recruitment and retention of high quality staff

The Trust had made the following progress by 31 March:
Set upDSURJUDPPHPDQDJHPHQWRI¿FHDQGSXWDSURJUDPPHGLUHFWRULVLQSODFH
Put in place remedial action plans for the following areas of work:
o

Emergency Care

o

RTT

o

Diagnostics
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o

Cancer

o

Endoscopy

Participating in the national Emergency Care Improvement Programme (ECIP)

Reporting to Secondary Uses Service (SUS)
Medway NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during April 2015 to March 2016 to the
Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the
latest published data.
The percentage of records in the published data which included the patient’s valid NHS Number
was:
Dataset
Admitted Patient Care
Outpatient Care
Accident and Emergency

Percentage (March 2016 data)
98.8%
99.5%
94.1%

The percentage of records in the published data which included the patient’s valid General Medical
Practice was:
Dataset
Admitted Patient Care
Outpatient Care
Accident and Emergency

Percentage (March 2016 data)
99.6%
92.6%
95.4%

Information Governance Toolkit (IGT)
Medway NHS Foundation Trust’s Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for April
2015 to March 2016 was 77% and was graded satisfactory.

Clinical coding
Medway NHS Foundation Trust was not subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit
during the 2015/16 year by the Audit Commission.
The coding department has seen limited external audit in the past year. The Trust has focused on
ensuring that all coding for key datasets is correct, following the implementation of the new patient
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQV\VWHP:HDUHQRZPRUHFRQ¿GHQWLQUHODWLRQWRWKLVGDWD$GGLWLRQDOZRUNKDVEHHQ
undertaken in recording patients’ referral data – with evidence that the dataset is now more accurate
than it has ever been.
The Trust carried out its 200 Finished Consultant Episode (FCE’s) coding audit as part of the
Information Governance Toolkit requirements (IG505). This audit was undertaken by the Clinical
Coding Service Manager, who is a Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) Registered
Clinical Coding Auditor, using the latest audit methodology as recommended by HSCIC. The results
were positive and meant that we retained our IG Toolkit 505 attainment status.
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Data Quality
Medway NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following actions to improve data quality over the
course of 2016/17:
Improving the use of the established Data Quality (DQ) groups
Improving DQ reporting by creating a DQ dashboard to show improvement and areas for concern
Reviewing all KPIs and datasets that the Trust uses and submits either internally or externally
Completing a Data Assurance Document and implementing a full change process. The Data
Assurance Document will monitor the scores for all KPIs across the Trust
Starting work on an up to date and complete data warehouse to correctly and securely hold data
which is used in reporting
Working closelyZLWK,7WRHQVXUHWKDWV\VWHPFRQ¿JXUDWLRQLVFRUUHFW DFURVVDOOV\VWHPV WR
capture the appropriate patient information as well as allowing for reporting to occur
Establishing a full DQ assurance process which will ensure every KPI has a DQ score which is
then updated in all reports from ward level to Board
Working with the A&E system supplier to ensure more accurate coding can occur

Reporting against core indicators

HSMR and SHMI
Indicator
HSMR
Indicator
SHMI

Oct 15

Nov 15

108.69
106.56
Jul 14 –
Oct14 – Sept National
Highest
Jun 15
15
Average
Score
118 (Band 1)
115 (Band 1)
100

Lowest Score
117

65

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this HSMR and SHMI data is as described for the
following reasons:
Ɣ The data is taken from the Dr Foster system
Ɣ There are sign-off procedures through the mortality and morbidity group which validate the
position
Ɣ There is coding work (see below) which is occurring which is improving the co-morbidity and
morbidity coding
The Trust has taken the following action, to improve these indicators, and so the quality of its
services: focusing on this area in the priorities for 2016/17. We have seen a steady and sustained
improvement in both our HSMR and SHMI over 2015/16, we will aim to improve both the HSMR
and the SHMI further during 2016/17.
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Palliative care code at diagnosis level
Indicator
% patient
deaths with
palliative care
code at
diagnosis level
for the
reporting
period

Jul 14 –
Jun 15

Oct 14–
Sept 15

35.84%

National
Average

37.28%

Highest
Score

27%

53.51%

Lowest Score

0.19%

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ It is aligned to mortality and morbidity meetings, where Head of Coding works directly with
the clinicians to ensure all codes relating to mortality are accurate.
Ɣ $SURFHVVÀRZKDVEHHQSXWLQSODFHWRHQVXUHWKHDFFXUDWHUHSRUWLQJDQGYDOLGDWLRQRIDOO
the coding in relation to palliative care
The Trust has taken the following actions to improve this indicator of 37.28%, and so the quality of
its services, by employing a new Head of Coding, with a vast experience in coding at a national
OHYHODQGDOVRUHYLHZLQJDOOFRGLQJVSHFL¿FDOO\LQUHODWLRQWRSDOOLDWLYHFDUH$QHZSURIRUPDLV
being rolled out across the Trust in order for the consultants to sign-off that they agree with the
coding of the patient. Where the consultant does not sign, they must state the reasons why and
actions will be taken to rectify the coding where required.

28 Day Readmissions
Indicator
The % of
patients aged
0-15 readmitted to
hospital within
28 days of
discharge
The % of
patients aged
16 and over
re-admitted to
hospital within
28 days of
discharge

Dec 2012

Dec 2013

National
Average

Highest
Score

Lowest Score

9.75%

9.04%

Not available

14.94%

0%

12.16%

11.37%

11.45%

17.15%

0%

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ This is a priority area for the Trust in 2016/17.
Ɣ An external audit carried out a review of the data in 2015/16 and actions that arose from this
are being carried out through the BI plan and will also be further addressed in the Data
Warehouse work stream.
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The Trust has taken the following actions to improve these indicators of 9.04% and 11.37%
respectively, and so the quality of its services, by focusing on this area as a priority for 2016/17.
This will be addressed through the Medical Model work as well as the data quality workstream
within the Trust Recovery Plan.
We are currently using internal data to calculate this indicator which means we are not capturing all
readmissions. To calculate readmissions, three areas need to be included, they are:
Ɣ Patient seen at reporting hospital and are readmitted to the same hospital.
Ɣ Patients are seen at reporting hospital and then readmitted to a different hospital.
Ɣ Patient seen at another hospital and readmitted to reporting hospital.
:HDUHRQO\UHVSRQVLEOHIRUUHDGPLVVLRQVWKDWDUHVHHQDWRXUKRVSLWDOLQWKH¿UVWLQVWDQFH%\
using the local dataset we are only picking up patients that have been admitted and readmitted to
Medway NHS Foundation Trust. This approach has been consistent over some time.
)URPZHZLOOEHXVLQJWKH1DWLRQDO5HDGPLVVLRQ¿OHIURP686WRHQVXUHZHFDSWXUHDOO
areas.

Graph 3.6: 28 Day Readmissions Apr 2015-Mar 2016

Responsiveness (Patient Friends and Family Test)
Indicator
The Trust’s
responsiveness
to the personal
needs of its
patients during
the reporting
period

2013/14

61.3%

2014/15

National
Average

63.6%

68.9%

Highest
Score

86.1%

Lowest Score

54.4%

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ The data is collected by an external company and reported back to us on a monthly basis.
Ɣ The data is validated and actioned upon by the Director of Nursing through the executive
team meetings and patient experience forums
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The Trust has taken the following action to improve this indicator, and so the quality of its services:
work taken by the forums listed above.
Staff Friends and Family Test
Indicator

2014

% staff
employed by
or under
contract to,
the Trust
during the
reporting
period who
would
recommend
the Trust via
the Friends
and Family
Test

2015

National
Average

Highest
Score

Lowest Score

3.75
3.40

3.45

4.10

(rate for Acute
Trusts)

3.30

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ The data is collected through surveys which are automated and data is fed back into the
Trust through an electronic route.
The Trust has taken the following actions to improve this indicator of 3.45, and so the quality of its
services:
Ɣ focusing on staff satisfaction through the Trust Recovery Plan.
Ɣ new bullying and whistleblowing hotlines were put in place for staff members in March 2016.
Ɣ an action plan for the reduction in agency staff is in place.
A new internal staff bank has been put in place and new rates agreed for those working through
the bank.

Venous Thromboembolism (VTE)
Indicator
% patients risk
assessed for
VTE during
the reporting
period

Qtr2
2015/16

Qtr3
2015/16

96.1%
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96.8%
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95.5%

Highest
Score

Lowest Score

100%

61.5%
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Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ In March 2016 an audit will take place by an external auditor which will assess the quality of
the VTE data reporting.
Ɣ The numbers are validated at every reporting period and sign-off is sought from the nurse in
charge.
The Trust has taken the following actions to improve this indicator of 96.8% and so the quality of its
services: ensuring that the process for patients having their VTE assessment is as smooth as
possible and that the data capture for this is in place and is capturing every assessment carried
out.

C-Diff
Indicator
The rate per
1,000,000 bed
days of cases of
C Diff infection
reported within
the Trust
amongst
patients aged 2
or over during
the reporting
period

Apr 13 –
Mar 15

Apr 14 –
Mar 15

7.1

National
Average

10.0

Highest
Score

15.1

Lowest Score

62.2

0.00

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons:
Ɣ The data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC)
indicators portal.
Ɣ 7KH&'LII¿JXUHVJRWKURXJKDULJRURXVFKHFNLQJSURFHVVWRHQVXUHWKDWWKH\DUHFRUUHFW
with the Infection Control nurse and the testing laboratory.
Ɣ C Diff has formed part of the Quality Report Audit by Deloitte for this year.
The Trust has taken the following actions to improve this indicator of 10.0, and so the quality of its
services: ensuring that all cases are C Diff are captured correctly and that the testing is within the
national guidelines.
7KHUHDUHPHHWLQJVDWZKLFKWKH&'LII¿JXUHVDUHUHSRUWHGDQGDOOFDVHVDUHUHSRUWHGH[WHUQDOO\
and discussed to ensure that lessons are learnt where required.
C-Diff has been chosen as a local indicator also this year by the Governors. This decision was
taken in January as a Governors meeting. This means that the indicator has been audited and the
number of C Diff cases can be reported. The number of C Diff cases in 2015/16 was 20; this has
been reported on monthly basis to the Board through the Integrated Quality & Performance Report
(IQPR).
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Patient Safety Incidents (rate per 1000 bed days)
Indicator
Number/Rate
of patient
safety
incidents
Number
reported
severe harm/
death

Oct 14 –
Mar 15

Apr 15 –
Sept 15

National
Average

Highest
Score

Lowest Score

No. = 3,612

No. = 2,628

No. = 4,647

No. = 12,080

No. = 1,559

Rate = 36.03

Rate = 24.74

Rate = 39.30

Rate = 74.67

Rate = 18.07

No. = 33

No. = 36

No. = 19.98

No. = 111.00

No. = 1.00

% = 0.9%

% = 1.3%

% = 0.49%

% = 3.61%

% = 0.04%

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reason:
this data has been sourced from the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) indicators
portal.
The Trust has taken the following actions to improve performance against these indicators, and so
the quality of its services:
Ɣ New incident investigation framework
Ɣ Trained staff in incident investigation
Ɣ Introduced learning events
Ɣ Improved the system for reporting incidents and raised awareness of the importance of
reporting
Ɣ Improved clinical governance framework
Ɣ Introduced a harm free weekly meeting with Executive oversight to respond to incidents
more quickly

PROMs (EQ-5D Index Score)
Indicator
Health Gain
Score for
Groin Hernia
Surgery
Health Gain
Score for
Varicose Vein
Surgery
Health Gain
Score for Hip
replacement
surgery
Health Gain
Score for
Knee
replacement
surgery

Apr 14 –
Mar 15

Apr 15 –
Sept 15

National
Average

Highest
Score

Lowest Score

0.12

0.12

0.08

0.13

0.008

Low numbers

Low numbers

0.10

0.12

0.03

0.45

0.45

0.45

0.51

0.35

0.31

0.29

0.33

0.41

0.20

Medway NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the following reasons;
the data has been sourced from the Health & Social Care Information Centre indicators portal.
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A negative score indicates that health and quality of life has not improved whereas a positive score
suggests there has been improvement. The NHS asks patients about their health and quality of life
before an operation takes place and then about their health and effectiveness of the operation after
the event. This should help to improve the quality of care that the hospital provides the patients.
Medway NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the PROMs, and
so the quality of its services: continue to monitor the PROMS score and take actions in the areas
where needed. The actions would consist of mapping through the process taken before, during and
after procedures.
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Part 3: Other Information

During 2015/16 the Trust participated in the national ‘Sign up for Safety Campaign’. The main
focus of the improvement projects related to improving sepsis care and the management of
patients with liver failure / Acute Kidney Injury (AKI), falls and medicines management. This section
of the report outlines the results of this and the Trust’s progress against priorities set out in last
year’s Quality Account.
The priorities have been closely monitored throughout the year and the table below shows the
progress made, broken down by area, and whether the set target was met. The table also sets out
what actions have been taken to achieve the target and what activities are on-going.

Table.3.7: 2015/16 agreed priorities and achievement
Category
Patient Safety

Patient
Experience

Priority
1. Improve mortality
rates in sepsis
2. Reduce harm:
pressure ulcers

Description
Improve the management
of sepsis
Consistently achieve below
the 0.7 per 1000 bed days
and introduce aSSKIN (a
national skin bundle)
3. Improve
Review of Transfer of Care
communication when
Communication (TOCC)
transferring care
received in 2014/15 and
implement lessons learned.
Ensure patients are
discharged with a clear
plan of care. Have a 10%
reduction from baseline of
196
1. Reduce cancellation Have a 10% reduction of
of outpatient department hospital cancellations from
appointments by the
baseline of 11,299
hospital
2. Improve percentage
Sustained 20%
of respondents to the
improvement in the A&E
Friends and Family Test FFT score from baseline of
(FFT) saying they would 69%
be likely to recommend
A&E
3. Improve Patient Led
Carry out regular audits
Assessments of the
and achieve an 85%
Care Environment
PLACE score against the
(PLACE) scores for
food and hydration
experience of food and component.
hydration
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Current
Met

Improved

Met

Improved

Improved

Met

Quality Report
Clinical
Effectiveness

1. Reduce Length of
Stay

Reduce the average length
of stay by patient to 4.8
days

Improved

2. Reduce readmissions Achieve an overall 10%
reduction in readmissions
from the current 11% for 28 Improved
days and 5.1% for seven
days.
3.Increase utilisation of Increase by 10% the use of
Day Case surgery
day surgery above the
Improved
baseline of 64.3%

Patient safety
PS.1. Improving mortality rates in Sepsis
Did we achieve this goal: Yes
Our overall mortality rate (the way in which we compare ourselves to others in relation to how
many patients die in the hospital) has reduced from 112 to 106; a 100 or below means that we are
at the same level as other trusts.

Source: Dr Foster Intelligence (accessed 05/2016)

Over the last three year period, there has been a reduction in the crude mortality rate (per 1,000
admissions) from 340 to 254 for patients with a primary diagnosis of septicaemia.
Current value for Hospital Standardised Mortality Rate in Sepsis (March 2015 – February 2016 12
month rolling data) is 100.05.
Whilst there has been some improvement within the diagnosis group of septicaemia, performance
here remains a concern and sepsis will remain a priority focus area throughout 2016/17. To assist the
Trust in managing sepsis, a sepsis screening and treatment tool – the ‘sepsis bundle’ has been
devised. The Trust’s recently appointed quality improvement nurses have been working alongside the
multi-disciplinary sepsis task group to educate and raise awareness of the sepsis bundle, and
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GHYHORSLQJUHVRXUFHVWRSURPSWHDUO\LGHQWL¿FDWLRQDQGWUHDWPHQW7KLVZRUNZLOOFRQWLQXHRYHU
2016/17 and septicaemia will also be a focus of the deteriorating patient project within the Trust
Recovery Plan.

PS.2. Reduce Grade 3/4 Pressure Ulcers
Did we achieve this goal: No
There have been seven Grade 3/4 pressure ulcers this year, an increase of two on last year.

Rigorous root cause analyses by the directorates found that these were avoidable and nonFRPSOLDQWZLWKSROLF\/HDUQLQJIURPWKHVHLQFLGHQWVKDVKLJKOLJKWHGGH¿FLWVLQVRPHRIWKHVNLQ
assessments by registered nurses, which impacts on treatment choices and preventative
interventions. This may be related to the high number of temporary staff. Changes in practice such
as the safety huddles (some with a member of the Tissue Viability Nurse team) and care rounds
(regular contact with each patient to ensure fundamental needs are met) should enhance timely
referral and interventions, resulting in an improvement in patient safety by reducing the number of
pressure ulcer acquisitions.
The use of resource folders is expected to improve knowledge related to tissue viability for all staff,
including temporary staff and student nurses.
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The structured governance framework ensures that audit results, themes and trends are reported
each quarter to the Nursing and Midwifery Strategy Group, Quality Improvement Group and Patient
Safety Group.

PS.3. Improving the number of reported concerns raised by other providers when
we transfer patients.
Did we achieve this goal: Yes
This indicator relates to incidences of organisations reporting that patients discharged by the Trust
to them have pressure ulcers. The reporting of concerns has improved in recent months; this is as
a result of increased training by the tissue viability nurses and improved communication with
Medway Community Healthcare.
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Patient experience
PE.1. Reduce cancellation of outpatient department appointments by the hospital
Did we achieve this goal: No
The Trust has struggled to reach this target due to the increasing demand for services. We have also
recognised that we need to improve the whole experience of patients, from the moment they are
referred for an appointment, until they are discharged. We have a major programme in place to
improve the experience of our patients, and to ensure they are communicated with in a timely way.
The data quality of reporting for this indicator has been recognised as needing work, and is an
indicator which will require further work in early 2016/17 to ensure that this is reported correctly.
We are currently using the data extracted from the Kent and Medway Health Informatics Service
.0+L6  GDWD ZDUHKRXVH ZKLFK LQ VRPH FDVHV LV DSSO\LQJ WKH FDQFHOODWLRQ ¿HOG LQFRUUHFWO\ WKLV
therefore requires manual validation following extraction. Going forward in 2016/17 we will be using
OASIS data directly and with the development of the internal data warehouse this will enable us to
ensure that the calculation is correct.
The cancellation rate for March was 27% (based on SUS reconciliation March 2016 data), which is
DPRQWKO\¿JXUHRI7KLVLVPDGHXSRI  SDWLHQWFDQFHOOHGDQG  KRVSLWDO
FDQFHOOHGRI¿UVWDSSRLQWPHQWVDQGRIIROORZXSVZHUHFDQFHOOHGE\WKHSDWLHQW
This will remain a focus in 2016/17 with a baseline being set using the April SUS data.

PE.2. Improve Friends and Family Test (FFT) ‘likely to recommend’ in the Emergency
Department (ED)
Did we achieve this goal: No
The FFT percentage of ‘likely to recommend’ has reduced in recent months. Although there has
EHHQVLJQL¿FDQWFULWLFDOIHHGEDFNWKHUHKDVDOVREHHQJRRGIHHGEDFNDERXWVWDIIEHLQJ
professional, caring and compassionate.The latest available data (up to August 2015) show the
current score is 72.38%, saying they would be likely to recommend. This is an improvement on
2014/15, but is well below the national average.

Orange line = Trust

The current ED action plan will help the Trust to focus on patient safety and improving patient
satisfaction

PE.3. Improve PLACE scores for experience of food and hydration
Did we achieve this goal: Yes
The Trust has improved the PLACE score for food and hydration to 85.26%. A recent audit
demonstrates improvement in the recording of nutrition assessments and the weekly recording of
the weights of patients in all seven areas audited. Minor improvement has also occurred in three
wards on the completion of care plans.
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Clinical effectiveness
CE.1. Reduce Length of Stay
Did we achieve this goal: No
The average length of stay (LoS) in the hospital, both for patients coming into the Trust as an
emergency (non-elective) and for those coming in for planned care (elective) has seen a slight
reduction in recent months. However, there needs to be a continued focus in this area. Current
plans are in place to improve how patients are seen by different staff as they receive care within
the Trust, supported by our buddying partners Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.
The data below shows the split between elective and non-elective cases as well as between those
over and less than 65 years old. It is evident that the over 65-age group contribute to the high
overall LoS and is an area which will need targeted work. We will continue to focus on this in
2016/17.

CE.2. Reduce readmission rates
Did we achieve this goal: Almost
Improving re-admission rates demonstrates that we are making sure that when we discharge
patients from the hospital they are in a stable condition. It also shows that we have ensured that
patients are receiving the right level of care in the community so that they do not have to come
back into hospital.
Emergency re-admissions within 30 days of a non-elective admission are shown below to August
2015.

Orange line = Trust
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Emergency readmission rates within seven days decreased from 5.4% to 3.9% between April 2015
– September 2015, however emergency re-admissions within 30 days are showing an increase.
We will continue to work towards improving readmissions for 30 days after patients have been
discharged in 2016/17.

CE.3. Increase 10% utilisation of Day Case surgery
Did we achieve this goal: No
The percentage of Day Case Surgery utilisation has improved month-on month-after a drop in
performance in January, however still not to the level required to meet the target of 73%. The
baseline was 63%, we are currently 69%, an increase of 6%.
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Annex 1: Statements from commissioners, local Healthwatch
organisations and Overview and Scrutiny Committee
CCG Statement

Swale
Clinical Commisioning Group

Medway
Clinical Commisioning Group

3DWULFLD'DYLHV±$FFRXQWDEOH2I¿FHU &DUROLQH6HONLUN$FFRXQWDEOH2I¿FHU
NHS Medway Clinical Commissioning Group,
NHS Swale Clinical Commissioning Group,
%UDPEOH¿HOG&OLQLF  Fifty Pembroke Court,
Chatham Maritime,
Grovehurst Road, Kemsley,
Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 2ST
Kent, ME4 4EL
29 April 2016
Trisha Bain
&KLHI4XDOLW\2I¿FHU
Medway NHS Foundation Trust
Windmill Road
Gillingham

Dear Trisha,
In response to the draft Medway NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) Quality Account submitted to NHS
Medway Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Swale Clinical Commissioning Group for
FRQVXOWDWLRQSOHDVH¿QGEHORZWKH&&*V¶VWDWHPHQWLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH1DWLRQDO+HDOWK
Service (Quality Accounts) Amendment Regulations 2012.
NHS Medway and Swale CCGs acknowledge the 2015/16 draft Quality Account submitted by MFT
DQGFDQFRQ¿UPWKDWWKHGUDIWYHUVLRQKDVEHHQUHYLHZHGDJDLQVWWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI+HDOWK
UHSRUWLQJUHTXLUHPHQWV7KH&&*VDFNQRZOHGJHWKHVLJQL¿FDQWFKDOOHQJHVWKH7UXVWKDVIDFHG
over the past year and support the quality priorities for 2016/17 detailed within the Quality Account
around Patient Safety, Patient Experience and Clinical Effectiveness. The CCGs note the
achievements reported on against the 2015/16 quality priorities and acknowledge that the new
Executive Team are bringing stability in leadership necessary to make the large scale changes
required to improve quality and safety of services provided by MFT.
,QOLJKWRIWKH7UXVWUHPDLQLQJLQµVSHFLDOPHDVXUHV¶IROORZLQJWKH¿QGLQJVRIWKH&DUH4XDOLW\
Commission (CQC) inspection in August 2015 the Trust continues to be rated as ‘inadequate’. The
CCGs are, however, encouraged by improvements now being seen; the Trust has developed an 18
month recovery plan and the CCGs are keen to support the Trust where possible in the delivery of
this. The Trust has continued with a downward trend in terms of hospital standardised mortality
rates (HSMR). Additionally the Trust has implemented the new medical model to improve patient
H[SHULHQFHRIFDUHDQGVXSSRUWWKHÀRZRISDWLHQWVWKURXJKWKHKRVSLWDO)XUWKHUWRWKLVFORVHZRUN
continues between the CCGs and MFT to facilitate improvements in delayed transfers of care.
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Over the past year the Trust has struggled to deliver against constitutional standards in terms of
referral to treatment within 18 weeks; cancer waiting time targets; zero tolerance of MRSA
(meticillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus) and Mixed Sex Accommodation breaches. The CCGs
have been working closely with MFT on remedial action plans in these areas and will continue to
support the Trust to deliver and sustain improvement in 2016/17.
Yours sincerely

Caroline Selkirk
$FFRXQWDEOH2I¿FHU


NHS Medway Clinical Commissioning
Group

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

pp: Patricia Davies
$FFRXQWDEOH2I¿FHU
NHS Swale Clinical Commissioning
Group
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Governors’ Statement
A Quality Account is a written report that providers of NHS services are required to submit to the
Secretary of State and publish on the NHS Choices website each June summarising the quality of
WKHLUVHUYLFHVGXULQJWKHSUHYLRXV¿QDQFLDO\HDULQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH1DWLRQDO+HDOWK6HUYLFH
(Quality Accounts) Regulations (2010).
There is also a requirement to provide information on the quality of the services to patients and the
public. Being mindful of the inevitable clash between Patient and Public readability and meeting the
Healthcare Quality Improvement Partnership (HQIP)/Monitor requirements with regard to content
and format, this report does meet the mandatory requirements. However, to meet these
requirements it inevitably contains a large amount of management/clinical jargon, and many tables/
JUDSKV SDJHVLQRQHEORFN PDNLQJHOHPHQWVRIWKHGRFXPHQWGLI¿FXOWWRUHDGDQGXQGHUVWDQG
for the patients and public. There are many unexplained acronyms.
The Council of Governors is made up of elected and appointed Governors who provide a link
between the Trust, local people and key stakeholders. They share information and views that can
LQÀXHQFHDQGVKDSHWKHZD\KRVSLWDOVHUYLFHVDUHSURYLGHGE\WKHKRVSLWDODQGWKH\ZRUNWRJHWKHU
with the Trust’s Board of Directors to ensure that the Foundation Trust delivers a high quality of
KHDOWKFDUHZKLOVWDFKLHYLQJ¿QDQFLDOEDODQFHDQGSODQQLQJIRUWKHIXWXUH
7RGRWKLV*RYHUQRUVKDYHSDUWLFLSDWHGLQDQGLQÀXHQFHGQXPHURXVLQWHUQDOPHHWLQJV LQFOXGLQJWKH
Quality Assurance Committee, Quality Improvement Group, Patient Safety Committee, Fire, Health
& Safety Committee and the Patient Experience Group) throughout the year where they
endeavoured to represent the interests of the members of the Trust and the public, so have been
involved with and kept informed of various aspects of the hospital performance. A formal Governor
representative participates in the Trust’s monthly Public Board Meetings, and the public and other
Governors are also are invited to attend and observe them.
MFT have been open where performance was not up to standard so there is a good and honest
ratio of what we did well and what we didn’t. The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent
with the information provided throughout the reported year, so presents a balanced picture of
MFT’s performance over the period covered.

Alan West
Public Governor Medway
18 April 2016
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Commentary from Medway Council’s Health and Adult Social Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Senior representatives of the Medway NHS Foundation Trust and Medway Clinical Commissioning
Group have regularly attended meetings of Medway Council’s Health and Adult Social Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee during 2015/16 to discuss the challenges facing the Trust. The
Committee has raised concerns about the multiplicity of action plans and the lack of stability in
leadership at the Trust which have now been addressed.
In June 2015, the Committee welcomed the newly appointed Chief Executive of the Trust and
discussed with her the overarching Improvement Plan for the hospital. Whilst Members were
pleased to hear of recent improvements at the Trust, the Committee raised a number of concerns
and queries with the Chief Executive.
As a result of these discussions several Members of the Committee visited the hospital in
September. Following this visit the Committee asked for various information from the Trust.
The Committee has taken a keen interest in the outcomes from successive Care Quality
Commission (CQC) inspections during this period.. In October 2015, the Committee discussed with
the Chief Nurse the CQC inspection which took place in August 2015. At this meeting Members
expressed some concerns and asked for further information about the cost of the diversions for
ambulances.
In December 2015 the Committee discussed with the Chief Executive and the Director of Clinical
Operations, Acute and Continuing Care progress against the CQC Improvement Plan and progress
in relation to mortality rates at the hospital. A number of points were raised by Members and the
&RPPLWWHHDVNHGIRUDUHSRUWWRWKHLUQH[WPHHWLQJRQWKH&4&LQVSHFWLRQ¿QGLQJVDQGQH[WVWHSV
Given the severe pressure on the Emergency Department at the hospital the Chairman, ViceChairman and spokespersons of the Committee, together with a representative from Medway
Council’s Adult Social Care Team, met with the Emergency Care Improvement Team from NHS
Medway Foundation Trust to receive their feedback on their assessment of the way the system
was coping with winter pressures.
In January 2016 the Committee discussed with representatives from the Trust the CQC Inspection
report and welcomed the positive comments in the report, particularly in relation to maternity and
gynaecological services and services for children and young people. The Committee has asked to
see the Trust’s action plan to address the issues in the inspection report and has also asked for
IXUWKHULQIRUPDWLRQRQVSHFL¿FLVVXHV
The dialogue between Medway Council’s Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and Medway NHS Foundation Trust has been ongoing and constructive during
2015/16. The Committee continues to provide challenge and seek assurance that the measures
being put in place by the Trust, Commissioners and other partners will lead to the impact required
to provide the highest quality of care for patients.

Submitted on 18 May 2016 by Perry Holmes,
0HGZD\&RXQFLO¶V&KLHI/HJDO2I¿FHU
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Annex 2: Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the quality report

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality
$FFRXQWV 5HJXODWLRQVWRSUHSDUH4XDOLW\$FFRXQWVIRUHDFK¿QDQFLDO\HDU
Monitor has issued guidance to the NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of the
annual quality reports (which incorporates the above legal requirements) and on the arrangements
that the NHS foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data quality for the
preparation of the quality report.
In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that:
Ɣ The content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16 and supporting guidance.
Ɣ The content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with the internal and external sources
of information including:
o

Board minutes and papers for the period April 2015 to March 2016

o

Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2015
to March 2016

o

Feedback from commissioners, dated 29 April 2016

o

Feedback from governors, dated 18 April 2016

o

Feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, dated 18 May 2016

o

The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, available after June 2016

o

The latest national patient survey, results available after 7 June 2016

o

The national staff survey, updated results published 22 March 2016

o

The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment,
dated 20 May 2016

o

CQC Intelligent Monitoring Report dated 7 January 2016.

Ɣ The Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance
over the period covered
Ɣ The performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate
Ɣ There are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to
FRQ¿UPWKDWWKH\DUHZRUNLQJHIIHFWLYHO\LQSUDFWLFH
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Ɣ The data underpinning the measures of the performance reported in the Quality Report is
UREXVWDQGUHOLDEOHFRQIRUPVWRVSHFL¿HGGDWDTXDOLW\VWDQGDUGVDQGSUHVFULEHGGH¿QLWLRQV
is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review; and
Ɣ The Quality Report has been prepared in accordance with Monitors annual reporting
manual and supporting guidance (which incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) as
well as the standards to support data quality for the presentation of the Quality Report.

7KH'LUHFWRUVFRQ¿UPWRWKHEHVWRIWKHLUNQRZOHGJHDQGEHOLHIWKH\KDYHFRPSLOHGZLWKWKHDERYH
requirements in preparing the Quality Report.

By order of the board

Shena Winning, Chairman, 26 May 2016

Lesley Dwyer, Chief Executive, 26 May 2016
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Annex 3: Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of Governors of
Medway NHS Foundation Trust on the Quality Report
We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of Medway NHS Foundation Trust to perform
an independent assurance engagement in respect of Medway NHS Foundation Trust’s quality
report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the ‘Quality Report’) and certain performance indicators
contained therein.
This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of
Medway NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council of Governors in reporting Medway
NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the disclosure of
this report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2016, to enable the Council of
Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by
commissioning an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Council of Governors as a body and Medway NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report,
except where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior consent in writing.

Scope and subject matter
As detailed in Part 2 of the Trust’s Quality Report and Part 1.2 of the Annual Governance
Statement, the Trust has been unable to report upon the following indicator for the year:
Ɣ Percentage of incomplete pathways within 18 weeks for patients on incomplete pathways at
the end of the reporting period.
:KHUHWKH4XDOLW\5HSRUWGRHVQRWLQFOXGHD¿JXUHIRUDQDWLRQDOSULRULW\LQGLFDWRU0RQLWRU
guidance mandates an alternative national indicator for testing and the following indicator was
selected:
Ɣ 0D[LPXPZDLWLQJWLPHRIGD\VIURPXUJHQW*3UHIHUUDOWR¿UVWWUHDWPHQWIRUDOOFDQFHUV
As a result, the following national indicators for the year ended 31 March 2016 subject to limited
assurance are:
Ɣ Percentage of patients with a total time in Accident and Emergency (A&E) of four hours or
less from arrival to admission, transfer or discharge; and
Ɣ 0D[LPXPZDLWLQJWLPHRIGD\VIURPXUJHQW*3UHIHUUDOWR¿UVWWUHDWPHQWIRUDOOFDQFHUV

We refer to the two above national indicators collectively as the ‘indicators’.

Respective responsibilities of the directors and auditors
The directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the quality report in
accordance with the criteria set out in the ‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual’ issued by
Monitor.
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Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether
anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:
Ɣ the quality report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the
‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual’;
Ɣ WKHTXDOLW\UHSRUWLVQRWFRQVLVWHQWLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVZLWKWKHVRXUFHVVSHFL¿HGLQ
section 2.1 of the Monitor 2015/16 Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality
reports; and
Ɣ WKHLQGLFDWRUVLQWKHTXDOLW\UHSRUWLGHQWL¿HGDVKDYLQJEHHQWKHVXEMHFWRIOLPLWHGDVVXUDQFH
in the quality report are not reasonably stated in all material respects in accordance with the
‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual’ and the six dimensions of data quality set
out in the ‘Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports’.
We read the quality report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of the ‘NHS
foundation trust annual reporting manual,’ and consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any material omissions.
We read the other information contained in the quality report and consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with:
Ɣ board minutes for the period April 2015 to March 2016;
Ɣ papers relating to quality reported to the board over the period April 2015 to March 2016;
Ɣ feedback from the Commissioners dated 29 April 2016;
Ɣ feedback from the governors dated 18 April 2016;
Ɣ feedback from Overview and Scrutiny Committee, dated 18 May 2016;
Ɣ the trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority Social
Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, due to be published after June 2016;
Ɣ the national patient survey throughout 2015/16;
Ɣ the national staff survey throughout 2015/16;
Ɣ Care Quality Commission Intelligent Monitoring Report dated 7 January 2016;
Ɣ Care Quality Commission reports; and
Ɣ the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the trust’s control environment dated 20
May 2016.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively the ‘documents’). Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other information.
We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team
comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts.

Assurance work performed
We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information’ issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited assurance procedures included:
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Ɣ evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for managing
and reporting the indicators;
Ɣ making enquiries of management;
Ɣ testing key management controls;
Ɣ limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to
supporting documentation;
Ɣ comparing the content requirements of the ‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual’
to the categories reported in the quality report; and
Ɣ reading the documents.
A limited assurance engagement is smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement.
7KHQDWXUHWLPLQJDQGH[WHQWRISURFHGXUHVIRUJDWKHULQJVXI¿FLHQWDSSURSULDWHHYLGHQFHDUH
deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance engagement.

Limitations
1RQ¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHLQIRUPDWLRQLVVXEMHFWWRPRUHLQKHUHQWOLPLWDWLRQVWKDQ¿QDQFLDO
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for determining
such information.
7KHDEVHQFHRIDVLJQL¿FDQWERG\RIHVWDEOLVKHGSUDFWLFHRQZKLFKWRGUDZDOORZVIRUWKHVHOHFWLRQ
of different, but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially different
measurements and can affect comparability. The precision of different measurement techniques
may also vary. Furthermore, the nature and methods used to determine such information, as well
as the measurement criteria and the precision of these criteria, may change over time. It is
important to read the quality report in the context of the criteria set out in the ‘NHS foundation trust
annual reporting manual’.
The scope of our assurance work has not included testing of indicators other than the two selected
mandated indicators, or consideration of quality governance.

%DVLVIRUTXDOL¿HGFRQFOXVLRQ
The annualised A&E four-hour wait indicator is calculated as a percentage of the total number of
unplanned attendances at A&E for which patients total time in A&E from arrival is four hours or less
until discharge, transfer, or admission as an inpatient. We have tested a sample of 19 unplanned
A&E attendances during the year.
,VVXHVLGHQWL¿HGWKURXJKWHVWLQJLQFOXGHG
Ɣ The Trust does not retain an audit trail for adjustments made following the validation of
apparent breaches.
Ɣ Documentation is not always available to evidence the rationale for amending individual
A&E attendance durations.
Ɣ &RQÀLFWLQJLQIRUPDWLRQEHWZHHQVXSSRUWLQJGRFXPHQWDWLRQDQG7UXVWGDWD
As a result there is a limitation upon the scope of our procedures which means we are unable to
complete our testing and are unable to determine whether the indicator has been prepared in
accordance with the criteria for reporting A&E 4 hour waiting times. In addition, we are unable to
TXDQWLI\WKHHIIHFWRIWKHHUURUVLGHQWL¿HGRQWKHUHSRUWHGLQGLFDWRUIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
2016.
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Part 2 of the Trust’s Quality Report summarises the actions the Trust is taking post year end to
DGGUHVVWKHLVVXHVLGHQWL¿HGLQUHODWLRQWRWKHGRFXPHQWDWLRQRILWVYDOLGDWLRQSURFHVVHV

4XDOL¿HGFRQFOXVLRQ
Based on the results of our procedures, except for the effect of the matters set out in the basis for
TXDOL¿HGFRQFOXVLRQSDUDJUDSKQRWKLQJKDVFRPHWRRXUDWWHQWLRQWKDWFDXVHVXVWREHOLHYHWKDW
for the year ended 31 March 2016:

Ɣ the quality report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set out in the
‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual’;
Ɣ WKHTXDOLW\UHSRUWLVQRWFRQVLVWHQWLQDOOPDWHULDOUHVSHFWVZLWKWKHVRXUFHVVSHFL¿HGLQRI
the Monitor 2015/16 Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports; and
Ɣ the indicators in the quality report subject to limited assurance have not been reasonably
stated in all material respects in accordance with the ‘NHS foundation trust annual reporting
manual’.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
St Albans, UK
26 May 2016
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6WDWHPHQWRIWKH&KLHI([HFXWLYH¶V5HVSRQVLELOLWLHVDVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHURI
Medway NHS Foundation Trust

7KH1+6$FWVWDWHVWKDWWKHFKLHIH[HFXWLYHLVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHURIWKH1+6)RXQGDWLRQ
7UXVW7KHUHOHYDQWUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVRI$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULQFOXGLQJWKHLUUHVSRQVLELOLW\IRUWKH
SURSULHW\DQGUHJXODULW\RISXEOLF¿QDQFHVIRUZKLFKWKH\DUHDQVZHUDEOHDQGIRUWKHNHHSLQJRI
proper accounts, are set out in the 1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHUV¶0HPRUDQGXP
issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Medway NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each
¿QDQFLDO\HDUDVWDWHPHQWRIDFFRXQWVLQWKHIRUPDQGRQWKHEDVLVVHWRXWLQWKH$FFRXQWV
Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of Medway NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, total
UHFRJQLVHGJDLQVDQGORVVHVDQGFDVKÀRZVIRUWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU
,QSUHSDULQJWKHDFFRXQWVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVUHTXLUHGWRFRPSO\ZLWKWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRIWKH
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to:
Ɣ observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Ɣ make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
Ɣ state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
GHSDUWXUHVLQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQG
Ɣ SUHSDUHWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRQDJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLV
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7KH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVUHVSRQVLEOHIRUNHHSLQJSURSHUDFFRXQWLQJUHFRUGVZKLFKGLVFORVHZLWK
UHDVRQDEOHDFFXUDF\DWDQ\WLPHWKH¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRI0HGZD\1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWDQGWR
enable him to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned
$FW7KH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULVDOVRUHVSRQVLEOHIRUVDIHJXDUGLQJWKHDVVHWVRI0HGZD\1+6
Foundation Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
Monitor’s 1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVW$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU0HPRUDQGXP.

Lesley Dwyer
Chief Executive
Medway NHS Foundation Trust
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of Governors and Board
of Directors of the Medway NHS Foundation Trust
Opinion on
¿QDQFLDO
statements of
Medway NHS
Foundation Trust

,QRXURSLQLRQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Ɣ give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31
March 2016 and of its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;
Ɣ have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies directed by Monitor – Independent Regulator of NHS
Foundation Trusts; and
Ɣ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
National Health Service Act 2006.
7KH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVFRPSULVHWKH6WDWHPHQWRI&RPSUHKHQVLYH
Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash
Flows, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and the related
QRWHVWR7KH¿QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJIUDPHZRUNWKDWKDVEHHQDSSOLHGLQ
their preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed by
Monitor – Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts.

Emphasis of matter We have reviewed the Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities
- Going concern
DVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHUFRQWDLQHGLQ6HFWLRQDQGWKHGLVFORVXUHPDGH
in Note 1.1 that the Trust is a going concern.
7KH7UXVWLQFXUUHGDQHWGH¿FLWRI PGXULQJWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
DQGLVSURMHFWLQJDQLQFUHDVHGGH¿FLWIRU7KH7UXVWKDV
LGHQWL¿HGDGGLWLRQDOIXQGLQJLVUHTXLUHGEHIRUHWKHHQGRIWR
support the Trust which is yet to be agreed.
:KLOVWZHKDYHFRQFOXGHGWKDWWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHU¶VXVHRIWKHJRLQJ
FRQFHUQEDVLVRIDFFRXQWLQJLQWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
is appropriate, these conditions indicate the existence of material
XQFHUWDLQWLHVZKLFKPD\JLYHULVHWRVLJQL¿FDQWGRXEWRYHUWKH7UXVW¶V
DELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQLQLWVFXUUHQWIRUP7KH¿QDQFLDO
statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Trust
was unable to continue as a going concern. We describe below how the
VFRSHRIRXUDXGLWKDVUHVSRQGHGWRWKLVULVN2XURSLQLRQLVQRWPRGL¿HG
in respect of this matter.
&HUWL¿FDWH

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance
with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service
Act 2006 and Code of Audit Practice.

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
6WDQGDUGVIRU$XGLWRUVDQGZHFRQ¿UPWKDWZHDUHLQGHSHQGHQWRIWKH
JURXSDQGZHKDYHIXO¿OOHGRXURWKHUHWKLFDOUHVSRQVLELOLWLHVLQDFFRUGDQFH
ZLWKWKRVHVWDQGDUGV:HDOVRFRQ¿UPZHKDYHQRWSURYLGHGDQ\RIWKH
prohibited non-audit services referred to in those standards.

Our assessment of
risks of material
misstatement

The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are those
that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team:
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the
risk

Going Concern
The Trust highlight their assessment of going
concern set out in Note 1.1, and detail the
Trust’s principal risks and uncertainties in
Section 2.7 of the Annual Governance
Statement.
The going concern assessment was
considered to be an area of audit focus due
WRWKHGH¿FLWIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
WKHFRQWLQXHGGH¿FLWIRUHFDVWIRU
2016/17, and the uncertainties detailed in the
Directors’ statement.

We evaluated management’s going concern
assessment by challenging the key judgements
within the Trust’s forecasts and annual plan
including assumptions over activity levels,
sensitivities, cost improvement programme
savings and the need for external sources of
¿QDQFLQJ7KLVDVVHVVPHQWFRYHUVDSHULRGRI
months from approval of the accounts.
We have reviewed correspondence and held
discussions with management to understand the
current status of contract negotiations with its
commissioners.
:HUHYLHZHGWKHDQQXDOUHSRUWDQG¿QDQFLDO
statement disclosures made by the Trust in
UHVSHFWRIWKHPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQWLHVLGHQWL¿HGLQ
respect of going concern.
We have included an emphasis of matter
paragraph above in respect of this matter.

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

154

Annual Accounts
Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the
risk

NHS revenue and provisions
As described in Note 1.2, Accounting
Convention, and 1.3, Income, there are
VLJQL¿FDQWMXGJHPHQWVLQUHFRJQLWLRQRI
revenue from care of NHS patients and in
provisioning for disputes with commissioners
due to:
Ɣ the complexity of the Payment by Results
regime, in particular in determining the
level of overperformance revenue to
recognise;
Ɣ the judgmental nature of provisions for
disputes with commissioners and other
counterparties; and

We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls over recognition of Payment by Results
income.
We have agreed baseline contract income to
underlying contracts and checked settlement
agreements to 3rdSDUW\FRQ¿UPDWLRQ
We have tested the year-end calculations for
partially completed spells (where settlement
agreements have been agreed upon), and
evaluated the results of the agreement of
balances exercise.

:HFKDOOHQJHGNH\MXGJHPHQWVDURXQGVSHFL¿F
Ɣ the risk of revenue not being recognised at areas of dispute and actual or potential challenge
from commissioners and the rationale for the
fair value due to adjustments agreed in
accounting treatments adopted. In doing so, we
settling current year disputes and
considered the historical accuracy of provisions
agreement of future year contracts.
for disputes and reviewed correspondence with
commissioners,
The majority of the Trust’s income comes
from Medway Clinical Commissioning Group
&&*   PDQG P 
DQG1+6(QJODQG  PDQG
P LQFUHDVLQJWKHVLJQL¿FDQFHRI
associated judgements as the Trust has
raised invoices for activity which they
consider to be outside the commissioning
contracts. NHS receivables at 31 March 2016
ZHUH P  P RIZKLFK P
 P ZHUHSURYLGHGDJDLQVW
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Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the
risk

Property valuations
The Trust holds property assets within
Property, Plant and Equipment at a modern
HTXLYDOHQWXVHYDOXDWLRQRI P
 P 7KHYDOXDWLRQVDUHE\
QDWXUHVLJQL¿FDQWHVWLPDWHVZKLFKDUHEDVHG
on specialist and management assumptions
LQFOXGLQJWKHÀRRUDUHDVIRUD0RGHUQ
Equivalent Asset, the basis for calculating
build costs, the level of allowances for
professional fees and contingency, and the
remaining life of the assets) and which can be
subject to material changes in value.
As detailed in Note 1.5, the Trust has
reassessed a number of valuation
assumptions in the current year, including the
alternative site of its modern equivalent
assets. The net valuation movement on the
Trust’s estate shown is an impairment of
1m.

We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls over property valuations, and tested the
accuracy and completeness of data provided by
the Trust to the valuer.
We used Deloitte internal valuation specialists to
review and challenge the appropriateness of the
key assumptions used in the valuation of the
Trust’s properties, including through
benchmarking against revaluations performed by
other Trusts at 31 March 2016.
We challenged the Trust’s assumption that an
alternative, lower value, site could be used in
calculating a Modern Equivalent Asset value by
reviewing the Trust’s Clinical Strategy, and
critically evaluating whether the alternatives
considered would be viable given the nature of
the Trust’s activities.
We assessed the appropriateness of the reduced
ÀRRUDUHDVWKH7UXVWKDVXVHGLQFDOFXODWLQJD
Modern Equivalent Asset valuation and how
these compared to the layout of the Trust’s estate
compared to a modern building.
We have reviewed the disclosures in Note 1.5
DQGHYDOXDWHGZKHWKHUWKHVHSURYLGHVXI¿FLHQW
explanation of the basis of the valuation and the
judgements made in preparing the valuation.
We assessed whether the valuation and the
accounting treatment of the impairment were
compliant with the relevant accounting standards,
and in particular whether impairments should be
recognised in the Income Statement or in Other
Comprehensive Income.
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Management override of controls
We consider that in the current year there is a
heightened risk across the NHS that
management may override controls to
IUDXGXOHQWO\PDQLSXODWHWKH¿QDQFLDO
statements or accounting judgements or
estimates. This is due to the increasingly tight
¿QDQFLDOFLUFXPVWDQFHVRIWKH1+6DQGFORVH
VFUXWLQ\RIWKHUHSRUWHG¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH
of individual organisations.
All NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts have
been requested by NHS Improvement to
consider a series of “technical” accounting
areas and assess both whether their current
accounting approach meets the requirements
of International Financial Reporting
Standards, and to remove “excess prudence”
WRVXSSRUWWKHRYHUDOO1+6UHSRUWHG¿QDQFLDO
position. The areas of accounting estimate
highlighted included accruals, deferred
income, injury cost recovery debtors, partially
completed patient spells, bad debt provisions,
property valuations, and useful economic
lives of assets.
Details of critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty are
included in Note 1.2.

How the scope of our audit responded to the
risk
Manipulation of accounting estimates
Our work on accounting estimates included
considering each of the areas of judgement
LGHQWL¿HGE\1+6,PSURYHPHQW:HKDYH
considered both the individual judgements and
their impact individually and in aggregate upon
WKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
In testing each of the accounting estimates
included in the NHS Improvement letter,
engagement team members were directed to
FRQVLGHUWKHLU¿QGLQJVLQWKHFRQWH[WRIWKH
LGHQWL¿HGIUDXGULVN:KHUHUHOHYDQWWKH
recognition and valuation criteria used were
FRPSDUHGWRWKHVSHFL¿FUHTXLUHPHQWVRI,)56
We tested accounting estimates (including in
respect of NHS revenue and provisions and
property valuations, discussed above), focusing
on the areas of greatest judgement and value.
Our procedures included comparing amounts
recorded or inputs to estimates to relevant
supporting information from third party sources.
We evaluated the rationale for recognising or not
UHFRJQLVLQJEDODQFHVLQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
and the estimation techniques used in
calculations, and considered whether these were
in accordance with accounting requirements and
were appropriate in the circumstances of the
Trust.
Manipulation of journal entries
We used data analytic techniques to select
journals for testing with characteristics indicative
of potential manipulation of reporting.
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Our report includes an additional risk, management override of controls, which was not included in
RXUUHSRUWODVW\HDU7KLVZDVLGHQWL¿HGDVDULVNLQEXWKDVKDGDQLQFUHDVHGHIIHFWXSRQ
WKHFRQGXFWRIRXUDXGLWWKLV\HDUGXHWRWKHLQFUHDVHGIRFXVXSRQUHSRUWHG¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDQG
estimates and estimation techniques.
7KHGHVFULSWLRQRIULVNVDERYHVKRXOGEHUHDGLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWKWKHVLJQL¿FDQWLVVXHVFRQVLGHUHG
by the Audit Committee discussed in Section 2.1 of the Annual Governance Statement.
7KHVHPDWWHUVZHUHDGGUHVVHGLQWKHFRQWH[WRIRXUDXGLWRIWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVDZKROH
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Our application
of materiality

:HGH¿QHPDWHULDOLW\DVWKHPDJQLWXGHRIPLVVWDWHPHQWLQWKH¿QDQFLDO
statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
UHDVRQDEO\NQRZOHGJHDEOHSHUVRQZRXOGEHFKDQJHGRULQÀXHQFHG:H
use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work.
:HGHWHUPLQHGPDWHULDOLW\IRUWKH7UXVWWREH P  P 
which is below 1% of revenue (2014/15: below 1% of revenue). Revenue
ZDVFKRVHQDVDEHQFKPDUNDVWKH7UXVWLVDQRQSUR¿WRUJDQLVDWLRQDQG
UHYHQXHLVDNH\PHDVXUHRI¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHIRUXVHUVRIWKH
¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the
&RPPLWWHHDOODXGLWGLIIHUHQFHVLQH[FHVVRI N  N DV
well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on
GLVFORVXUHPDWWHUVWKDWZHLGHQWL¿HGZKHQDVVHVVLQJWKHRYHUDOO
SUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

An overview of the
scope of our audit

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the entity and its
environment, including internal control, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement. Audit work was performed at the Trust directly by the audit
engagement team, led by the audit partner.
7KHDXGLWWHDPLQFOXGHGLQWHJUDWHG'HORLWWHVSHFLDOLVWVEULQJLQJVSHFL¿F
skills and experience in property valuations and Information Technology
systems.

Opinion on other
matters prescribed
by the National
Health Service Act
2006

In our opinion:
Ɣ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the National Health Service Act
2006; and
Ɣ the information given in the Performance Report and the Accountability
5HSRUWIRUWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUIRUZKLFKWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUH
SUHSDUHGLVFRQVLVWHQWZLWKWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
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Matters on which
we are required to
report by exception

Use of resources

The Trust was issued with its NHS provider licence on 1 April 2013.
Monitor has taken regulatory action in response to failure to comply with
the licence, including issuing enforcement undertakings and additional
licence conditions. Monitor has directed that the Trust improves its
governance arrangements, improves performance for Accident and
Emergency 4-hour waits target, improve the quality of care provided in the
(PHUJHQF\'HSDUWPHQWGHOLYHUVD¿QDQFLDOSODQZKLFKHYLGHQFHVD
sustainable recovery, and improves management and leadership capacity.
The Trust remains in breach of its licence.
The Trust has also described the following matters in its Annual
Governance Statement which we consider to be relevant to the Trust’s
DUUDQJHPHQWVWRVHFXUHHFRQRP\HI¿FLHQF\DQGHIIHFWLYHQHVV
Ɣ 7KHULVNVWRWKH7UXVWLQUHVSHFWRILWV¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHLQ
and plan for 2016/17 and the Financial Sustainability Risk Rating as at
31 March 2016;
Ɣ Findings from reviews of the Trust performed in 2015/16 by the Care
Quality Commission; and
Ɣ Weaknesses in the Trust’s arrangements to ensure the quality of
reported data.
7KHVHLVVXHVDUHHYLGHQFHRIZLGHVSUHDGDQGVLJQL¿FDQWZHDNQHVVHVLQ
SURSHUDUUDQJHPHQWVIRUVHFXULQJHFRQRP\HI¿FLHQF\DQGHIIHFWLYHQHVV

Annual Governance
Statement and
compilation of
¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

Under the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts, we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion:
Ɣ the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure
requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual, is misleading or inconsistent with information of which we are
aware from our audit, or
Ɣ proper practices have not been observed in the compilation of the
¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether the
Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that
risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.
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Respective
responsibilities of
the accounting
RI¿FHUDQGDXGLWRU

As explained more fully in the Statement of Chief Executive’s
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHVDVWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHUWKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHULV
UHVSRQVLEOHIRUWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGIRUEHLQJ
VDWLV¿HGWKDWWKH\JLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZ2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRDXGLW
DQGH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK
applicable law, the Code of Audit Practice and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). We also comply with International Standard on
Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland). Our audit methodology and tools aim
to ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood and
applied. Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review team.
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors and Board of
Directors (collectively “the Boards”) of Medway NHS Foundation Trust, as
a body, in accordance with paragraph 4 of Schedule 10 of the National
Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Boards those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Trust and the Boards as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Scope of the audit
RIWKH¿QDQFLDO
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
LQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVVXI¿FLHQWWRJLYHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHWKDWWKH
¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHIUHHIURPPDWHULDOPLVVWDWHPHQWZKHWKHUFDXVHG
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Trust’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
VLJQL¿FDQWDFFRXQWLQJHVWLPDWHVPDGHE\WKH$FFRXQWLQJ2I¿FHUDQGWKH
RYHUDOOSUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV,QDGGLWLRQZHUHDGDOOWKH
¿QDQFLDODQGQRQ¿QDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQLQWKHDQQXDOUHSRUWWRLGHQWLI\
PDWHULDOLQFRQVLVWHQFLHVZLWKWKHDXGLWHG¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGWR
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.

Craig Wisdom, ACA, Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
St Albans, UK
26 May 2016
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2016
NOTE

2015/16
£000

2014/15


3
4
5

231,768
23,249
(303,354)
(48,337)

223,189
32,170
(281,114)
(25,755)

11
12
22

35
(1,065)
(22)
(3,125)
(4,177)

32
(228)
(22)
(4,562)
(4,780)

'H¿FLWIRUWKH\HDU

(52,514)

(30,535)

Other comprehensive (expenditure)/income
(Impairment losses) and revaluation gains on property, plant and
equipment
Total comprehensive expenditure for the year

(11,558)
(64,072)

13,603
(16,932)

Income
Income from patient care activities
Other operating income
Operating expenses
2SHUDWLQJGH¿FLW
Finance costs
Finance income
)LQDQFHH[SHQVHV¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
Finance expenses - unwinding of discount on provisions
PDC Dividends payable
1HW¿QDQFHFRVWV

The notes on pages 165 to 196 form part of these accounts.
All operating results are from continuing operations.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
31 March
2016
£000

31 March
2015


13.1
15

166,348
511
166,859

176,595
503
177,098

14.1
15
23

6,351
21,485
5,620
33,456

6,118
19,458
3,132
28,708

(33,243)
(1,352)
(126)
(1,920)
(36,641)

(35,958)
(2,016)
(146)
(3,554)
(41,674)

163,674

164,132

(90,466)
(833)
(91,299)

(30,270)
(948)
(31,218)

72,375

132,914

129,491
32,261
(89,377)

125,958
45,852
(38,896)

72,375

132,914

NOTE

Non Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non current assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities

18
20
22
19

Total assets less current liabilities
Non current liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Total non current liabilities

20
22

Total assets employed
Financed by:
Taxpayers’ equity
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers’ equity

7KH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVZHUHDSSURYHGDQGDXWKRULVHGIRULVVXHE\WKH%RDUGRQ0D\DQG
signed on its behalf by the Chief Executive and Interim Director of Finance.

Signed: Lesley Dwyer (Chief Executive)
Signed: Darren Cattell (Interim Director of Finance)
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Taxpayers’ equity as at 31 March 2015

125,958

-

45,852

(1,287)

-

(25,250)

Public Dividend Capital repaid

Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost
depreciation to the Income and Expenditure Reserve

-

33,885

13,603

Public Dividend Capital received

-

-

33,536




117,323

Revaluation
Reserve

Public Dividend
Capital

Revaluation gains and impairment losses property, plant and equipment
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At 1 April 2014

32,261

(2,033)

-

-

(11,558)

-

129,491

-

Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost
depreciation to the Income and Expenditure Reserve

Taxpayers’ equity as at 31 March 2016

-

Public Dividend Capital repaid

3,533

-

Revaluation gains and impairment losses property, plant and equipment

Public Dividend Capital received

-

45,852




125,958

Revaluation
Reserve

Public Dividend
Capital

'H¿FLWIRUWKH\HDU

At 1 April 2015

Statement of changes in taxpayers’ equity

(38,896)

1,287

-

-

-

(30,535)

(9,648)

Income and
Expenditure
reserve


(89,377)

2,033

-

-

-

(52,514)

(38,896)

Income and
Expenditure
Reserve


132,914

0

(25,250)

33,885

13,603

(30,535)

141,211

£000

Total

72,375

0

-

3,533

(11,558)

(52,514)

132,914

£000

Total
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6WDWHPHQWRIFDVKÀRZVIRUWKH\HDUHQGHG0DUFK
NOTE

2015/16
£000

2014/15


&DVKÀRZVIURPRSHUDWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
2SHUDWLQJGH¿FLWIURPFRQWLQXLQJRSHUDWLRQV

(48,337)

(25,755)

Non-cash income and expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal
Non-cash donations/grants credited to income
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase in Inventories
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade and Other Payables
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in Provisions
Net cash generated from operations

10,007
(227)
45
(342)
(1,281)
(233)
(2,584)
(1,634)
(157)
(44,743)

8,521
(3,440)
(26)
(191)
3,536
(317)
4,785
1,882
82
(10,923)

&DVKÀRZVIURPLQYHVWLQJDFWLYLWLHV
Interest received
Payments to acquire Property, Plant and Equipment
Receipts from sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets
Net cash used in investing activities

35
(11,134)
31
190
(10,878)

32
(16,642)
35
96
(16,479)

&DVKÀRZVIURP¿QDQFLQJDFWLYLWLHV
Public dividend capital received
Public dividend capital repaid
Loans received
Loans repaid
&DSLWDOHOHPHQWRI¿QDQFHOHDVHUHQWDOSD\PHQWV
Interest paid
,QWHUHVWHOHPHQWRI¿QDQFHOHDVHV
PDC Dividend paid
1HWFDVKXVHGLQ¿QDQFLDODFWLYLWLHV

3,533
0
82,834
(22,547)
(755)
(1,034)
(18)
(3,904)
58,109

33,885
(25,250)
22,499
(1,225)
(791)
(160)
(68)
(4,645)
24,245

2,488

(3,157)

3,132
5,620

6,289
3,132

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and Cash equivalents at 31 March
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Notes to the Accounts
1.

Accounting Policies
Monitor is responsible for issuing an accounts direction to NHS foundations trusts under the
1+6$FW0RQLWRUKDVGLUHFWHGWKDWWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRI1+6)RXQGDWLRQ7UXVWV
shall meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
ManualZKLFKVKDOOEHDJUHHGZLWKWKH6HFUHWDU\RI6WDWH&RQVHTXHQWO\WKH¿QDQFLDO
statements have been prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual 2015/16 issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that
manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s
Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS
Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with
items considered material in relation to the accounts

1.1

Going Concern
7KH7UXVWKDVSUHSDUHGLWV¿QDQFLDOSODQVDQGFDVKÀRZIRUHFDVWVRQWKHDVVXPSWLRQWKDW
support funding will continue to be received through the Department of Health. These funds
DUHH[SHFWHGWREHVXI¿FLHQWWRSUHYHQWWKH7UXVWIURPIDLOLQJWRPHHWLWVREOLJDWLRQVDVWKH\
IDOOGXHDQGWRFRQWLQXHXQWLODGHTXDWHSODQVDUHLQSODFHWRDFKLHYH¿QDQFLDOVXVWDLQDELOLW\
for the Trust.
7KH7UXVWLQFXUUHGDGH¿FLWRI PDQGIRUHFDVWWRLQFXUDGH¿FLWLQWKHIRUWKFRPLQJ
¿QDQFLDO\HDUIXUWKHUPRUHWKH7UXVWDUHUHOLDQWRQWKHDIRUHPHQWLRQHGIXQGLQJIRUWKH
foreseeable future. Whilst the Directors are certain that the provision of services will
FRQWLQXHWKHUHDUHPDWHULDOXQFHUWDLQWLHVZLWKLQWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHWKDWPD\
FDVWVLJQL¿FDQWGRXEWRYHUWKH7UXVW¶VDELOLW\WRFRQWLQXHDVDJRLQJFRQFHUQDQGWKHUHIRUH
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business and around the form of the Trust that delivers those services. This provision will
DOVREHGHSHQGHQWRQERWKDFFHSWDQFHDQGGHOLYHU\RIWKH¿QDQFLDOUHFRYHU\SODQVDQG
continuation of support from the Department of Health. Notwithstanding the material
uncertainty, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that this will be the case and have
WKHUHIRUHSUHSDUHGWKHVH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVRQDJRLQJFRQFHUQEDVLV

1.2

Accounting Convention
7KHVHDFFRXQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGXQGHUWKHKLVWRULFDOFRVWFRQYHQWLRQPRGL¿HGWR
account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment at their value to the business,
LQYHQWRULHVFHUWDLQ¿QDQFLDODVVHWVDQG¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors considered of relevance. Actual results may differ from those estimates and
underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the areas where critical judgements have been made in the process of
applying accounting policies at the end of the reporting period that have a risk of causing a
PDWHULDODGMXVWPHQWWRWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIDVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVZLWKLQWKHQH[W¿QDQFLDO
year:
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Going Concern
The Trust produces detailed plans and forecasts outlining all its assumptions on future
¿QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH7KLVDOVRWDNHVDFFRXQWRIWKH¿QDQFLDOFRQWH[WLQZKLFKLWRSHUDWHV
Asset valuation
The Trust conducts regular valuations on its property, utilising specialist independent
valuers. The latest review of its property was conducted for 31 March 2016.
A standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations has been adopted based
on HM Treasury guidance and the concept of Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) Valuations.
The Depreciated Replacement Cost method, used for valuing most of the Trust’s properties
in line with other NHS bodies, is particularly judgemental. The Trust also adopted a
methodology which involved adding back at current value to the alternative site valuation
any existing assets that would not be rebuilt on an alternative site.
Impairments of receivables
The Trust regularly reviews the collectability of its debtors to ensure these are appropriately
impaired. This assessment is based on the latest cash collection records and other external
factors impacting relationships with debtors and the health economy.
1.3

Income
Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that,
performance occurs and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The
main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in respect of
healthcare services provided. For patients whose treatment straddles the year end income
LVDSSRUWLRQHGDFURVVWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDUVRQWKHEDVLVRIOHQJWKRIVWD\LQVRIDUDVLWLVLQ
DFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHWHUPVRIWKHFRQWUDFW:KHUHLQFRPHLVUHFHLYHGIRUDVSHFL¿FDFWLYLW\
ZKLFKLVWREHGHOLYHUHGLQWKHIROORZLQJ¿QDQFLDO\HDUWKDWLQFRPHLVGHIHUUHG7KLVLQFOXGHV
the Maternity pathway funding where the income is received at the beginning of the
treatment and the proportion relating to treatment which is to be delivered in 2016/17 has
been deferred.
The basis for the calculation of the partially completed spells accrual was those patients
who were occupying a Trust bed on 31st March 2016 but were not discharged until the
IROORZLQJ¿QDQFLDO\HDU$YHUDJHSULFHVE\VSHFLDOLW\DQGE\SRLQWRIGHOLYHU\ZHUHWKHQ
applied to these spells with adjustments made to ensure that income due was appropriately
GLVWULEXWHGEHWZHHQWKHDQG¿QDQFLDO\HDUVEDVHGRQWKHGLVWULEXWLRQRI
length of stay.
Additional contributions from central bodies (such as the Department of Health) designated
as revenue contributions are recognised as revenue when received or receivable, and are
separately disclosed, in accordance with the requirements of the 2015/16 Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual.
Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions
of sale have been met, and is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

1.4

Expenditure on goods and services
Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have
been received, and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure
is recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current
asset such as property, plant and equipment.
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1.5

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition
Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised where:
•

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

•

LWLVSUREDEOHWKDWIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WVZLOOÀRZWRRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOEHSURYLGHG
to, the Trust;

•

LWLVH[SHFWHGWREHXVHGIRUPRUHWKDQRQH¿QDQFLDO\HDU

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

•

LQGLYLGXDOO\KDYHDFRVWRIDWOHDVW RU

•

FROOHFWLYHO\KDYHDFRVWRIDWOHDVW DQGLQGLYLGXDOO\KDYHDFRVWRIPRUHWKDQ
ZKHUHWKHDVVHWVDUHIXQFWLRQDOO\LQWHUGHSHQGHQWWKH\KDGEURDGO\VLPXOWDQHRXV
purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under
single managerial control; or

•

form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit
irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

Staff costs have also been capitalised where they arise directly from the construction or
DFTXLVLWLRQRIVSHFL¿FSURSHUW\SODQWRUHTXLSPHQW
7KH¿QDQFHFRVWVRIEULQJLQJ¿[HGDVVHWVLQWRXVHDUHQRWFDSLWDOLVHG
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with
VLJQL¿FDQWO\GLIIHUHQWDVVHWOLYHVHJSODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWWKHQWKHVHFRPSRQHQWVDUH
treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware e.g. an operating system, is
capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is
not integral to the operation of hardware e.g. application software, is capitalised as an
intangible asset.
Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the
costs directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in
WKHVWDWHPHQWRI¿QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQDWWKHLUUHYDOXHGDPRXQWVEHLQJWKHIDLUYDOXHDWWKHGDWH
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
5HYDOXDWLRQVDUHSHUIRUPHGZLWKVXI¿FLHQWUHJXODULW\WRHQVXUHWKDWFDUU\LQJDPRXQWVDUH
not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting
period. Fair values are determined as follows;
•

Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

•

Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

A standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations has been adopted based
on HM Treasury guidance and the concept of Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) Valuations.
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The valuation included in the Statement of Financial Position at 31 March 2016 is based on
DQDOWHUQDWLYHVLWH0($YDOXDWLRQXQGHUWDNHQVSHFL¿FDOO\LQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH+0
Treasury guidance which states that such valuations are an option if the Trust’s service
requirements can be met from the alternative site.
All land and buildings are restated to current value using professional valuations in
DFFRUGDQFHZLWK,$6HYHU\¿YH\HDUV$\HDUO\LQWHULPYDOXDWLRQLVDOVRFDUULHGRXW
9DOXDWLRQVDUHFDUULHGRXWE\SURIHVVLRQDOO\TXDOL¿HGYDOXHUVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKH5R\DO
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The last asset
valuations were undertaken in 2016 as at the valuation date of 31 March 2016.
Properties in the course of construction for services or administration purposes are carried
at cost, less any impairment loss. Costs includes professional fees but not borrowing costs,
which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair
value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
8QWLO0DUFK¿[WXUHVDQGHTXLSPHQWZHUHFDUULHGDWUHSODFHPHQWFRVWDVDVVHVVHG
by indexation and depreciation of historic cost. From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased.
The carrying value of existing assets at that date are written off over their remaining useful
OLYHVDQGQHZ¿[WXUHVDQGHTXLSPHQWDUHFDUULHGDWGHSUHFLDWHGKLVWRULFFRVWDVWKLVLVQRW
FRQVLGHUHGWREHPDWHULDOO\GLIIHUHQWIURPIDLUYDOXH)RUDVVHWVRYHU RUWKDWKDYH
a life over 15 years, these will be revalued to fair value if materially different from carrying
value.
Subsequent expenditure
:KHUHVXEVHTXHQWH[SHQGLWXUHHQKDQFHVDQDVVHWEH\RQGLWVRULJLQDOVSHFL¿FDWLRQWKH
directly attributable cost is added to the asset’s carrying value. Where a component of an
asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for
recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Where
VXEVHTXHQWH[SHQGLWXUHLVVLPSO\UHVWRULQJWKHDVVHWWRWKHVSHFL¿FDWLRQDVVXPHGE\LWV
economic useful life then the expenditure is charged to operating expenses.
Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates calculated to write them
down to estimated residual value on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic
lives.
)UHHKROGODQGLVFRQVLGHUHGWRKDYHDQLQ¿QLWHOLIHDQGLVQRWGHSUHFLDWHG
3URSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWZKLFKKDVEHHQUHFODVVL¿HGDVµ+HOGIRU6DOH¶FHDVHVWREH
GHSUHFLDWHGXSRQWKHUHFODVVL¿FDWLRQ$VVHWVLQWKHFRXUVHRIFRQVWUXFWLRQDUHQRW
depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
%XLOGLQJVLQVWDOODWLRQVDQG¿WWLQJVDQGGHSUHFLDWHGRQWKHLUFXUUHQWYDOXHRYHUWKHHVWLPDWHG
remaining life of the asset as assessed by the Trust’s professional valuers. Assets held
XQGHUD¿QDQFHOHDVHDUHGHSUHFLDWHGRYHUWKHSULPDU\OHDVHWHUP
Equipment is depreciated on current cost evenly over the estimated life of the asset using
the following lives:
Medical equipment and engineering plant and equipment
Furniture
Mainframe information technology installations
Soft furnishings
2I¿FHDQGLQIRUPDWLRQWHFKQRORJ\HTXLSPHQW
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Set-up costs in new buildings
Vehicles

10
7

Information Technology assets also include the Picture Archiving and Communications
Systems (PACS) deployment costs, which is depreciated over a 10 year life.
Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in
operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating income.
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an
available balance for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating
expenses.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.
Impairments
In accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, impairments that
DUHGXHWRDORVVRIHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WVRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOLQWKHDVVHWDUHFKDUJHGWR
operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the
income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment
charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable
to that asset before the impairment.
$QLPSDLUPHQWDULVLQJIURPDORVVRIHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WRUVHUYLFHSRWHQWLDOLVUHYHUVHG
when, and to the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed.
Reversals are recognised in operating income to the extent that the asset is restored to the
carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any
remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the
original impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and
expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the
impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of other impairments are
treated as revaluation gains.
De-recognition
$VVHWVLQWHQGHGIRUGLVSRVDODUHUHFODVVL¿HGDVµ+HOGIRU6DOH¶RQFHDOORIWKHIROORZLQJ
criteria are met:
•

the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
which are usual and customary for such sales;

•

the sale must be highly probable i.e.:
o

management are committed to a plan to sell the asset;

o

DQDFWLYHSURJUDPPHKDVEHJXQWR¿QGDEX\HUDQGFRPSOHWHWKHVDOH

o

the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price;

o

the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of
FODVVL¿FDWLRQDVµ+HOGIRU6DOH¶DQG
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o

the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will
EHGURSSHGRUVLJQL¿FDQWFKDQJHVPDGHWRLW

)ROORZLQJUHFODVVL¿FDWLRQWKHDVVHWVDUHPHDVXUHGDWWKHORZHURIWKHLUH[LVWLQJFDUU\LQJ
amount and their ‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets
are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been met.
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for
recognition as ‘Held for Sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset and the
asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping or demolition
occurs.
1.6

Donated, government grant and other grant funded assets
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair
value on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the
GRQRUKDVLPSRVHVDFRQGLWLRQWKDWWKHIXWXUHHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WVHPERGLHGLQWKHJUDQWDUH
WREHFRQVXPHGLQDPDQQHUVSHFL¿HGE\WKHGRQRULQZKLFKFDVHWKHGRQDWLRQJUDQWLV
GHIHUUHGZLWKLQOLDELOLWLHVDQGLVFDUULHGIRUZDUGWRIXWXUH¿QDQFLDO\HDUVWRWKHH[WHQWWKDWWKH
condition has not yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner
as other items of property, plant and equipment.

1.7

Revenue government and other grants
Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary
care trusts or NHS trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund
revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that
expenditure.

1.8

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is measured using average cost of pharmacy stock and latest prices for all other stock
which is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover
of stocks. Inventories comprise goods in intermediate stages of production.

1.9

Provisions and Contingencies
The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or
amount at the Statement of Financial Position date on the basis of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
VLJQL¿FDQWWKHHVWLPDWHGULVNDGMXVWHGFDVKÀRZVDUHGLVFRXQWHGXVLQJWKH7UHDVXU\¶V
GLVFRXQWUDWHRILQUHDOWHUPVH[FHSWIRUHDUO\UHWLUHPHQWSURYLVLRQVDQGLQMXU\EHQH¿W
provisions which both use the HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of 1.37% (2014/15:
1.3%) in real terms.
Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the
Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA, which, in return, settles all clinical
negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts.
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Non-clinical risk pooling
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties
Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution
to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims
arising. The annual membership contributions, and any ‘excesses’ payable in respect of
particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 25, unless the probability
RIDWUDQVIHURIHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WVLVUHPRWH&RQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVDUHGH¿QHGDV

1.10

•

SRVVLEOHREOLJDWLRQVDULVLQJIURPSDVWHYHQWVZKRVHH[LVWHQFHZLOOEHFRQ¿UPHGRQO\
by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s
control; or

•

present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a
WUDQVIHURIHFRQRPLFEHQH¿WVZLOODULVHRUIRUZKLFKWKHDPRXQWRIWKHREOLJDWLRQFDQQRW
EHPHDVXUHGZLWKVXI¿FLHQWUHOLDELOLW\

([SHQGLWXUHRQ(PSOR\HH%HQH¿WV
6KRUWWHUP(PSOR\HH%HQH¿WV
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which
the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but
QRWWDNHQE\HPSOR\HHVDWWKHHQGRIWKHSHULRGLVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWR
the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.
Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provision of the NHS Pensions Scheme.
'HWDLOVRIWKHEHQH¿WVSD\DEOHXQGHUWKHVHSURYLVLRQVFDQEHIRXQGRQWKH1+63HQVLRQV
website at www.pensions.nhsbsa.nhs.uk7KHVFKHPHLVDQXQIXQGHGGH¿QHGEHQH¿W
scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the Trust to
identify its share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted
IRUDVDGH¿QHGFRQWULEXWLRQVFKHPH(PSOR\HUVSHQVLRQFRVWFRQWULEXWLRQVDUHFKDUJHGWR
operating expenses as and when they become due.
Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme
except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time the Trust commits itself to
the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.11

Cash and cash equivalents
&DVKLVFDVKLQKDQGDQGGHSRVLWVZLWKDQ\¿QDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQUHSD\DEOHZLWKRXWSHQDOW\
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Interest earned on bank accounts and interest
charged on overdrafts is recorded as, respectively, ‘Interest Receivable’ and ‘Interest
Payable’ in the periods to which they relate. Bank charges are recorded as operating
expenses in the periods to which they relate.
Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of
DFTXLVLWLRQDQGWKDWDUHUHDGLO\FRQYHUWLEOHWRNQRZQDPRXQWVRIFDVKZLWKLQVLJQL¿FDQWULVN
of change in value. Deposits held in seven day notice accounts are treated as cash
equivalents. The Trust does not hold any investments with maturity dates exceeding one
year from the date of purchase.
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1.12

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax
does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of
¿[HGDVVHWV:KHUHRXWSXWWD[LVFKDUJHGRULQSXW9$7LVUHFRYHUDEOHWKHDPRXQWVDUH
stated net of VAT.

1.13

)LQDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVDQG¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
Recognition
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQG¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVZKLFKDULVHIURPFRQWUDFWVIRUWKHSXUFKDVHRUVDOH
RIQRQ¿QDQFLDOLWHPV VXFKDVJRRGVRUVHUYLFHV ZKLFKDUHHQWHUHGLQWRLQDFFRUGDQFH
with the Trust’s normal purchases, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and
to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or
services is made.
)LQDQFLDODVVHWVRU¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVLQUHVSHFWRIDVVHWVDFTXLUHGRUGLVSRVHGRIWKURXJK
¿QDQFHOHDVHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGDQGPHDVXUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHDFFRXQWLQJSROLF\IRU
leases described below.
$OORWKHU¿QDQFLDODVVHWVDQG¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKH7UXVWEHFRPHV
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
De-recognition
$OO¿QDQFLDODVVHWVDUHGHUHFRJQLVHGZKHQWKHULJKWVWRUHFHLYHFDVKÀRZVIURPWKHDVVHWV
have expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
&ODVVL¿FDWLRQDQG0HDVXUHPHQW
Financial assets are categorised as ‘Fair Value through Income and Expenditure’, ‘Loans
DQGUHFHLYDEOHV¶RUµDYDLODEOHIRUVDOH¿QDQFLDODVVHWV¶7KH7UXVWFXUUHQWO\KDVQRW
FODVVL¿HGDQ\¿QDQFLDODVVHWVDVµ)DLU9DOXHWKURXJK,QFRPHDQG([SHQGLWXUH¶RUµDYDLODEOH
IRUVDOH¿QDQFLDODVVHWV¶
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHFODVVL¿HGDVµ)DLU9DOXHWKURXJK,QFRPHDQG([SHQGLWXUH¶RUµ2WKHU
)LQDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV¶7KH7UXVWFXUUHQWO\KDVQRWFODVVL¿HGDQ\¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDVµ)DLU
Value through Income and Expenditure’.
Loans and receivables
/RDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDUHQRQGHULYDWLYH¿QDQFLDODVVHWVZLWK¿[HGRUGHWHUPLQDEOH
payments which are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current and / or
non-current assets.
The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables,
accrued income and ‘other receivables’.
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts
WKURXJKWKHH[SHFWHGOLIHRIWKH¿QDQFLDODVVHWRUZKHQDSSURSULDWHDVKRUWHUSHULRGWRWKH
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QHWFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH¿QDQFLDODVVHW
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Other Financial liabilities
$OO¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVDUHUHFRJQLVHGLQLWLDOO\DWIDLUYDOXHQHWRIWUDQVDFWLRQFRVWVLQFXUUHG
and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments
WKURXJKWKHH[SHFWHGOLIHRIWKH¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLW\RUZKHQDSSURSULDWHDVKRUWHUSHULRGWR
WKHQHWFDUU\LQJDPRXQWRIWKH¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLW\
They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months
DIWHUWKH6WDWHPHQWRI)LQDQFLDO3RVLWLRQGDWHZKLFKDUHFODVVL¿HGDVQRQFXUUHQWOLDELOLWLHV
7KH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVFRPSULVH1+6DQGQRQ1+6SD\DEOHVRWKHUSD\DEOHV
DFFUXHGH[SHQGLWXUHDQGERUURZLQJVDQG¿QDQFHOHDVHREOLJDWLRQV
,QWHUHVWRQ¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVFDUULHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWLVFDOFXODWHGXVLQJWKHHIIHFWLYH
LQWHUHVWPHWKRGDQGFKDUJHGWR)LQDQFH&RVWV,QWHUHVWRQ¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVWDNHQRXWWR
¿QDQFHSURSHUW\SODQWDQGHTXLSPHQWLVQRWFDSLWDOLVHGDVSDUWRIWKHFRVWRIWKRVHDVVHWV
,PSDLUPHQWRI¿QDQFLDODVVHWV
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any loans and
receivables are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are
recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an
LPSDFWRQWKHHVWLPDWHGIXWXUHFDVKÀRZVRIWKHDVVHW
)RU¿QDQFLDODVVHWVFDUULHGDWDPRUWLVHGFRVWWKHDPRXQWRIWKHLPSDLUPHQWORVVLV
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
WKHUHYLVHGIXWXUHFDVKÀRZVGLVFRXQWHGDWWKHDVVHW¶VRULJLQDOHIIHFWLYHLQWHUHVWUDWH7KH
loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account/bad debt provision.
1.14

Foreign Exchange
The functional and presentational currency of the Trust is sterling. Transactions that are
denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on
the dates of the transactions. Resulting exchange gains and losses are taken to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

1.15

Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
UHFRJQLVHGLQWKHDFFRXQWVVLQFHWKH7UXVWKDVQREHQH¿FLDOLQWHUHVWLQWKHP+RZHYHU
they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements
of the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual.

1.16

Leases
Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the
Trust, the asset is recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability
is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of the
asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest
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rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant period
rate of interest of the outstanding liability.
The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. The annual rental
LVVSOLWEHWZHHQWKHUHSD\PHQWRIWKHOLDELOLW\DQGD¿QDQFHFRVW7KHDQQXDO¿QDQFHFRVWLV
calculated by applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding liability, to achieve a
FRQVWDQWUDWHRI¿QDQFHRYHUWKHOLIHRIWKHOHDVHDQGLVFKDUJHGWR)LQDQFH&RVWVLQWKH
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability is de-recognised when the liability
is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Operating leases
Other leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating
expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives
received are added to the lease rentals and charged to operating expenses over the life of
the lease.
Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building
FRPSRQHQWDQGWKHFODVVL¿FDWLRQIRUHDFKLVDVVHVVHGVHSDUDWHO\
1.17

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC Dividend
3XEOLFGLYLGHQGFDSLWDOLVDW\SHRISXEOLFVHFWRUHTXLW\¿QDQFHEDVHGRQWKHH[FHVVRI
assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust. HM
7UHDVXU\KDVGHWHUPLQHGWKDW3'&LVQRWD¿QDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWZLWKLQWKHPHDQLQJRI,$6
32.
$FKDUJHUHÀHFWLQJWKHFRVWRIFDSLWDOXWLOLVHGE\WKH7UXVWLVSD\DEOHDVSXEOLFGLYLGHQG
capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%)
RQWKHDYHUDJHUHOHYDQWQHWDVVHWVRIWKH7UXVWGXULQJWKH¿QDQFLDO\HDU5HOHYDQWQHW
assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for (i)
donated assets, (ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking
Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) deposits, excluding cash balances held in
GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and (iii) any PDC dividend
balance receivable or payable. In accordance with the requirements laid down by the
Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the
actual average relevant net assets as set out in the pre-audit version of the annual
accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets
occur as a result of the audit of the annual accounts.

1.18

Losses and Special Payments
Losses and Special Payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated
when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are
items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which
govern the way each individual case is handled.
Losses and Special Payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis, including losses which would
have been made good through insurance cover had the trust not been bearing its own risks
(with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
However, the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and
compensations register which reports on an accruals basis with the exception of provisions
for future losses.
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1.19

Charitable Funds
The Trust is the corporate Trustee of Medway NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund –
Registered Charity number 1051748. The foundation trust has assessed its relationship to
the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the foundation trust has
WKHSRZHUWRJRYHUQWKH¿QDQFLDODQGRSHUDWLQJSROLFLHVRIWKHFKDULWDEOHIXQGVRDVWR
REWDLQEHQH¿WVIURPLWVDFWLYLWLHVIRULWVHOILWVSDWLHQWVRULWVVWDII
Prior to 2013/14, the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual permitted the NHS
foundation trust not to consolidate the charitable fund due to a dispensation from HM
Treasury relating to the application of IAS 27. From 2013/14, the dispensation was removed
however given the value of the charity the foundation trust has not consolidated the
charitable fund as at is not deemed material to the accounts of the foundation trust.

1.20

Accounting standards and amendments issued but not yet adopted
The following standards and interpretations issued by the IASB which have not yet been
DGRSWHG1RQHRIWKHPLVH[SHFWHGWRLPSDFWPDWHULDOO\XSRQWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDO
statements.
,)56¿QDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV
IFRS10 and IAS28 (amendments) – sale or contribution of assets
IFRS10 and IAS28 (amendments) – investment entities applying the consolidation
exemption
IFRS11 (amendment) – acquisition of an interest in a joint operation
IFRS15 - revenue from contracts with customers
IAS1 (amendment) - disclosure initiative
IAS16 and IAS38 (amendments) - depreciation and amortisation
IAS16 and IAS41 (amendments) – bearer plants
,$6 DPHQGPHQW ±HTXLW\PHWKRGLQVHSDUDWH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Annual improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2015 cycle

2.

Operating segments
The Trust has only one segment of business which is the provision of healthcare. The
VHJPHQWKDVEHHQLGHQWL¿HGZLWKUHIHUHQFHWRKRZWKH7UXVWLVRUJDQLVHGDQGWKHZD\LQ
which the chief operating decision maker (determined to be the Board of Directors) runs the
Trust.
The geographical and regulatory environment and the nature of services provided are
consistent across the organisation and are therefore presented in one segment. The
necessary information to develop detailed income and expenditure for each product and
service provided by the Trust is currently not discretely available and the cost to develop
this information would be excessive.
6LJQL¿FDQWDPRXQWVRILQFRPHDUHUHFHLYHGIURPWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKWKH'HSDUWPHQWRI
Health and other NHS bodies. Disclosure of all material transactions with related parties is
LQFOXGHGLQQRWHWRWKHVH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHUHDUHQRRWKHUSDUWLHVWKDWDFFRXQW
for more than 10% of total income.
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Income from Activities



,QFRPHIURP$FWLYLWLHV E\FODVVL¿FDWLRQ

Elective income
Non elective income
Outpatient income
A & E income
Other NHS clinical income
Private patient income
Other non-protected clinical income
 ,QMXU\FRVWUHFRYHU\ LQFOXGLQJ5RDG7UDI¿F$FW,QFRPH

2015/16
£000
34,771
75,699
38,197
9,868
72,107
309

2014/15

37,304
67,605
46,409
8,753
61,925
240

817
231,768

953
223,189

2015/16
£000
228,462
2,180

2014/15

219,743
2,253

103
206
817
231,768

108
132
953
223,189

All income from activities relates to commissioner requested services.

3.2

Income from Activities (by type)

Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England
Public Health England
Non NHS:
- Private patients
- Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)

,QMXU\FRVWUHFRYHU\ LQFOXGLQJ5RDG7UDI¿F$FW,QFRPH

Injury Cost Recovery income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 17.9% (2014/15: 18.9%)
WRUHÀHFWH[SHFWHGUDWHVRIFROOHFWLRQ

3.3

Overseas Patients
2015/16
£000

2014/15


206

132

Cash payments received in-year (relating to invoices raised in current
and previous years)

46

84

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (relating to
invoices raised in current and prior years)

0

0

Amounts written off in-year (relating to invoices raised in current and
previous years)

45

18

Income recognised this year
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Other Operating Income

Research and development
Education and training
Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Reversal of Impairment
Other income
Income on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Other Income includes
Car parking
Staff accommodation
Crèche
Catering
Other

2015/16
£000
1,054
7,247
413
5,355
246
8,934
0
23,249

2014/15

1,222
8,072
282
9,879
5,225
7,455
35
32,170

1,615
483
339
903
5,594
8,934

1,482
536
311
827
4,299
7,455

Income is almost totally from the supply of services. Income from the sale of goods is immaterial.
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Operating Expenses
Operating expenses comprise

Services from other NHS Trusts
Services from CCGs and NHS England
Services from other NHS bodies
Services from Foundation Trusts
Services from non NHS bodies
Non Executive Directors’ costs
Executive Directors’ costs
Staff costs
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Drug Costs
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Increase in provision for impairment of receivables
Depreciation
Fixed asset impairments and reversals
Loss/(Gain) on disposal
Statutory audit fee
Other services - audit related assurance
services
Other auditor remuneration – IT advisory services
Clinical negligence
Redundancy
Other
6

2015/16
£000
6,947
0
140
4,287
1,566
136
1,409
195,070
27,650
2,936
28,072
2,133
3,675
396
8,952
858
10,007
19
45
71

2014/15

8,125
162
5
1,411
875
194
1,573
180,802
26,323
3,159
22,911
3,473
2,863
386
9,112
144
8,521
1,785
(26)
69

8
68
4,764
939
3,206
303,354

8
155
4,817
220
4,047
281,114

Operating leases

Operating expenses include:
Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments

2015/16
£000
256
256

2014/15

305
305

31 March
2016
Total
£000
168
177
345

31 March
2015
Total

248
334
582

Total future minimum lease payments

Payable:
Not later than one year
%HWZHHQRQHDQG¿YH\HDUV
Total
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177
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Other

67
0
67
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,QJHQHUDORSHUDWLQJOHDVHVDUHIRUYDULRXVSLHFHVRIHTXLSPHQWDQGDUHIRUD¿YH\HDUSHULRG
Generally all equipment leases are taken out under the ‘NHS Conditions of Contract for the Lease
RI*RRGV¶1RQHRIWKHVHHTXLSPHQWOHDVHVLVGHHPHGWREHVLJQL¿FDQWRUGHVFULEHGDV
VSHFLDOLVHGLQQDWXUHZLWKWKHODUJHVWEHLQJ LQDQQXDOSD\PHQWV7KH7UXVWKDVDOVR
HQWHUHGLQWRDQRSHUDWLQJOHDVHIRUWKHXVHRIDEXLOGLQJZKLFKLVIRUD¿IWHHQ\HDUSHULRGEXWZLWKD
EUHDNFODXVHDW\HDUV¿YHDQGWHQSURYLGHGWKDWVL[PRQWKV¶SULRUZULWWHQQRWLFHKDVEHHQJLYHQ

7

The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998

Amounts included within other interest payable arising from claims
made under this legislation

2015/16
£000

2014/15


218

47

The Trust aims to pay its non-NHS trade creditors in accordance with the Better Payment Practice
Code and government accounting rules. The target is to pay non-NHS trade creditors within thirty
days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice (whichever is later) unless other payment terms have
been agreed with the supplier.
8

Employee expenses and numbers

8.1

Staff Costs

£000

2015/16
Permanently
Employed
£000

171,357
10,530
14,592

126,272
10,530
14,592

45,085
0
0

157,994
10,410
13,971

123,947
10,410
13,971

34,047
0
0

939

939

0

220

220

0

197,418

152,333

45,085

182,595

148,548

34,047

Total

Salaries and wages
Social Security Costs
Employer contributions
to NHS Pension
Scheme
7HUPLQDWLRQEHQH¿WV

Other

Total

£000



2014/15
Permanently
Employed


Other


7KLVDQDO\VLVH[FOXGHVQRQH[HFXWLYHGLUHFWRUFRVWVRI    
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'LUHFWRUV¶5HPXQHUDWLRQDQG2WKHU%HQH¿WV

Directors’ Remuneration
Social Security Costs
Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Total Remuneration

2015/16
£000
1,284
78
47

2014/15
£000
1,433
88
52

1,409

1,573

7ZR'LUHFWRUV  DUHDFFUXLQJSHQVLRQEHQH¿WVXQGHUWKH1+63HQVLRQ6FKHPH GH¿QHG
EHQH¿WV 

8.3

Average number of persons employed

Total

2015/16
Permanently
Employed

Number

Number

604

504

100

543

454

89

1,279

1,135

144

1,270

1,159

111

774

653

121

552

451

101

1,323

1,074

249

1,281

1,100

181

14

14

0

19

19

0

360

284

76

490

451

39

4,354

3,664

690

4,155

3,634

521

Medical and
dental
Administration and
estates
Healthcare assistants
and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and
health visiting learners
6FLHQWL¿FWKHUDSHXWLF
and technical staff
Total

8.4

Total

2014/15
Permanently
Employed

Other

Number Number

Number

Number

Other

Staff Sickness

Total days lost
Total Staff Years
Average working days lost

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

2015/16
Number
52,288
3,655
14

180

2014/15
Number
53,208
3,606
15

181
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

V
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Cost of
compulsory
redundancies

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
Number

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

£000s

2014/15

0
3
1
2
5
0
0
11

Number
1
1
3
1
0
0
0
6

Number of other
departures agreed

Number

There have been no (2014/15: none) departures where special payments have been made.

Exit package cost band
 
 

 
 
 
! 
Total

2015/16
Cost of
compulsory
Number of other
redundancies departures agreed

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number

Number of
compulsory
redundancies

Reporting of other compensation schemes - exit packages

Exit package cost band
 
 

 
 
 
! 
Total

8.5

0
52
27
187
673
0
0
939

V
2
16
120
82
0
0
0
220

Cost of other
departures
agreed

£000s
0
3
1
2
5
0
0
11

Number
1
1
3
1
0
0
0
6

Total number
of exit packages

Number

0
52
27
187
673
0
0
939

V
2
16
120
82
0
0
0
220

Total cost
of exit packages

£000s

Cost of other
departures Total number of
Total cost
agreed
exit packages of exit packages
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Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension
6FKHPHV'HWDLOVRIWKHEHQH¿WVSD\DEOHDQGUXOHVRIWKH6FKHPHVFDQEHIRXQGRQWKH
1+63HQVLRQVZHEVLWHDWZZZQKVEVDQKVXNSHQVLRQV%RWKDUHXQIXQGHGGH¿QHG
EHQH¿WVFKHPHVWKDWFRYHU1+6HPSOR\HUV*3SUDFWLFHVDQGRWKHUERGLHVDOORZHGXQGHU
the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be
run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
DVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHV7KHUHIRUHHDFKVFKHPHLVDFFRXQWHGIRUDVLILWZHUHDGH¿QHG
contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.
,QRUGHUWKDWWKHGH¿QHGEHQH¿WREOLJDWLRQVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKH¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVGRQRW
differ materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal
actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a)

Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the
Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an
actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated
PHPEHUVKLSDQG¿QDQFLDOGDWDIRUWKHFXUUHQWUHSRUWLQJSHULRGDQGDUHDFFHSWHGDV
SURYLGLQJVXLWDEO\UREXVW¿JXUHVIRU¿QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJSXUSRVHV7KHYDOXDWLRQRIVFKHPH
liability as at 31 March 2016, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2015, updated to 31
March 2016 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this
actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary
report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension
Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published
DQQXDOO\&RSLHVFDQDOVREHREWDLQHGIURP7KH6WDWLRQHU\2I¿FH

d)

Full actuarial (funding) valuation
7KHSXUSRVHRIWKLVYDOXDWLRQLVWRDVVHVVWKHOHYHORIOLDELOLW\LQUHVSHFWRIWKHEHQH¿WVGXH
under the schemes (taking into account their recent demographic experience), and to
recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was
completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.
The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the
Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the
advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as
deemed appropriate.

c)

Alternative Pension Scheme
For those employees who do not have access to the NHS pensions scheme but who are
RWKHUZLVHFODVVL¿HGDVHPSOR\HHVZLWKDQHQWLWOHPHQWWRDXWRPDWLFHQUROPHQWLQDQ
appropriate pension the Trust has put in place an alternative workplace pension scheme.
This scheme is administered by NEST (National Employment Savings Trust) and is a
GH¿QHGFRQWULEXWLRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH7KHWRWDOFRQWULEXWLRQFRVWVIRUWKLVVFKHPHIRUWKH
¿QDQFLDO\HDUDPRXQWWR    

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

182

Annual Accounts
10

Retirements due to ill-health
During 2015/16 there were 4 (2014/15: 3) early retirements from the Trust on the grounds
of ill-health. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be
   7KHFRVWRIWKHVHLOOKHDOWKUHWLUHPHQWVZLOOEHERUQHE\WKH
NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.

11

Finance income

Interest on bank accounts



2015/16
£000
35
35

2014/15

32
32

2015/16
£000
830
17
0
218
1,065

2014/15

113
68
0
47
228

)LQDQFHH[SHQVHV±¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV

Loans from the Independent Trust Financing Facility
Finance leases
Working Capital Facility
Other
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23,335
0
0
23,335

6,063
0
0
6,063

- Owned at 31 March 2016
- Finance lease at 31 March 2016
- Donated at 31 March 2016
- Total at 31 March 2016

0
0
0
0
0

133,789
0
1,286
135,075

124,758
0
1,208
125,966

437
5,010
(4,893)
(20)
534

£000
126,403
86
0
(1,469)
246
8,223
2,140
(20)
135,609

£000
23,335
0
0
(17,284)
0
0
12
0
6,063

Net book value
- Owned at 1 April 2015
- Finance lease at 1 April 2015
- Donated at 1 April 2015
- Total at 1 April 2015

Depreciation at 1 April 2015
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Depreciation at 31 March 2016

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2015
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
5HFODVVL¿FDWLRQV
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2016

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Property, plant and equipment 2015/16

13.1

Land

Property, plant and equipment

13

6,100
0
0
6,100

6,007
0
0
6,007

56
323
(323)
0
56

£000
6,063
0
0
(229)
0
285
37
0
6,156

Dwellings

2,230
0
0
2,230

3,302
0
0
3,302

0
0
0
0
0

£000
3,302
8,513
0
0
0
(9,585)
0
0
2,230

Assets under
construction

8,516
102
612
9,230

6,999
660
814
8,473

26,859
2,158
0
(892)
28,125

£000
35,332
1,919
305
0
0
767
0
(968)
37,355

Plant and
machinery

48
0
3
51

49
0
5
54

89
10
0
0
99

£000
143
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
150

Transport
equipment

6,592
79
6
6,677

8,279
260
10
8,549

7,544
2,332
0
0
9,876

£000
16,093
300
1
0
0
159
0
0
16,553

Information
technology

905
0
17
922

886
0
23
909

2,747
174
0
0
2,921

£000
3,656
0
36
0
0
151
0
0
3,843

Furniture
¿WWLQJV

164,243
181
1,924
166,348

173,615
920
2,060
176,595

37,732
10,007
(5,216)
(912)
41,611

£000
214,327
10,825
342
(18,982)
246
0
2,189
(988)
207,959

Total

Annual Accounts

20,920
0
0
20,920

23,335
0
0
23,335

Net book value
- Owned at 1 April 2014
- Finance lease at 1 April 2014
- Donated at 1 April 2014
- Total at 1 April 2014

- Owned at 31 March 2015
- Finance lease at 31 March 2015
- Donated at 31 March 2015
- Total at 31 March 2015

0
0
0
0
0

Depreciation at 1 April 2014
Provided during the year
Revaluation
Disposals
Depreciation at 31 March 2015

£000
20,920
0
0
(30)
0
0
2,445
0
23,335

Land

Property, plant and equipment 2014/15

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014
Additions - purchased
Additions - donated
Impairments
Reversal of impairments
5HFODVVL¿FDWLRQV
Revaluation
Disposals
Cost or Valuation at 31 March 2015

13.2

124,758
0
1,208
125,966

106,310
0
1,090
107,400

361
4,195
(4,119)
0
437

Buildings
excluding
dwellings
£000
107,761
21
0
(1,785)
5,225
8,194
6,987
0
126,403

6,007
0
0
6,007

6,157
0
0
6,157

56
281
(281)
0
56

£000
6,213
0
0
(154)
0
49
(45)
0
6,063

Dwellings

3,302
0
0
3,302

5,692
0
0
5,692

0
0
0
0
0

£000
5,692
13,318
0
0
0
(15,708)
0
0
3,302

Assets under
construction

6,999
660
814
8,473

6,049
1,295
951
8,295

31,200
2,704
0
(7,045)
26,859

£000
39,495
1,619
183
0
0
1,089
0
(7,054)
35,332

Plant and
machinery

49
0
5
54

58
0
6
64

79
10
0
0
89

£000
143
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
143

Transport
equipment

8,279
260
10
8,549

2,841
441
14
3,296

6,389
1,155
0
0
7,544

£000
9,685
243
1
0
0
6,164
0
0
16,093

Information
technology

886
0
23
909

842
0
24
866

2,571
176
0
0
2,747

£000
3,437
0
7
0
0
212
0
0
3,656

Furniture
¿WWLQJV

173,615
920
2,060
176,595

148,869
1,736
2,085
152,690

40,656
8,521
(4,400)
(7,045)
37,732

£000
193,346
15,201
191
(1,969)
5,225
0
9,387
(7,054)
214,327

Total
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Impairments
2015/16
£000
19
(246)
(227)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Changes in market price
Reversal of impairments
TOTAL
13.4

2014/15

1,785
(5,225)
(3,440)

Economic lives and valuations

Information on the economic life of property, plant and equipment is included in the accounting
policies.
'XULQJWKH\HDUWKHODQGEXLOGLQJVDQGGZHOOLQJVZHUHYDOXHGE\WKH9DOXDWLRQ2I¿FH$JHQF\RQD
Modern Equivalent Asset basis.
14

Inventories

14.1

Inventories

Drugs
Consumables
TOTAL
14.2

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


1,800
4,551
6,351

1,482
4,636
6,118

2015/16
£000
(50,700)
(50,700)

2014/15

(43,065)
(43,065)

Inventories recognised in expenses

Inventories recognised as an expense in the year
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Trade and other receivables

Current:
NHS receivables
Provision for impaired receivables
Prepayments, accrued income and deferred expenditure
Other receivables
TOTAL
Non-Current:
Provision for impaired receivables
Other receivables
TOTAL

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


13,899
(1,265)
3,026
5,825
21,485

14,183
(401)
1,392
4,284
19,458

(111)
622
511

(117)
620
503

The majority of trade is with Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England, as commissioners
for NHS patient care services. As Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England are funded by
Government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

16

Provision for impairment of receivables
31 March 2016
£000
518
858
0
1,376

Balance at 1 April
Increase in provision
Amount utilised
Balance at 31 March

31 March 2015

374
144
0
518

7KLVSULQFLSDOO\UHODWHVWRDSURYLVLRQIRUGRXEWIXOGHEWVRI  IRU5RDG7UDI¿F
Act income and a new policy introduced in 2015/16 for aging NHS debts.
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Analysis of receivables past due impaired and non-impaired
31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


3

9

6
5
134
1,228
1,376

6
9
38
456
518

939
1,246
862
4,504
3,276
10,827

1,249
489
990
1,303
3,541
7,572

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


3,740
12,721
3,663
1,560
1,601
188
0
9,770
33,243

2,380
17,335
3,782
1,504
1,547
369
26
9,015
35,958

Ageing of past due impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
91-180 days
Over 180 days

Ageing of past due non-impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
91-180 days
over 180 days

18

Trade and other payables

Current
NHS payables
Non - NHS trade payables - income
Non - NHS trade payables - capital
Social security costs
Other taxes payable
Other payables
PDC Payable
Accruals
TOTAL

1RQ1+6SD\DEOHVLQFOXGH  of outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2016 (31
0DUFK  
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Other liabilities
31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


1,919
1
1,920

3,414
140
3,554

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015


28
133
1,191
1,352

57
768
1,191
2,016

14
21
6,397
84,034
90,466

41
142
7,588
22,499
30,270

Current
Deferred Income - goods and services
Other deferred Income
TOTAL

20

Borrowings

Current
Other loans
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHU¿QDQFHOHDVHV
Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Non Current
Other loans
2EOLJDWLRQVXQGHU¿QDQFHOHDVHV
Foundation Trust Financing Facility
Working Capital Loans from Department of Health

The Trust is party to six Department of Health loans as follows:
/RDQ IRUFDSLWDOLQYHVWPHQW IRU P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO2FWREHU7KHORDQ
FDUULHVD¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
/RDQ IRUFDSLWDOLQYHVWPHQW IRU P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO6HSWHPEHU7KH
ORDQFDUULHVD¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
/RDQ IRUFDSLWDOLQYHVWPHQW IRU P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO1RYHPEHU7KH
ORDQFDUULHVD¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
/RDQ± IRUUHYHQXH IRU P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO0DUFK7KHORDQFDUULHVD
¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
/RDQ IRUUHYHQXH IRU P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO0DUFK7KHORDQFDUULHVD
¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
/RDQ 5HYHQXH:RUNLQJ&DSLWDO5HYROYLQJ)DFLOLW\ IRU P7KHFXUUHQWGUDZQGRZQ
EDODQFHIURPWKLVIDFLOLW\RQ0DUFKLV P5HSD\PHQWVZLOOFRQWLQXHXQWLO$SULO
7KHORDQFDUULHVD¿[HGLQWHUHVWUDWHDW
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Finance lease obligation

$PRXQWVSD\DEOHXQGHU¿QDQFHOHDVHV

Minimum Lease Payments
31 March 2016
31 March 2015
£000

Within one year
%HWZHHQRQHDQG¿YH
years
/HVVIXWXUH¿QDQFH
charges
Present value of minimum
lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments
31 March 2016
31 March 2015
£000


133

768

133

768

23

161

21

142

(2)

(19)

0

0

154

910

154

910

133
21
154

768
142
910

Included in:
Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings

7KHODUJHVW¿QDQFHOHDVHVDUHIRUD05,VFDQQHUDQG,7KDUGZDUHIRUD¿YH\HDUSHULRG
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Provisions for liabilities and charges
Current

Non-Current

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 March
2015

£000



£000



Pensions relating to staff

72

79

719

834

Legal claims

54

67

0

0

Dilapidation

0

0

114

114

126

146

833

948

TOTAL

2015/16

2014/15

Pensions
relating to
staff

Legal
claims

Dilapidation
provision

Total

Pensions
relating to
staff

Legal
claims

Dilapidation
provision

Total







£000







£000

913

67

114

1,094

798

78

114

990

3

0

0

3

25

0

0

25

Arising during the
year

67

75

0

142

148

70

0

218

Utilised during the
year

(100)

(80)

0

(180)

(80)

(71)

0

(151)

Reversed unused

At 1st April
Change in the
discount rate

(114)

(8)

0

(122)

0

(10)

0

(10)

Unwinding of
discount

22

0

0

22

22

0

0

22

At 31st March

791

54

114

959

913

67

114

1,094

72

54

0

126

79

67

0

146

Between one and
¿YH\HDUV

279

0

0

279

834

0

0

834

$IWHU¿YH\HDUV

440

0

114

554

0

0

114

114

791

54

114

959

913

67

114

1,094

Expected timing of
FDVKÀRZV
Within one year

7KHSURYLVLRQIRUSHQVLRQVUHODWLQJWRRWKHUVWDIIUHÀHFWVWKHOLDELOLWLHVGXHWRHDUO\UHWLUHPHQWVSULRUWR0DUFK
7KHOHJDOFODLPVSURYLVLRQUHÀHFWVOLDELOLWLHVDULVLQJIURP3XEOLFDQG(PSOR\HH/LDELOLW\FODLPV
The dilapidation provision relates to the cost to bring the leased property at Stirling Park back to its original
condition.
 LV LQFOXGHG LQ WKH SURYLVLRQV RI WKH 1+6 /LWLJDWLRQ$XWKRULW\ DW  0DUFK  LQ UHVSHFW RI
FOLQLFDOQHJOLJHQFHOLDELOLWLHVRIWKH7UXVW DW0DUFK 
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Cash and cash equivalents

Government Banking Service cash at bank
Commercial cash at bank and in hand
Cash and cash equivalents as in Statement of Cash Flows
and Statement of Financial Position

24

At 1
April
2015

Cash
changes
2015/16

At 31
March
2016





£000

3,053

2,456

5,509

79

32

111

3,132

2,488

5,620

Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments under capital expenditure contracts totalling at 31
0DUFK DW0DUFK 

25

Contingencies
7KHFRQWLQJHQWOLDELOLWLHVUHODWLQJWRWKH7UXVWDVDW0DUFKZHUH  
at 31 March 2015) relating to NHS Litigation Authority Legal Claims.

26

Related Party Transactions
The Medway NHS Foundation Trust is a corporate body established by order of the
Secretary of State for Health. The Trust has taken advantage of the exemption provided by
,$6µ5HODWHG3DUW\'LVFORVXUHV¶ZKHUHWKHSDUHQW¶VRZQ¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUH
SUHVHQWHGWRJHWKHUZLWKWKHFRQVROLGDWHG¿QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGDQ\WUDQVDFWLRQVRU
balances between group entities have been eliminated on consolidation.
The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust has had
DVLJQL¿FDQWQXPEHURIPDWHULDOWUDQVDFWLRQVZLWKWKH'HSDUWPHQWDQGZLWKRWKHUHQWLWLHVIRU
which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. These entities are listed
below:
NHS England and Clinical Commissioning Groups
Strategic Health Authorities and Primary Care Trusts
NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Arms Length Bodies
British Telecom (BT), as a related party of the Department of Health, is regarded as a
UHODWHGSDUW\RIWKH7UXVW'XULQJWKH\HDUWKH7UXVWPDGHSD\PHQWVWRWDOOLQJ 
  WR%7DQGRZHG 1LODW0DUFK 0DUFK  0LOO6WUHHW
Consultancy Limited is a related party due to Darren Cattell, Interim Director of Finance,
EHLQJDGLUHFWRU'XULQJWKH\HDUWKH7UXVWPDGHSD\PHQWVRI WR0LOO6WUHHW
&RQVXOWDQF\/LPLWHGDQGRZHG DW0DUFK
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The main entities with which the Trust had material transactions are within the Kent and
Medway Health Economy, or are Arms Length Bodies and are:

2015/16

2015/16

31 March 2016

31 March 2016

Payments to
Related Party

Receipts from
Related Party

Amounts owed to
related Party

Amounts due
from Related
Party

£000

£000

£000

£000

NHS England

0

32,335

0

2,208

Health Education England

0

7,142

0

419

Clinical Commissioning Groups
NHS Dartford, Gravesham And Swanley CCG

0

11,882

0

429

NHS Medway CCG

0

131,857

1,442

3,612

NHS Swale CCG

0

44,383

477

2,048

NHS West Kent CCG

0

6,395

0

472

2,770

673

1,045

563

276

1,013

147

404

0

0

0

0

3,802

549

1,113

358

512

1,889

234

695

0

0

0

0

NHS Litigation Authority

4,764

0

6

0

NHS Pensions Agency

14,592

0

0

0

HM Revenue and Customs

0

0

0

1,044

Medway Council

0

1,702

0

0

0

0

NHS Trusts
Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust
Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care NHS Trust
Kent Community Healthcare
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust
NHS Foundation Trusts
East Kent Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation
Trust
NHS Arms Length Bodies

Other Government Departments

The Trust has also received income from charitable funds where the Trust is the corporate Trustee
Medway NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund

0

193

71

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Annual Accounts

2014/15

2014/15

31 March 2015

31 March 2015

Payments
to Related
Party

Receipts
from
Related
Party

Amounts owed
to related Party

Amounts due
from Related
Party

£000

£000

£000

£000

162

29,398

0

2,412

1

8,121

1,670

197

NHS Dartford, Gravesham And Swanley CCG

0

9,639

0

962

NHS Medway CCG

0

130,666

1,266

4,486

NHS Swale CCG

0

44,603

478

2,206

NHS West Kent CCG

0

6,189

0

207

2,807

739

448

169

346

1,099

45

1,109

Kent Community Healthcare

1,233

229

0

0

Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust

4,069

585

1,392

181

East Kent Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

283

1,851

151

309

University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation
Trust

894

0

0

12

NHS Litigation Authority

4,817

0

40

0

NHS Pensions Agency

13,971

0

0

0

0

0

0

457

1,493

1,884

0

0

0

0

NHS England
Health Education England
Clinical Commissioning Groups

NHS Trusts
Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust
Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care NHS Trust

NHS Foundation Trusts

NHS Arms Length Bodies

Other Government Departments
HM Revenue and Customs
Medway Council

The Trust has also received income from charitable funds where the Trust is the corporate Trustee
Medway NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund

27

0
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Financial Instruments

)LQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJVWDQGDUG,)56UHTXLUHVGLVFORVXUHRIWKHUROHWKDW¿QDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWVKDYH
had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities.
7KH7UXVWDFWLYHO\VHHNVWRPLQLPLVHLWV¿QDQFLDOULVNV,QOLQHZLWKWKLVSROLF\WKH7UXVWQHLWKHU
EX\VQRUVHOOV¿QDQFLDOLQVWUXPHQWV)LQDQFLDODVVHWVDQGOLDELOLWLHVDUHJHQHUDWHGE\GD\WRGD\
operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its
activities.
7KH7UXVWKROGVVXUSOXVFDVKEDVHGRQIRUHFDVWHGFDVKÀRZVZLWKWKH*RYHUQPHQW%DQNLQJ
Service in order to minimise the PDC dividend charge.
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Interest-Rate Risk
$OORIWKH7UXVW¶V¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHVFDUU\QLORU¿[HGUDWHVRILQWHUHVW7KHRQO\HOHPHQWRIWKH7UXVW¶V
assets that are subject to a variable rate are short term cash investments. The Trust is not,
WKHUHIRUHH[SRVHGWRVLJQL¿FDQWLQWHUHVWUDWHULVN
Foreign Currency Risk
The Trust has negligible foreign currency income or expenditure.
Credit Risk
The Trust operates primarily within the NHS market and receives the majority of its income from
other NHS organisations. There is therefore little risk that one party will fail to discharge its
obligations with the other. Disputes can arise, however, around how the amounts owed are
calculated, particularly due to the complex nature of the Payments by Results regime. For this
reason the Trust makes a provision for irrecoverable amounts based on historic patterns and the
best information available at the time the accounts are prepared. The Trust does not hold any
FROODWHUDODVVHFXULW\7KH7UXVW¶VPD[LPXPH[SRVXUHWRFUHGLWULVNLV P
Liquidity Risk
The Trust’s net operating costs are incurred under contracts with local Clinical Commissioning
*URXSVZKLFKDUH¿QDQFHGIURPUHVRXUFHVYRWHGDQQXDOO\E\3DUOLDPHQW7KH7UXVWUHFHLYHGVXFK
contract income in accordance with Payments by Results (PBR), which is intended to match the
income received in year to the activity delivered in that year by reference to the National Tariff
procedure cost. The Trust receives cash each month based on an annually agreed level of
contract activity and there are monthly payments made to adjust for the actual income due under
3%57KH7UXVWKDVFRQWLQXHGWRSXWLQSODFHD ZRUNLQJFDSLWDOIDFLOLW\ZLWKLWVFXUUHQW
Bankers, which has not been utilised during the year. There was no outstanding amount at the 31
March 2016.
7KH7UXVWSUHVHQWO\¿QDQFHVLWVFDSLWDOH[SHQGLWXUHIURPLQWHUQDOO\JHQHUDWHGIXQGVRUIXQGVPDGH
available from Government, in the form of additional Public Dividend Capital, under an agreed limit.
In addition, the Trust can borrow from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility and commercially to
¿QDQFHFDSLWDOVFKHPHV)LQDQFLQJLVGUDZQGRZQWRPDWFKWKHFDSLWDOVSHQGSUR¿OHRIWKH
VFKHPHFRQFHUQHGDQGWKH7UXVWLVQRWWKHUHIRUHH[SRVHGWRVLJQL¿FDQWOLTXLGLW\ULVNVLQWKLVDUHD
Financial assets by category
7KH7UXVWGRHVQRWKROGDQ\¿QDQFLDODVVHWVRUOLDELOLWLHVWKDWDUHKHOGDWIDLUYDOXHWKURXJK,QFRPH
DQG([SHQGLWXUH$OO¿QDQFLDODVVHWVDUHVKRZQZLWKLQORDQVDQGUHFHLYDEOHVDQG¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV
are shown as other.

Loans and
Receivables

At 31 March 2016
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

At 31 March 2015
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

195

Book Value


Fair Value


17,176
5,620
22,796

17,176
5,620
22,796

17,176
5,620
22,796

19,062
3,132
22,194

19,062
3,132
22,194

19,062
3,132
22,194

Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

Annual Accounts
Financial liabilities by category
Other

At 31 March 2016
%RUURZLQJVH[FOXGLQJ¿QDQFHOHDVHV
Finance leases
Trade and other payables

At 31 March 2015
%RUURZLQJVH[FOXGLQJ¿QDQFHOHDVHV
Finance leases
Trade and other payables

Book Value


Fair Value


91,664
154
33,243
125,061

91,664
154
33,243
125,061

91,664
154
33,243
125,061

31,376
910
35,958
68,244

31,376
910
35,958
68,244

31,376
910
35,958
68,244

31 March
2016
£000
134,594
58,027
30,162
2,278
125,061

31 March
2015

35,958
1,999
5,383
24,904
68,244

0DWXULW\RI¿QDQFLDOOLDELOLWLHV

In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years
,QPRUHWKDQWZR\HDUVEXWQRWPRUHWKDQ¿YH\HDUV
,QPRUHWKDQ¿YH\HDUV

28

Third Party Assets

7KH7UXVWKHOG FDVKDWEDQNDQGLQKDQGDW0DUFK DW0DUFK 
which relates to monies held on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from cash at bank and
LQKDQG¿JXUHUHSRUWHGLQWKHDFFRXQWV
29

Losses and Special Payments

There were 51 FDVHVRIORVVHVDQGVSHFLDOSD\PHQWV FDVHV WRWDOOLQJ 
  SDLGGXULQJ
7KHUHZHUHQRFDVHVZKHUHWKHQHWSD\PHQWH[FHHGHG  QRFDVHV 
These amounts are reported on an accruals basis but excluding provisions for future losses.
Clinical negligence cases are managed by the National Health Service Litigation Authority and
transactions relating to such cases are held in their accounts. The Trust pays a premium for their
services and excesses on some cases. Therefore, these cases have not been accounted for in the
Trust’s accounts.
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Medway NHS Foundation Trust
Medway Maritime Hospital
Windmill Road
Gillingham
Kent ME7 5NY
Tel: 01634 830000
Email: communications@medway.nhs.uk

www.medway.nhs.uk

